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2016/17814F

2017/18B1 & e

HHERE (THT) 52,831,958 31,993,323 65.1%
EF (FAT) 11,671,024 8,376,826 39.3%
FERF (FAET) 6,669,054 4,694,696 42.1%
RATEB ANEEER (FAT) 6,095,153 4,147,732 47.0%
BREARZM (FET) 1.23 0.85 44.7%
Tk B 45 OBI) 35 25 40.0%
WMBRF S RBIERI&F (FHT) 9,674,428 6,934,088 39.5%
MERFE - BIE - TE REERARN (FH5T) 10,848,714 7,893,885 37.4%
wEE (F87T) 82,058,007 60,221,785 36.3%
wITEBREIRE (THET) 8,537,051 5,242,322 62.8%
fRREz (FAT) 28,455,996 20,550,233 38.5%

ey Er 2016/1781 4
HEZA=+—HL=FE
T FE KA 4.00% 4.08%
MELLE (1) 0.92 0.68
EIES 22.1% 26.2%
FEEAMBLLE 61.80% 76.70%
T FERI R 13.1% 15.7%
KB LR (EA) 28.5% 29.6%
RS () 27.3% 27 4%
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EEME

EURE AUVAELES  2016/17814F g
BEZA=FT—HILFE

EERREEAH 495 330 165
ERERAFH (F) 40,983,038 38,931,203 5.3%
BIEE(%) 57.2% 53.1% 4.1%
RKARBHEE (BEILLK) 18,659.3 12,224.3 52.6%
BT ELEMRRIBEHENRAR (BBLAK) 11,786.5 8,473.3 39.1%
RRABEMRESHENKAR (B8 K) 6,872.8 3,751.0 83.2%

EHEBERRBERAREEAFIE (BELLK)

ERAP 3,088.9 1,929.5 60.1%
TXRP 5,419.6 3,679.3 47.3%
BMERP 2,054.1 1,6671.0 23.7%
B4 B RARR AR A 1,223.9 1,203.5 1.7%
FERAE

ERAPF 3,926,762 2,564,943 53.1%
THRP 2,318 1,569 47.7%
HMERP 26,829 27,411 -2.1%
ENEERAFREGNMRL

ERRAF 24,570,321 20,681,656 18.8%
THARP 9,721 7,403 31.3%
BE3S 168,964 141,969 19.0%
B4 B R AR IR A 580 580 -

ERAFFHERKE (AR¥)
HWHmRRIER 2,523 2,540 -0.7%
HEMRRIER 3,089 - -

FHERE (FRH)

EBEAF (AR¥ /HXK) 2.40 2.36 1.7%
TEAF (AR ST HXK) 2.50 2.38 5.0%
BERFE (AR /I HK) 2.60 2.55 2.0%
B4 RIERARME (AR STFTK) 2.63 2.79 -5.7%
FERRIERERAT
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SEGTER

&/ BRE/ TR 2iE 23 e 2iE| EERE
BE&W BEHhY “AD| WEAOD| GBAF BBRETHAF BEHILAF BHEBERF (AE)
HTRE £y 3,670,000| 2,356,231 785,410 693,145 407 5,574 2,053
i 3,456,000 2,169,085| 671,543 379,987 60 1,486 1,288
£ 1,372,000  576,458| 178,470 50,849 3 108 274
Epl 5,599,300 | 2,267,624 | 702,051 266,572 20 1,192 1,486
3] 347,000 202,340 72,264 53,895 184 664 356
el 550,342 202,340 90,735 71,909 21 399 286
ELg 363,000 139,554 46,518 34,937 7 205 143
Ba% 634,243 | 112,611 72,652 67,729 3 260 338
EARTXER 1,037,000 475499 | 147,213 72,083 2 437 4k
B 188,209 46,351 14,350 7,534 3 33 68
=g 276,247 38,312 12,771 11,271 6 106 108
FEREE 129,278 26,760 8,285 8,240 7 22 38
EmE 158,000 111,287 49,904 31,243 14 214 296
BAGII£E 10,000 10,000 3,096 1,327 5 6 5
Mg 921,800  373,034| 114,780
EMNAREERER 116,000 116,000 35,913
g 180,445| 180,445 50,767 29,234 1 66 119
IS 178,676 178,676 50,460 18,580 35 79
TEIAT 873,500 271,302 83,094 9,797 4 22 5
il 568,724 69,045 21,376 9,689 2 2
BETEHE 505,850 505,850 266,237 168,000 34 145
EE 4,130,000 1,295280| 431,760 388,210 108 3,505 1,866
ZR 883,000| 505,850  219,935| 209,012 96 1,678 1,039
E 1,116,628 228,261 91,304 71,402 147 572 346
JES 665,900| 303,510 108,396 80,095 32 587 457
ZE 575,000 142,269 71,135 61,952 38 465 347
FaN 2,201,800| 1,096986|  339,624| 158,221 65 1,010 889
xM 1,286,600 675,558 | 209,151 80,324 34 556 735
= 485,800 191,679 59,343 54,747 48 506 420
RESLE 485,400 202,340 62,644
REIRE 323,744 323,744| 107,915 71,881 626 34
im0 532,200 254,948 78,931 67,738 59 571 690
BN 464,900 189,076 58,538 52,782 45 635 499
BZ 194,471 49,426 15,302 12,494 15 70 87
KIEZ 638,839 | 103,052 31,905 5,886 5 9 49
ge 636,100 219,448 67,941 34,217 19 97 183
RAAIXE 25,000 26,000 7,740
TEREILEE 60,000 60,000 18,576 12,625 12 98 47
% 488,000 83,971 25,997
RRiE 400,000 400,000 114,286
il 673,000 365224 104,350 17
BT 931,900 298,553 92,431 36,999
W 848,400 375,947 116,392 31,933
REDHME 900,000 223,845 69,302 21,104
RAm 805,200 171,483 76,898 39,842 18
BN 404,900 60,702 20,234 13,603
BE% 378,335 49,986 27,770 17,966 % 3450
EEEREIRE 50,000 30,000 9,288 4,230 '
R SRIEIRERAT
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&/ BRE/ TR 2iE 23 e 2iE| EERE
BE&W BEHhY “AD| WEAOD| GBAF BBRETHAF BEHILAF BHEBERF (AE)
Gl 370,000 209,422 139,615 127,876
HIKE 1,026,177 162,155 50,203 34,302
RAME)IE 145,000 60,000 18,576 8,945
izt 1,007,270 162,884 56,167 38,253
18 1194200 809,360 |  334446| 229,773 19
it 379,839 68,096 21,082
ERAILER 230,000 69,000 21,362
% 504,200| 229,545 71,066
ZREIE 135,000 76,586 23,711
@5 4844200| 1,372,246 392,070 226,353 67 1,759 1,276
e 820,591 418,002 129,412 43,717 5 175 295
KRR 1,708,700 712,540 220,601 56,985 3 594 315
wHEAEH 108,400 56,542 17,196
wHTE 159,849 | 159,849 49,489
B 1874900  974,974|  278506| 127,743 57 932 652
HH 281,606 172,223 82,011 77,090 87 1,091 968
BRI TittE 1,719,890 | 1,719,890 661,496 599,999 130 4,588 1,983
BAREOE 769,900  672,587| 208,231
BNEIE 428,700 245,034 75,862 57,760 49 441 419
i 1,126,600  323440| 100,136 67,706 51 406 531
BN 4,616,700 3,007,941 812,957 | 428,736 65 1,829 2,803
ZERE 30,351 30,351 16,862 13,203 35 78 226
EEESNCERRR 240,000| 240,000 74,303 208 0 0 2
BReE 48,562 48,562 13,714 6 7
RE% 53,620 53,620 15,143 1 1
WEES E 264,171 264,171 75,477 75,477 14 241 575
k& 28,000 28,000 8,000 2,222 17 1 44
ERE 179,270 179,270 50,628 25,644 54 179
ARREILER 52,000 52,000 16,099
mMELE 1,275,900 1,013,926 316,852 175,212 453 572 3,294
an 607,020 607,020 187,932 81,484 42 633 261
tE 4811500 979,831 306,197 | 131,875 262 1,060 742
T RAZE 420,000 240,000 74,303
RILEERER
gEm 35,410 35,410 10,000
EMNREE 370,000 270,000 83,591 11,600 60 35 162
el 780,000 192,223 59,612 40,816 41 106 195
BA% 407,000 114,322 35,394 7,658 0 18 35
EHm 270,000 101,170 40,468 38,980 66 327 250
LS 170,000 78,913 32,880 30,032 29 141 295
425
i
At 4,320,000  994906|  308,020| 282,282 195 1,671 1,409
FlLE o ' ' ' ’ '
ELEZEE
NE%
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&/ BRE/ AR 2iE 23 e 2iE| EERE
BE&W BEHhY “AD| WEAOD| GBAF BBRETHAF BEHILAF BHEBERF (AE)
HEME 750,000 750,000 232,198 1,545 20 7
BMNEHE 150,000 90,000 27,864 5,473 2 1 83
BE% 590,000 313,627 97,098 28,095 11 232 224
EZEmEITE 918,000 70,000 21,672 7,157 9 1 28
BX 430,000 157,825 70,774 37,872 5 14 90
15 £ 600,000| 151,755 46,983 6,454 6 45
EE% 300,000 68,796 21,299
HEH R 830,000|  384446| 119,024
K 358,357 101,263 31,351 1,482
EM 353,000 63,231 19,576 7,505 2 5 22
TEES 1,222,000(  527,096| 163,188
THEH 222,049 | 222,049 62,709 52,043 8 94 190
IREIMENY=RE 105,200 105,200 30,057
Epd 217,898| 217,898 61,537 36,082 3 41 215
B 55 131,685 131,685 37,189 22,335 7 142
TIEEE 73,701 73,701 20,814 16,030 16 104
RE% 172,139 172,139 48,614 16,485 1 12 125
RES% 87,968 87,968 24,843 13,138 12 34 177
EEH 132917 132,917 37,537 26,721 6 119 229
Es% 138,532 138,532 39,123 17,784 7 2% 176
Fias 87,159 87,159 24,615 13,884 23 119
333 21,790 21,790 6,154 4,538 11 34
11E% 54,474 54,474 15,384 7,692 10 86
WA E 203,550 203,550 58,157 27,951 5 115 206
HHSTHEERS 90,000 90,000 25,714 6,100 5 12 151
BEm 200,037 200,037 56,493 32,702 32 114
%25 55,819 55,819 15,764 7,620 5 18 72
g 32,252 32,252 10,100 10,099 7 22 99
ma 31,000 31,000 8,857
FRiR& 283,000 129,241 40,013 64 9
BEH 250,000 96,112 29,756
RiE 26,584 5 203 1,057
BREMKRERE EA 7,173,200 1,431,758 447 424 133,024 53 1,156 666
M 4,041,000| 595487 | 184,361 123,495 5 571 381
i 3,856,700 | 1,485,655| 459,955 382,153 97 1,884 1,992
g 918,400 512,224 158,583 101,236 27 511 531
HETREREER 200,000 200,000 61,920 15,384 31 56 90
RE 2,685,600 | 1,105,828 342,362 68,744 7 333 433
BE 4131,900| 359,083 111,171 51,748 1 114 231
e 1,822,100 404,680 125,288 30,145 0 93 144
BE 7517,400| 3,348,727 | 1,116,242 | 1,093,835 194 6,453 4,492
SE 2,488,000 754,121 233 474 32,185 9 125 199
BT 1,996,000 272,410 84,338 20,273 9 61 121
I8 1,719,700  962,817| 298,086
Bl 1,100,000  728424| 225518 1,765 3 2 10
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&/ BRE/ AR 2iE 23 e 2iE| EERE
BE&W BEHhY “AD| WEAOD| GBAF BBRETHAF BEHILAF BHEBERF (AE)
5% 460,000| 318,382 98,570 1,765 3 2 19
Ao 468,326 94,309 29,198 5,297 0 27 40
3t 4245400 1,233,970 382,034 15,959 2 12 107
B 280,000 26,146 8,095 3,030 0 5 25
2Z 944,600 257,984
Fib 214,700 41,277 12,779
Wi 411,000 166,323 51,493
BRLERBRG 369,200| 130,732 40,474
L 3,775000| 1,938,609|  646,203| 622,666 328 4,862 3,372
15z 11 8% 473,600 233,247 72,213
Tk 3,382,000 667,722 206,725 14,988 6 161 60
iy 87,357 30,871 9,558
B 245,900 120,291 37,242
% 7,988,500 | 1,234,274 382,128 111,193 6 620 801
e 586,800 | 232,686 104,343 74,024 76 599 790
s 1,237,000  897,378| 277,826 117,224 20 514 855
oy 2,480,800 322,732 99,917 44,595 1 251 433
WE 3,618,900| 541,497 | 167,646 26,399 5 306 185
A 492,990 109,727 33,971 24,429 57 95 267
)E% 711,676 256,393 79,379 17,550 11 147 142
Tig 264,256 84,417 26,135 15,010 4 68 178
AEE 553,945 202,146 62,584 17,181 2 42 101
hES 1,463,929 177,861 55,065 16,162 6 327 142
LM 1,653,000 600,368 | 185,872 27,993 2 4 165
2354 354,371 159,660 49,430 5,139 4 26 46
8% 610,169 | 136,742 42,335
BEHIEE
B 2,148,000 1,618,720  539,573| 382,319 53 6,700 848
BN ER TR E 200,000 200,000 89,686 55,646 15 377 334
EEER LR 480,334 |  480,334| 148,710 83,720 191 675 799
AESMAZR 1,500,000 480,000 165,517 125,545 37 304 756
&5 1,790,000  758,775| 234,915 124,057 78 547 743
=M 730,000 291,370 90,207 28,110 16 199.53 223
A 925,000| 290,105 89,816 44,103 24 189 402
HAmTER 97,000 69,000 21,362
THIE 916,000 347,982 107,734 16,248 20 35 196
ERTERR 87,000 63,200 19,567
BHATT 160,900 70,819 21,925
HES 320,000 151,755 46,983 5,195 0 26 37
wMERENE 60,000 25,293 12,646 7,365 1 27 88
BRE% 333,700 105,723 32,731 9,122 2 66 54
ABRBIEE
BT E 582,019 117,766 36,460
% 220,000 151,755 46,983
25BN 35,911 35,911 11,118 5 3 8 6
R8% 72,892 41,234 12,766
FERSRIZIRERARE

2017/18 3R
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&/ BRE/ TR 2iE 23 e 2iE| EERE

BE&W BEHhY “AD| WEAOD| GBAF BBRETHAF BEHILAF BHEBERF (AE)
BMAELER 80,000 80,000 24,768 1 3
EOEERE 30,000 30,000 9,288
HMm 3,020,000 1,281,824|  559,748| 390,290 33 9,890 1,356
{hil 8,294,000| 5,360,998 | 2,539,554 | 2,394,102 1,070 14,858 6,809
)= 434,000 121,404 37,586
NELBLER 230,000 174,800 52,970
it 1,602,600 1,300,844 |  406,514| 186,164 28 10,933 1,399
e 5,792,300| 2,003,166 620,175 238,678 39 2,474 702
58 9,204,000| 3,393,242 | 1,131,081| 1,107,692 10 6,900 2,867
E4q 676,300 332,546 102,955 12,763 35 67 133
e 654500 402,657 | 124,661 (3,314 25 110 170
MK 620,000 170,977 52,934 18,248 23 80 70
HEHR 654,500 402,657 72,400 2,591 10 23 80
BN RGTEREE 150,000 150,000 46,440 4,831 34 52 79
W35 263,042 263,042 81,437 960 2 9 16
BMAEIXE 11 6 61
BeT 1,386,029 1,386,029  391,429| 309,965 197 1,182 836
BT EREE 278,218| 278,218 78,571 61,209 141 148 535
feviiez 9,105 9,105 2,571 853 64 4 165
BRM 480,000 323,744 | 129,498 88,298 191 158
Eodil
BBm
XEm
AL
e 2,819,300| 1,517,550|  469,830| 311,755 54 633 1,679
il 354,095  354,095| 109,627 15,115 98 I
EATAESL 234,486 53,619 16,569 12,838 142 128
HECERERE 600,000 151,755 46,983 2,692 4 9 2t
FFI%RE 50,000 50,000 15,480 5,078 26 3
REELE 701,100 164,401 50,898 1,008 3 1 36
R 920,000 66,266 20,516 1,272 9
ALl 346,067 | 346,067 97,733 59,811 201 261
RALBEREEERE 158,936 158,936 45,410 5,090 55 93
BFE 90,000 38,445 11,902

RAELHBRE EAE 3,089,000 2,529,250 |  972,788| 933,374 183 8,474 3,075
BEIE 120,360 91,326 41512 28,613 25 1,121 548
2k 2,868,000 2,397,000| 799,000 754,399 640 6,664 3,683
A B 200,900 90,547 28,033
bidkin 207,621 121,766 37,699
TEiE 365,000 101,170 31,322
2% 180,000 60,702 18,793
[opaE=: 243500 189,289 58,603
MuEREHATEER 30,000 30,000 9,288
FEBRETXR 13,000 6,000 1,858
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&/ BRE/ AR 2iE 23 e 2iE| EERE
BE&W BEHhY “AD| WEAOD| GBAF BBRETHAF BEHILAF BHEBERF (AE)
5§ 558,300 | 455254 | 140,945
ST 450,000 151,755 46,983
FHE 249,000 45,143 13,976
SILEERITREE 7.439 7,439 7,439
BEE 9,621,000 4,732,733 | 2,151,242 1,761,816 79 11,015 2,995
AR 2,374,717 | 1,260,615 390,283 219,886 15 1,189 1,370
L33 820,484 258,556 80,048
HRT 2,751,000 1,582,299 |  489,876| 299,692 10 450 1,101
ABZENMEETE 550,000| 160,000 49,536 10,738 0 35 121
1115 220,000 138,603 42,911 15,699 2 169 129
BR% 330,445 115,334 35,707 11,343 7 77 88
R 461,000 141,638 43,851 9,820 15 136 83
%E% 220,000 101,170 31,322 2,856 0 22 28
E)is 211,609 117,543 36,391 4 446 1 43 50
HETTIERER 70,000 70,000 21,672
ERERE 209,700 151,542 46,917 5,138 0 31 43
B 150,000 101,170 31,322 5,086 0 29 26
TRAmEDHE 25,000 22,257 22,000 16,933 1 89
N 274,000 121,404 37,586
HhmEE 200,317| 200,317 56,571 5,595 7 28
G 300,000 121,404 37,586 2,164 0 2% 33
2% 296,000 110,022 34,063 6,888 0 18 85
#tg 230,000 137,591 42,598 149 4
FEMHNBE 59,104 59,104 18,298 325 6 11
piigic 380,000/ 183,320 56,755 24,336 2 51 75
ZRIERR 109,180 92,341 28,589 8,037 0 3 18
2m 1,679,000 809,360 | 231,246 3,953 0 34 33
ERIEREE 345,555 69,920 21,647 29
BAEDT 370,000 212,457 65,776 580 0 1 19
Hrs 99,498 38,252 11,843
ERE 380,000 146,089 45,229 5,000 12
BERE 104,200 58,679 18,167
£’ Im 1,462,600 887,827 269,039
BEEOKRARE HE 1,141,600 451,319 139,727 67,076 20 1,990 664
E)5 1,501,100 364,212 112,759 18,524 0 0 231
#E S0MEE 4502,065| 4,502,065 | 1,402,743 | 1,254,457 698 7,664 9,028
=#m 2,550,000 1,483,152 | 459,180 36,973 5 65 57
BRm 166,931 166,931 47,143 8,973 1 21 64
RT& 391,100 127,575 39,497
REG 136,000 63,705 19,723
BRE 155,994 36,393 11,267
FMERIXRE 150,000 80,000 24,768
LEE 444,710 188,064 56,989
ABE 368,461 175,203 53,092
B2 149,543 61,274 18,568
EREERER 30,000 15,000 4,545

PR RIERERAT 1 1
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&/ BRE/ AR 2iE 23 e 2iE| EERE
BE&W BEHhY “AD| WEAOD| GBAF BBRETHAF BEHILAF BHEBERF (AE)
HEmEER 90,000 50,585 45,986 34,268 6 153 245
B3 736,452 | 263,042 81,437 33,691 16 220 426
£om 370,000 101,170 31,322
ZR% 362,200 121,404 37,586 16,138 8 1475 1M1
EE% 300,000 70,819 21,925 11,108 0 22 43
FUTLER 30,000 2,312 716
BLE 232,200| 131,521 40,719
=28 196,000 107,544 33,295
HEZ 488900 145962 45,189
ESH 103,100 59,006 18,268
=% 135,500 41,455 12,834 1,341 0 9 27
BKE 200,000 71,083 22,007 2,101 0 0 27
=5 708,190 708,190 |  219,254| 129,817 42 920 376
ffEm 1,021,817 1,021817|  314,286| 279,808 104 956 1,176
pN A 131,521 131,521 37,143 34,923 51 143 438
RE& 526,084 526,084 148,571 33,665 19 125 286
ERE 91,053 91,053 25714 12,983 53 135 345
Bmm7EER 1,310,152 1,310,152|  370,000| 272,559 152 1,139 875
[iRs A 33,184 33,184 9,371
ERm 591,845  591,.845| 167,143 152,793 187 1,054 932
=P 394,563 394,563 111,429 91,868 41 466 425
R84 8 53,620 53,620 16,143
=P TR 7
BEM 121,404 121,404 34,286 5,876 14 75 119
Efm 151,755 151,755 42 857 36,374 136 142 379
KT 404,680 | 404,680 114,286 96,219 20 239 454
KHEEE 35,000 35,000 10,000 1
HEm 252,925 252,925 71,429 62,044 67 286 599
&I % 672,781 672,781 208,291 2,099 0 0 1
FIg 58,820 58,140 18,000 228
B 62,000 39,213 12,140 5,162 6 5 0
EEMEE 9,105 9,105 2,571 1,121 43 9 53
RI5% 230,000 230,000 65,714 82 2
B 35,000 35,000 10,000
SLEm 1,060,000  522,037| 161,621 46,438 14 265 2,143
ABERIE 80,936 80,936 25,058 6,468 0 26 54
RILT 171,989 171,989 53,247 14,602 4 133 71
S 232,700 47,085 14,577 2
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SK Holdings Co., Ltd. ([SK Holdings])  S4EH|AR 2 780,908,500
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FREREARAF ([LROERE]) HE12.97%H#2 - MiModern OrientfIt RAERE2EHE - L RCEREHILIREEBVIERT2.72%#E% « btk
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(i) R E A 2 281,636,028
(ii) AR AR A 77 =0 25 5 2 50,000,000 FEBARR 5 ¢ &%

(iii)
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R
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7. The Capital Group Companies, Inc. #18 & 1 2 2 & K& X F]Capital Research and Management CompanyE & #5 ,2 398,018,742 & i 7 Fh B a5 ©
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Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 9 to 214, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPAs
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
RRETSEE

Recognition of gas connection income

MRER YA Z R

We identified recognition of gas connection income
as a key audit matter due to its quantitative
significance to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
significant judgments involved in the recognition of
income.

B2 BRIRRERWA 2 HER AR ET F1E
REHGAER AN ARABRREEATEY
2 BABWARERS RERHE

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, income from gas connection, which
relates to contracts for gas pipeline construction, is
recognised based on the percentage of completion
method and measured by reference to the proportion
of contract cost incurred for work performed

to date to the estimated total contract costs.

The Group recognised income of approximately
HK$11,302,543,000 from gas connection during the
year ended 31 March 2018.
WMANGRE SR MR - REMRERABA
(BRPRRE BRIEN S KA BB E
R W2RESEETHIREEENE KRG
FHREHRAZLEAGE - EEEREEZT-N
FZA=+—HILFERERRBRRERNBAL S
11,302,543,000/ 7T °

As set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, significant judgments are applied

in determining the extent of progress towards
completion of the construction contracts, budgeted
costs to complete, and the ability to deliver contracts
within forecast timescales as at the end of the
reporting period for gas connection income.

MANER S I SRR HIEOAEL - BURRIERWAME -
BRATERHEETNRERHRNRESOTRE
B RTFEEKA - ARPEERFERARZMNE L8

s
Be °

B EITEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMOF I ERET S RETRE

Our procedures in relation to recognition of gas
connection income included:

BRI RIER WA Z IR B35

Understanding and testing the key controls
relating to the approval of construction contracts
for gas connection and monitoring of stage of
completion;
TEMAFRERRERZESONERE THE
B Ry R R RS )

Discussing with management with respect to the
recognition basis on gas connection income;

EREIE T A B R E BRI AR R A

Evaluating the extent of progress of gas pipeline
connection by examining the relevant contracts,
invoices, completion reports from external parties
and other supporting documents on a sample
basis; assessing the reasonableness of budgeted
material costs against recent purchase prices and
budgeted labour cost by reference to historical
experience taking into account the size and
complexity of the gas connection contracts on

a sample basis; and verifying the percentage of
completion by reference to the proportion of the
contract costs incurred for the work performed to
date over the estimated total contract costs; and
FRMESTAEERBIMNBETNEBEL - &
£ TIREREMEAM AT ERREBER
BYTERGEE ¢ AR AT R R TR E A AR S
PITHAMM R A B 2 S B R E BT LRI E
BIRRER A K2 RE MEMIEE AR A A LIRS
KAz &Y - RIBE BT IIEZ A KA EZE
W RBRRARLPIRBRTKER2BDL - &

Considering the historical accuracy of the Group’s
percentage of completion estimates through
assessing the significance of historical changes
made to the estimates to adjust these based on
actual costs incurred or changes to estimated
progress of the contract.
BERIBEEEEBRKARNE NEEHERZ TG
HLFHELABRNELZINEEL - UBE B
SEBEEF TR LB EREE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

RRETEE

Impairment of goodwill

BE e

We identified impairment assessment of goodwill
arising from acquisition of businesses in current
and prior years as a key audit matter due to

the involvement of significant judgements and
assumptions in determining the recoverable
amounts of cash generating units (“CGUs”) to which
goodwill have been allocated, which are derived from
value in use calculations using discounted cash flow
models.
BFIEHRSFRBEFERBREMELNERE L
BEMLARRETSZE  AARNEERREIERE
FENReELENY ([(ReELEN]) 2rAIEkeE
(ARARBeRERGECREBEESE) P REAH
T R fRER

At 31 March 2018, the Group has goodwill of
approximately HK$3,079,624,000 relating to CGUs
principally engaged in the sale of piped gas and
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) which are
subject to annual impairment assessment. Details
are disclosed in notes 5 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RZE-—NF=A=1+—H0 ' BEBEIHENE
3,079,624,000/8 7T » It EEE BEHHEARKME
(AT [ E]) fEHEEBRRIRIE AR
(TLPG)) ¥R EEE BN AR - ZHBEXHINE
ERER - FEE BBERGE M mAM T KR22
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RPN EA MAHARESERETRE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
goodwill included:

BB EF AHREFRE

. Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including the impairment
model, basis of allocation of goodwill to CGUs and
the preparation of the cash flow projections;

. TR BESERENLOBE (BEREER -7
EOREReEFBUNEERR @ RERINRE
8)

Evaluating the appropriateness of the impairment
model applied by the management;
- FHMEEEEERREERNREN

. Evaluating the accuracy of the management’s cash
flow forecasts by comparing the actual results of
those CGUs to the previously forecasted results;
BB L IERI P AR RO R IR R BRI E M AT R BIR
ITHBLARIRZSHBR X

. Testing discount rates applied in the forecast by
comparing them to the economic and industry
data;

B L TERI P AR Y B IR K BRI AT R B
TTHEUAVBIFHZER X



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

RRETEE

Impairment of goodwill

BE e

Management’s assessment of goodwill impairment .
is highly judgmental and is dependent on certain
significant inputs including the discount rates,

growth rates and expected changes to selling prices .
and direct costs, which are based on past practices,
expectations of future changes in the market and .

the stage of each operation with reference to the
development curve of the natural gas business and
LPG business in the PRC region. No impairment loss .
has been recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018.
EEEHRBRENHEERP RERFIE - mazeT .
HEURNE TEARBAZRE - BRMEAX  BRXR
HEERREERANTEHEE) - A RIRGENB
EER - MSERRBERPRZEREE (HE2ER
Bl R A RARES RLPGEBNERARZ) - #E .
E— \F=A=1T—HILFEHEEIREESE -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

B EITEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RPN EA MAHARESERETRE

Engaging our internal valuation experts to assess
the appropriateness of certain of the discount
rates used;

EAKRMHNAIEEERTEFTAME XN SR
Assessing the reasonableness of growth rates
applied in the forecast based on historical
experiences and trends; and
ERBELRLBE AT ERAERENAE
"R

Comparing the expected changes in selling prices
and direct costs against historical performance
and the management’s business plans in respect
of each CGU.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Wang Hei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
relEERHMEERARSE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 EHZE—Z—N\F=ZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\E —E—+F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FHEx FHIT
Revenue WA 6 52,831,958 31,993,323
Cost of sales THE AR (41,160,934) (23,616,497)
Gross profit E5 11,671,024 8,376,826
Other income EHAbgA 7 563,903 445,644
Other gains and losses Habiss R EtE 8 165,328 (214,653)
Selling and distribution costs THE RO KA (1,615,916) (1,229,274)
Administrative expenses THRFAX (1,987,608) (1,675,472)
Share of results of associates FE(EHE AR 2 3 E 496,822 293,060
Share of results of joint ventures FEIEEERRIZEE 758,313 611,187
10,051,866 6,607,318
Share-based payments LARR D A ERR R (644,320) -
Finance cost S ER 9 (807,781) (705,116)
Profit before taxation B Al A 8,599,765 5,902,202
Taxation i 10 (1,930,711) (1,207,506)
Profit for the year FE A 11 6,669,054 4,694,696
Other comprehensive income Hib2mmkA (FAX)
(expense)
ltems that will be reclassified HigEmHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmIER ¢
Decrease in fair value on S 288
available-for-sale DB D
investments (22,959) (21,794)
Item that will not be reclassified HEg#remmom
subsequently to profit or loss: ZEEm AR
Exchange differences arising BREEEZERERE
on translation 2,945,501 (1,240,162)
Other comprehensive income FREAMPEBA ()
(expense) for the year 2,922,542 (1,261,956)
Total comprehensive income for FEEEIKALRE
the year 9,591,596 3,432,740
Profit for the year attributable to: FERMNEGR -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE 2 =N 6,095,153 4,147,732
Non-controlling interests PR 573,901 546,964
6,669,054 4,694,696
Total comprehensive income EELONCEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE 2 =N 8,645,772 3,047,451
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR 945,824 385,289
9,591,596 3,432,740
Earnings per share BRRET 15
Basic BN HK$#87t1.23  HK$ABIT0.85
Diluted i3] HK$#ET1.20  HK$#IT0.85
FEIRRIZRERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI &

At 31 March 2018 R=—E—N\E=A=+—H

2017

—T—+F

NOTES HK$'000
BfaE FATT
(restated)

(&%)
Non-current assets JEMBNEEE
Investment properties WEME 16 272,929 219,221
Property, plant and equipment Y - B K& 17 34,088,413 25,879,389
Prepaid lease payments FEHEERIEAE 18 1,996,978 1,568,354
Investments in associates REZENR) 218 E 19 5,924,790 4,165,789
Investments in joint ventures REBRRIZRE 20 6,423,615 5,412,087
Available-for-sale investments AMEHEZIRE 21 409,176 324,304
Goodwill kS 22 3,079,624 2,725,604
Other intangible assets HEthEmpEE 23 3,903,024 3,718,428
Deposit for acquisition of WM - BB &
property, plant and Bt isn
equipment 663,790 417,854
Deposit for acquisition of WEEHTEB AR - BB AA)
subsidiaries, joint ventures & NI
and associates 194,038 267,264
Deferred tax assets AR IAE B 35 224,325 160,617
57,180,702 44,858,911
Current assets mENEE
Inventories T8 25 3,069,246 1,678,888
Amounts due from customers EWERFZAEHTIERIE
for contract work 26 3,166,968 1,738,107
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMENIRIE 27 9,019,230 6,066,993
Amounts due from associates FE U BEE 2 A A /T,)\IE 24 38,347 255,015
Amounts due from joint JEY S &R RIFIE
ventures 20 935,161 304,156
Prepaid lease payments TENERE 18 63,225 49,991
Held-for-trading investments FIEEEIRE 28 48,077 27,402
Pledged bank deposits BEEPIRITER 29 290,729 517,676
Bank balances and cash wITEFRES 29 8,246,322 4,724,646
24,877,305 15,362,874
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables %’%&ﬁ’mﬁgﬁﬁaﬁlﬁ 30 14,044,970 9,649,805
Amounts due to associates F’EﬁﬂﬁﬁMA IE 24 125 100,939
Amounts due to joint ventures BNEER 5 20 88,441 797,393
Amounts due to customers for JT’&EHEJEZ/E}%"JIE?XIE
contract work 26 942,632 645,193
Derivative financial instrument TESHBITE 34 2,338 936
Taxation I8 943,784 511,844
Bank and other borrowings — RITREAEES —
due within one year R—FRE|E] 31 11,079,288 10,873,256
27,101,578 22,579,366
Net current liabilities mENBEFE (2,224,273) (7,216,492)
Total assets less current liabilities & ERAB A E 54,956,429 37,642,419
1 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R IR

At 31 March 2018 R=FE— N\E=A=+—8H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHIT
(restated)
(E31)
Equity by
Share capital (%N 32 49,685 49,685
Reserves & 28,406,311 20,500,548
Equity attributable to owners of  EREAQARIEA A2
the Company 28,455,996 20,550,233
Non-controlling interests IR RE T 4,274,104 3,396,346
Total equity T ABRE 32,730,100 23,946,579
Non-current liabilities EmEBALE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
- due after one year —R—F&3IH 31 21,293,133 12,745,179
Deferred taxation IREFE IR 35 933,196 950,661
22,226,329 13,695,840
54,956,429 37,642,419
The consolidated financial statements on pages 9 to 214 were FOR2I4B A MBWMEER -2 —
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors NERNAZ+—BREZSH AT EE
on 22 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: g WHUATATRERES :
ZHOoU sI LIU MING HUI
BEE 2I881E
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE

FEREIERERAT 1 1
2017/18 Bti§sReE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRALNAEEA
Investment  Properties Capital Non-
Share Share  Translation  revaluation revaluation  Special  Capital redemption  Statutory Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium resenve reserve reseve  feserve  reserve reserve funds profits Total  interests Total
& nx 73
BA BiEE ERRE  EREE  ERRE WIRE AfER  RORE  AeRe Zitih) & FERER &
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKSO00  HK000  HK$000  HKS000 HK$000  HK$000  HKFO0O  HKEO000
iz Thn Thx FEr TEr  fEr  TEn Tér  Thn T En Thr  TEn
(note 33 (note 33) (notei)  (noteii) (note il (restated)
(Wt33)  (Pak3s) (k) (Bt (Basii) (E31)
At April 2016 S
mA-A 49,104 7,074,281 (26,225) 30776 1,601 1602 (177,765) 1,107 985,325 9912756 17,852562 3,111,658 20,964,120
Profitfor the year ERER - - - - - - - 5 - LIATTR ANTT) S4696L 4694569
Other comprehensive EEAP2ERR
expense for the year = - (1078487)  (21,794) = = = = = - (1,100,281 (161,675 (1,261356)
Total comprehensive FE2E (FR)
(expense) income for A
the year = - (1,078,487) (21,794) = = = = = 447,732 8,047,451 385,289 3,432,740
Acquisition of additional WENEAF
interest of subsidiaries HhER
(note 378) GERE) = - = = - - (127400 - - - (127400 (4175 (151579)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  EMBAF
(note 38(B)) (F&388)) = = = o o o = = o o o 118605 118,606
Issuance of new shares YEHBAA
upon acquisitions of ERITRA
subsidiaries (GEZLION
(note 38(8)(v)) 1108 1,268,923 - - - - - - - 1,270,031 - 1,270,031
Repurchase of shares kG (527)  (538,068) = = - - - 527 - (527)  (638,59) - (538,595)
Capital contributionfrom ~ HEARZEER
non-controllinginterests ~ E&Z{LE
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - 16377 116377
Dividends paid by N
subsidiaries to FERER
non-controllinginterests ~~ ZfR& - - - - - - - - - - - (311,308 (311,308)
Dividends paid BRRE - - - - - - - - - (953.816)  (953,816) - (953816)
Transfer B - = = = = o = - 146,362 (146,362) - - -
At31March 2017 RZE-t5=A
(restated) =+-R (&) 49,685 7805136 (1,104712) 8982 1,601 1602 (305,165) 1,634 1,131,687 12959,783 20550233 3,396,346 23,946,579

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MREERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
BRALTREA
Employee

Investment  Properties share-based Capital Non-

Share  Share Translation revaluation revaluation ~ Special compensation ~ Capital redemption Statutory Accumulated controlling

capital premium  reserve  reserve reserve - reserve reserve  reserve reserve funds profits Total interests  Total
K& LI Eakh -0
Bx BiEE EXRR EGRER  EGER RIBE  FMERE S6BR  WEGR ieEE  RhE & FERER A
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn TEn  TEn TéEr  TEn Tén Thn Téx  Tin Tér THEn TEn TEn
(note33)  (note33) (note ) (note i) (noteiii)
(W3s)  (W33s) (Bizki) (Bti) (Riit)

At 1 April 2017 {restated)

RZF-t4RA
—R(EJl) 49685 7805136 (1,104712) 8,982 1601 1,602

(305165 163 1131687 12,050,783 20,550,233 3,396,346 23946579

Profit for the year EEER - - - - - - - - - - 6,095,153 6,095153 573,901 6,669,054
Other comprehensive FEAR
income (expense) for EXTON
theyear 53] = - 25158 (22959 = 5 g - = g - 250619 371923 2,022562
Total comprehensive FER2EUA
income (expense) (Bx) &8
forthe year = - 2,573,578 (22,959) = = = = = - 6,095,153 8645772 945,824 9,591,506
Aoquisition of additional  WEERTEAR
interestof subsidiaries  B5MER
(note 37(4) (Hata7) = = = - - - - 686 - - - 686 (31,143 (24,287)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEHI AR
(note 38(4) (HizE3i) = = = = = - - - - - - - e 4
Recognition of B EREE
equity-settled WA B
share-based AR
payments (note 36) (Mz36) - - - - - - 644,320 - - - - 644,320 - 644,320
Capital contributionfrom ~ FBA AR
non-controlling interests B2
of subsidiaries - - - - - = = = = = - - 175184 17518
Dividends paid by HEAARA
subsidiaries to kR
non-controlling B8
interests - - - - - - - - - - = - (214,504)  (214,504)
Dividends paid BIRE - - - - - - - - - - (1,391,185) (1,391,185) - (1,391,185)
Transfer B8R = = = = = = = = - 430447 (439.447) = = -
At31 March 2018 RZE-\E=R

S 49,685 7,805,136 1,468,866 (13,977) 1,601 1,602 644,320 (298,309 1,634 1571134 17,224,304 28,455,996 4,274,104 32,730,100

FEIRRIZIRERAT
2017/18 BA#§3R e
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

Notes:

0)

(i)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in
1995.

Capital reserve represent the effect of changes in the ownership
interests in subsidiaries on the equity attributable to owners of
the Company upon the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

In accordance with statutory requirements in the People’s
Republic of China, other than Hong Kong (the “PRC”),
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to transfer a
certain percentage of the annual net income from accumulated
profits to the statutory funds, until the statutory funds are
accumulated up to 50% of its registered capital. Under normal
circumstances, the statutory funds are not allowed to be
distributed to the subsidiaries’ shareholders as dividends.
The statutory funds shall only be used for making good
losses, capitalisation into paid-in capital and expansion of its
production and operations.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

(i)

(iii)

AEBZHHEBIEARBMKEMERQ
AlZBHEEEARBRMN -ANARF £
MHTSE B EAMEETREMETARRR
EEZZR

ERHEENRE R ERER - B QR
PR EBHARRER NEIEER £ -

REBFEARLANE (THE] TEEFE)
BVEERTE - R BEEMANE AR AR
FEMSEFEFWRAETAED LBEEE
Ed BREATETERHIMERONR
k- E—RERAT  EEEETFEDIRTZ
MEBARBRERKRE - EEESEAME
WAEER BXMCEBABARBREER



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
llV_\é\Eﬁﬁjﬁ%%
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
STy = =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FATT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES AT
Profit before taxation Szl 8,599,765 5,902,202
Adjustments for: KATHAE -
Change in fair value of investment BEMHE 2 N EEE)
properties (38,490) (31,686)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for trade 25 R E b EULAR TR B
and other receivables (B fEREE) 244,248 (1,289)
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREEIITE
equipment 1,049,946 872,640
Release of prepaid lease payments BIRTANMHEIA 55,954 48,362
Amortisation of intangible assets B AR 124,340 87,157
Change in fair value of held-for-trading FHEEERE
investments 2 AN FEEE (20,675) (16,038)
Share-based payments VARR 7 A AR R 2 644,320 -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant LEME - BE
and equipment & EE (Was) 1,663 (2,239)
Reversal of impairment loss on amounts FEUEEE AR R
due from associates and joint ventures G EREFIERE (8,362) -
Interest expense FEMRAZ 807,781 705,116
Share of results of associates RGBS AR EE (496,822) (293,060)
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEEBRRIFESE (758,313) (611,187)
Interest income MBUA (100,427) (69,386)
Exchange (gain) loss X () e (326,892) 101,075
Operating cash flows before movements EEEEERC
in working capital REXBHIRERE 9,778,036 6,691,667
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,233,414) (302,448)
Increase in amounts due from customers YRR
for contract work AT IZFHIEE N (1,266,926) (659,775)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N E A e AR TEIE hN (2,631,212) (764,057)
Decrease in amounts due from associates  JEURER N &) ZRIE R 194 34,188
Increase in amounts due to joint ventures JERTAE AR FIBIE N 85,701 1,742
Increase (decrease) in trade and other B 5 REMERIRIE
payables = CRd) 3,153,549 (30,515)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FEEEE AR
associates ;g Omd) g (110,330) 100,939
Increase in amounts due to customers ERER & #H T2 IEE M
for contract work 237,328 146,891
Cash from operations CEEBRELRS 8,012,926 5,218,632
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BT B EAER (1,567,215) (1,102,335)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING & £MEFTSIR & 558
ACTIVITIES 6,445,711 4,116,297

FERRIERERAT 1 S
2017/18 BAF&3RE



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 E#Z ==

—NF=ZA=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\f§ —t5
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
iz THER FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Interest received 2R 100,427 69,386
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEME - BEX
property, plant and equipment BEENES (174,168) (426,218)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BB AR  RERAIR
subsidiaries, joint ventures and BENFB MRS
associates (207,006) (237,100)
Placement of pledged bank deposits BEMBIFEREFA (449,767) (311,894)
Withdrawal of pledged bank RMEERRITER
deposits 724,945 55,681
Additions of property, plant and REME - BEREE
equipment (6,340,187) (2,639,147)
Additions of prepaid lease payments ANERRHEENER (298,262) (141,089)
Additions of available-for-sale REAHLERE
investments (88,505) (75,980)
Additions of other intangible assets REEMETLEE (50,318) (89,455)
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments FTiS 5008 978 930
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERERER
plant and equipment and prepaid TBREEFIBE L AEHIE
lease payments 305,289 106,831
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WHERB AR - MRS
cash and cash equivalents KR eEEEE
acquired 38 (448,324) (366,612)
Additions of investments in joint REREGBERRIZIRE
ventures (28,481) (25,568)
(Advance to) repayment from BEENGEEE G
non-controlling interests of (BX) EX
subsidiaries (6,250) 6,090
Advances to joint ventures mAaBAREHRBR (602,667) (46,948)
Repayments from associates R N RIER 2,522 11,770
Capital injection into associates REEAREE (467) (52,683)
Dividend paid by an associate BEARBMARE 331,815 5,644
Dividend paid by joint ventures BERNFBRMRE 60,290 44,200
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEDIAHRSFE
ACTIVITIES (7,168,136) (4,112,162)

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
llV_\é\Iﬁlﬁ‘;ﬁ%%
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F ZE—tF

NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt = FHET FH T

FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR
Interest paid EAIALE (1,048,925) (963,409)
Payment on repurchase of ordinary  [B138 & 8@A% 5 2B

shares - (538,595)
Dividends paid B A (1,391,185) (953,816)
New bank and other borrowings MEGRITAEMEER

raised 24,808,344 18,515,516
Repayments of bank and other ERBITREMEE

borrowings (17,299,071) (17,085,407)
(Repayments to) advances from MEARAT GER) B

joint ventures (794,653) 795,651
Advance from non-controlling M A R FEIEAR AR EA K

interests of a subsidiary 19,324 56,746
Repayment to non-controlling AP A R IR AR i 2 B K

interests of subsidiaries - (509)
Acquisition of additional interests ~ UKEEHI B A FI5EIMERS

in subsidiaries 37 (24,287) (151,575)
Repayment of consideration ERREER

payables (321,966) -
Capital contribution from M A R FEfEAR s

non-controlling interests of

subsidiaries 175,184 116,377
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to LhEEYNSIVRRE e o 5

non-controlling interests 2B (214,594) (311,308)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RE RS

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (PTA) e 3,908,171 (520,329)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RekReFEBEEL

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &0 s =88 3,185,746 (516,194)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 7R 4e RIES%EER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,724,646 5,496,941

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREE w2
RATE CHANGES 335,930 (256,101)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT & 27H& Kk
END OF THE YEAR REFEEE 8,246,322 4,724,646

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReMREEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 B &M
Bank balances and cash RITEERIRE 8,246,322 4,724,646

PR RIERERAT
2017/18 B3R



1

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of its registered office and principal place of
business are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of the Group’s annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
note 47.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and the functional currency
of the Company and majority of its subsidiaries is
Renminbi (‘RMB”). As the Company is a listed entity in
Hong Kong, the directors of the Company consider that
it is appropriate to present the consolidated financial
statements in HK$.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred
HKAS 12 Tax Assets for
Unrealized Losses
Amendments to As part of the Annual
HKFRS 12 Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and financial positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments require
an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets
if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control
of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 41. Consistent
with the transition provisions of the amendments, the
Group has not disclosed comparative information for
the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure
in note 41, the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

ERAHITIRKLEITEBTH
EERA (BB BEHREE
all) @)

BEESTHENETRRESSE (1§
HEN)

AEBEENAFEERERILFEXN -
FRENREEREAREMBEMSH
BHREREBESANGEREZDMESL
BEEY (BRERENRIFERSES) - it
SN BRAEATAE  HMAKBESREE
MREREIARRASRESIERE
ABzHRERE  MANBERERTSRE

BT S AMEXAEARBUTE
E(RERSRENED  (NEREG
S5 58 2 B B 2 428 o LAt 375 7
RHED : (NEXEDOTE (VA
TENED : REBED -

BEZETHEE BV RGEHZHKE
R E4RH - RIBIEFT AN Z 8B &
X AEEYEBRBEEFILBER -
BRI R4 BEIME RSN - BRI FIEK
W EH R EBER S P RRERFE -
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 E#Z ==

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and HKASs that have been issued but

are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(FRIC) - Int 22

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Amendments to
HKFRSs

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency
Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—ZE—NF=A=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 relevant to the Group are
described below:

all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other
financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39.The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors
of the Company anticipate the following potential
impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

. Listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value as disclosed in note 21: the Group will elect
to continue measuring these securities at FVTOCI
as they qualify for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9; however, the fair value
gains or losses accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve amounting to HK$13,977,000
as at 1 April 2018 will no longer be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss under HKFRS 9, which
is different from the current treatment. This will
affect the amounts recognised in the Group’s
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
but will not affect total comprehensive income.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. The unlisted equity securities as included in
available-for-sale investments carried at cost
less impairment as disclosed in note 21: these
investments will qualify for designation as
measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 and the
Group will designate these investments at initial
recognition at FVTOCI and measure them at fair
value at the end of subsequent reporting periods
with fair value gains or losses to be recognised as
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve and such
investments are not subject to impairment. Upon
initial application of HKFRS 9, the fair value gain
relating to these investments would be adjusted
to investments revaluation reserve as at 1 April
2018.The fair value changes accumulated in other
comprehensive income will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Amounts due from associates and joint ventures
as disclosed in notes 24 and 20 respectively: the
balances are under assessment as to whether
they should be measured at amortised costs or
fair value through profit or loss. The balances will
continue to be measured at amortised costs if the
contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

. All other financial assets and financial liabilities
will continue to be measured on the same bases
as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of
HKFRS 9 result in earlier provision of credit losses which
are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised costs and other items
that are subject to the impairment provisions upon
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 E#Z ==

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount of
impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at 1 April
2018 may be increased as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable
to expected credit losses provision on trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates and joint
ventures. Such further impairment recognised under
expected credit loss model may reduce the opening
accumulated profits and increase in deferred tax assets
at 1 April 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue’,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

« Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

« Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

« Step 3: Determine the transaction price

« Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

« Step b: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 may result in change of the
identification of performance obligations and allocation
of total consideration (including connection fee received
from the customers for the construction of the Group’s
main gas pipeline) to the respective performance
obligations which may affect the timing and amounts
of revenue recognition. In addition, application of HKFRS
15 may result in adjustment to the presentation of
amounts due from (to) customers for contact work and
advances received from customers. The application of
HKFRS 15 may also result in more disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - =

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well
as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify
a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$302,820,000 as
disclosed in note 42. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for short-term or low-value leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers certain
refundable rental deposits paid as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would
be included in the initial measurement of right-of-use
assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may
result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and amendments to
HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases’, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realizable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Afair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1,2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputsare unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

. liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
(i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting
a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to the financial assets and financial liabilities at
the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is amortised for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of
cash-generating units in which the Group monitors
goodwill).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interestis a
financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods

sold;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of natural gas and liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) are recognised when the gas or
goods are delivered and titles have passed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Deposits received by the Group prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.

Connection revenue from gas pipeline construction is
recognised when the outcome of a contract can be
estimated reliably and the stage of completion at the
end of the reporting period can be measured reliably.
Revenue from gas connection contracts is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of contract cost incurred for
work performed to date compared to the estimated total
contract costs. When the outcome of a gas connection
contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract cost incurred
that it is probable to be recoverable.

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction services is described in the accounting
policy for construction contracts below.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods and services, or
for administrative purposes, (other than construction
in progress and described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Building under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part
of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings
under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

Transfer from investment property to owner-occupied
property

An item of investment property becomes an
owner-occupied property because its use has changed
as evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation.
When an investment property carried at fair value is
transferred to owner-property, the property’s deemed
cost for subsequent accounting is measured at its fair
value of the date of change in use. Furthermore, the
property interests held under an operating lease that is
transferred to property, plant and equipment continues
to be accumulated for as if it were a finance lease.

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from goodwill
and are initially recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Anintangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, measured
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date relative to the estimated
total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable
will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
for contract work. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customer are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position under trade and other receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories, including construction materials, gas
appliances and gas for sales, LPG, coke, consumables
and spare parts, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model and those that are
transferred from investment properties under the fair
value model to property, plant and equipment. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land
is under a finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of
those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollar) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation before 1 January 2005 is treated as
non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer
and reported using the historical cost prevailing at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement
benefits schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
taxation’ as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realized,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction on production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as FVTPL, for which interest income
included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
the Group comprise held for trading financial assets.

Afinancial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 40.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from associates
and joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale
or not classified as (a) loan and receivables, (b)
held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets
at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period except for unquoted equity investments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale debt instruments
relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default and
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit
or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premium or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent financial
liabilities held for trading, which comprise derivatives
that are not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

At the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value arising on
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to associates, joint ventures
and non-controlling interests of subsidiaries and bank
and other borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instrument

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Equity settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date. Details regarding the determination of the fair
value of equity-settled share-based transactions are
set out in note 36 to the Group’s consolidation financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Equity settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity (employee
share-based compensation reserve). Market conditions
are taken into account when estimating the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. Vesting conditions
other than market conditions are not taken into account
when estimating the fair value of the shares or share
options at the measurement date. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on an assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity settled
employee share-based compensation reserve.

For market conditions, the Group recognised
share-based payment expense from employees who
satisfy all other vesting conditions, inspective of
whether the market conditions is satisfied.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in employee share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as a deduction
from the carrying amount of the relevant asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful life to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units (or a cash-generating unit) for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

RESTATEMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
acquired businesses through purchase of subsidiaries
of which the fair values of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired were
determined provisionally. During the year, the Group
made certain fair value adjustments, with reference to
the valuation reports, to the carrying amounts of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries
acquired as a result of completing the initial accounting.
The adjustments to the fair values at the acquisition
date of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities were made as if initial accounting had been
completed on the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

RESTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The cumulative effects of the above restatements on

4, E¥ @)

FRABHNEHR _F—tF=A=+—H

the consolidated statement of financial position as at ZIEEMBRARNEEZER A
31 March 2017 are summarised below: T 8
Subsequent
fair value
adjustments on
acquisition
of businesses
through
purchase of
As at subsidiaries As at
31 March 2017 (note 38) 31 March 2017
BRNEIB AR
WEEEBZ
RZZ—+tF HEATERER RZT—5F
=A=+—H (PH7E38) =B=+—H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT TAT FET
(originally stated) (restated)
(R51) (&51)
Property, plant and equipment 1% - W= MR 25,782,679 96,710 25,879,389
Prepaid lease payments BfHEERIEA 1,566,314 52,031 1,618,345
Goodwill S 3,354,612 (629,008) 2,725,604
Other intangible assets HipmpEE 3,003,196 715,232 3,718,428
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEEE (734,667) (215,994) (950,661)
Other assets and liabilities HitnEERAE (9,044,526) = (9,044,526)
Net assets REE 23,927,608 18,971 23,946,579
Non-controlling interests IR S 3,377,375 18,971 3,396,346
Other reserves items Hith A E1E B 20,550,233 - 20,550,233
23,927,608 18,971 23,946,579
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. T THBERZEERIR

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the following are the
key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

LA A0 8 R B RE S P i 2 AN SR B & 5T I
RS RBRZEBZBRENBEHR
At THREERZ A E 2 RR (K5
BREBHTREMBREFEANZEEREE
ZEERHERRAEHEZERNER)

PR RIERERAT
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition of gas connection
contract

Construction income from gas connection contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the proportion of the contract
costs incurred for the work performed to date over the
estimated total contract costs. Accordingly, any changes
to the estimated total contract cost may have material
impact on the contract revenue recognised in each
accounting period over the contract term, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests. Management of the Group is required to
exercise significant judgements in the assessment
of the extent of progress towards completion of the
construction contracts, budgeted costs to complete,
and the ability to deliver contracts within forecast
timescales as at the end of the reporting period for gas
connection income.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount which is
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value. When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill was
HK$3,079,624,000 (2017: HK$2,725,604,000) with no
impairment loss recognised. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation disclosed in note 22.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
The Group assesses annually the residual value and the
useful life of the property, plant and equipment and if
the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will impact the
depreciation charges in the year in which the estimates
change.

Deferred taxation

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$6,012,195,000 (2017: HK$5,526,864,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$157,423,000 (2017:
HK$128,288,000) of the tax losses. No deferred tax asset
in relation to these unused tax losses approximately
to HK$5,854,772,000 (2017: HK$5,398,576,000) has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In cases where there are future profits
generated to utilise the tax losses, a material deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the period in which the
estimated future profits are expected.

EETHBER 2 EEZRIR

(%)

M BERKBZITE

WE - BERREBEZITETIREMGA
FERFHANREREEENE - WL
MG RIREE - AEESRFFED
X BEARBZRKEEBNRATAE
H - MiBEBAERNRRA G - BIER
BT EBEERYEAEE ZFR
ZHEERBRETE -

IR

R—ZEBE-—NEFE=ZA=+—8" ' &%
BT E SRR Gz R ERBIE
& 18 £6,012,195,0008 T (= T —
+ £ :5526,864,000% 7T)° T #t
157,423,000 (= T — & F:
128,288,000/ 70) 2 HIEE B ERE
ERHIBEE - NEBIWERGE TR
MENERANZSERERHEERSIS
#95,854,772,0008 7T (Z & — £ F :
5,398,576,000/8 L) ZELEFHIAEE o
fis) B 18 2= 4555 A AR FE RL B /548 -+ BIA]
BESIBMENREMEBEEE  MZFEL
HIEEEBREFTEGEET R G 2
HMANESRS Ba R EM 2B ARE
TR ©
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

Revenue mainly represents the net amounts received
and receivable for sales of piped gas, gas connection
(including revenue from gas connection and other
contracted construction), sales of LPG, and value-added
services by the Group including the sales of gas
appliances, gas corrugated pipes and gas alarms,
provision of comprehensive gas insurance agency
services, provision of maintenance and renovation
services for the year and is analysed as follows:

6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

WA R EBER
A

WATZEFALKEEHEEEBRAR
R MEER (BEMRERREMLE
MTRZWA) - BIEBmRHE KIEE
REEHRRERBEEMRB[E - KAER
WER  MRGARRAEMEREE
BOERRT 2 B U R FEUGRIRF R >
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Sales of piped gas BERARMEE 22,612,904 13,778,572

Gas connection and other contracted ~ WARER R EMAE L TIE
construction 11,302,543 5,748,458
Sales of LPG BIL R BRI E 15,969,830 11,654,633
Value-added services B ARTS 2,946,681 811,660
52,831,958 31,993,323

Segment information o IE R

Information reported to the Group’'s chief operating
decision maker (“CODM”), being the managing director
of the Group, for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services rendered which is also
consistent with the basis of organisation of the Group.

The CODM reviews the results of Zhongyu Gas Holdings
Limited (“Zhongyu Gas”), an associate of the Group,
being accounted for under equity accounting separately
and thus Zhongyu Gas is presented as a single operating
and reportable segment.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE T — N\F=A=+—HILtFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment information (Continued)

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) Sales of piped gas;

(i) Gas connection;

(i) Sales of LPG;

(iv)  Value-added services; and
(v} Zhongyu Gas

Information regarding the above segments is presented
below.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 March 2018

6. WARZHEHR @)

WA @)

RISE BB R RAIESH - AEEY
SHRSELBMT :

() BERARBE
(i) RIS

(i) RACTRAHE
(v) ERE &
V)  FHRE

BRLADHZERRNTXE5

D EBARRE

AEBEZEEREZRDHE D ZWAR
KB

BE_F-/\F=/=1—HIFE
Sales of Gas  Salesof Value-added  Zhongyu  Segment

pipedgas  connection® LPG senvices Gas Total

BERMR HtEAR

BE RRER B EERE  oHMR  SB4E
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000
i i i T T i

Segment revenue fom extemal customers RESREF AN 2612006 1130256 15969830 2,946,681 - 52831958
Segment profi AT 2463300 4T6IE6  60B4TY  THASL 2561 B853SNS
Change nfairvalug ofinvestment properties RENENTERE 38,490
Interest and other gains HeRitha 153,580
Unallocated corporate expenses FARLTER (210915)
Finance costs HHER (607,781)
Exchange gan on translation offoeign currency BRI ERER AIRER L

mongtary items into functional currency Eila 207,729
Share-based payments IR BERBRS (644,320)
Share of resuls of associates NS | 251,151
Share of rsuls of ont ventures BlHAELA 28 798,313
Profit before taxation BHEEA 8,599,765

FERSRIEIRERARE
2017/18 BA#§3R e 6 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 E#Z ==

PR R MR

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

—NF=ZA=+—HILFE

6. WARZHEHR @)

DEHBARRE ()

BE-—F—tF=ZFA=1+—HIFE

Sales of Gas Salesof Valueadded  Zhongu  Segment
pipedgas  connection* LPG Senvices (as Total
BERIR ilday: e

HE MR HE
HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000

SERE TR 29ER
HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000

Tin T T Tin Tin Tin
Segment revenue from extemal customers RESPRERPLAPAN 19771857 G845 11654633 811600 - 3990
Segment profit BEdl 1989072 3207548 b4h,218 29539 90817 6128047
Change in fairvalue of nvestment propertes RENENTERY 31,686
Interest and other gains HERE e 73,33
Loss on iquidation of subsiciaries WELFREEX (77.484)
Liigation claim filez (67,76)
Unallocated corporate expenses FARATRR (205,300
Finance costs HER (703,116)
Eichange loss ontranslaton offreign currency BEINBEREE AngE
monetary items into functional currency Efls (69,649)
Share o rsults o associates N+ 20243
Share of results of ont ventures ey Ve 611,167
Proftbefoe taation T 5900202
* & EMEEBREMENTIRRA -

Including revenue from gas connection and other

contracted construction.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers and no inter-segment sales are
noted for current and prior years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Except for segment profit of Zhongyu Gas,
segment profit for remaining reportable segments
represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of interest income and other gains, head office
administration costs, change in fair value of investment
properties, litigation claim, loss on liquidation of
subsidiaries, share-based payments, share of results of
associates, share of results of joint ventures, exchange
gain (loss) on translation of foreign currency monetary
items into functional currency and finance costs. The
segment profit of Zhongyu Gas represents share of
results of Zhongyu Gas. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

6.

—NF=ZA=1t—HLFE

WARDEHER @)

DEBM AR E4E (&)

AN EE2Hz2HMHERAG KB INRE
P AEERBEFEMED MEHEE

LED B MG R BUR R 3T 2
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AN BT 2 ﬁ?&"*%ﬁ’]"* it A48
& 53 BB AT R EX B FR - ED B R
LN S %'@E‘Bﬁﬂlﬁfa$ %ﬁﬁ
MEQTFEES  FRFER WER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z—F— N\F=A=+—HILtFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WARDEESR @)

(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment TN BAREEHERLERKE TR
assets and segment liabilities that are regularly A EHEERDBEES

reviewed by the CODM:

At 31 March 2018 R-E-NE=ZF=+—H

Sales of Gas  Salesof Value-added  Zhongyu  Segment
pipedgas  connection PG semices Gas Total

EERAR Py

B HRER HE  RERR  GHER 2DME
HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0  HKSOM
TR TR TEn TER TR TR

fsets A

Segmentassets A9RE 685985 6602768 48285 13179 1516445 60055082
Investment properties e 2,99
Property,plant and equipment fo corporate) W - BRE R (D7) 53,084
Prepaid ease payments (for corporate) EREZE (A7) 34,697
Investments n associates HBENT RE 4,408,345
Investments n ointventures RAERAZRE 6,423,615
Amaunts e from associates BUmEAT 38347
Amaunts due from joint ventures ERABDFE 935,161
Available-for-salenvestments e 718 409,176
Deferred tax assets EitiRaE 204,325
Held-for-trading investments BESERE 4801
Other receivables for corparate) Bl (27) 618,118
Pledged bank deposits BERSHIER 290729
Bank balances and cash WEERRe 8,246,322
Consolidated toal assets GeAEER 82,058,007
Liahiities g

Segment liabilities Aiek 3209398 8158904 1,531,481 184,544 - 13,084,327
Other payables for corporate) EHEHER (A7) 1,903,275
Derivative financial nstrument fEEBTE 2,338
Tatation e 943,784
Bank and other borrowings BREGEE 323140
Amounts due o ont ventures ERRERT R 88,441
Amounts due o associates EABERT 125
Deferred taration EiE 933,19
Oonsolidated tofal iablties GREERE 49327907

7 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WARDEESR @)

(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEERAE @)
At 31 March 2017 (restated) R-B—tFE=ZF=+—H (E%)
Sales of Gas Salesof Valueadded  Zhongu  Segment
pipedgas  connection LPG Senvices (as Total
EERIR RlRESR
N B HERE MR AR
HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$ 000 Hk$000
ThL Thn Tin Thn Thn Tén
(restated)
()
Assets 413
Segment assefs AEE 813579 30986% 4312065 780 136811 &8
Investment properties e 21901
Property,plant and equipment for corporate) R e ) 55,868
Prapaid lease payments (fo corporate) BfiREE (27) 31740
Investments in associates HBEAFZIE 2763178
Investments i joint ventures WEERFZRE 5412087
Amounts due from associates EhBEDE 255016
Amounts due rom ointventures EUAEDA B 304,156
fuallable-for-sale investments ez e 304,304
Deferred tav assets EiEiREE 160617
Held-for-radinginvestments FlFERRE 07402
Otherreceivables (for corporate) KRR (27) 501,164
Pledged bank deposits BRI 617,676
Bank balances and cash BikRRES 472646
Consolidated toal assets GREERE 60,221,785
Lisbltes ff
Segment liablities Aek 2433155 5451884 904,004 91,626 - 8880729
Other payables for corporate) KR (27) 1414,269
Derivative financial nstrument iTEeRIA 936
Tasation HE 511,864
Bankand other borowings RREHES 2351843
Amounts dug o oint ventures ERAEDA B 797,383
Amaunts dug to associates ERBEAT 100,939
Deferred taration Eitie 950,861
Consolidated totaliabliies GREEEE 36,275,206

FERRIERERAT ’7 3
2017/18 BAF&3RE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

. All assets are allocated to operating segments,
except for the investments in associates other
than Zhongyu Gas, investments in joint ventures,
amounts due from associates and joint ventures,
available-for-sale investments, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and prepaid
lease payments for corporate use, deferred tax
assets, held-for-trading investments, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash of
the Group, and corporate assets of the Group.

. All liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation, derivative financial
instrument, bank and other borrowings, amounts
due to joint ventures and associates and deferred
taxation of the Group, and corporate liabilities of
the Group.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

Other segment information

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

6. WARDEBESR @)

Hitt o HEH

Sales of Gas  Salesof Value-added Zhongyu Segment
piped gas  connection LPG  services Gas total Unallocated Consolidated
BERAR BLRER
#E  MRER #E  BERE THER ADEE  KAR G
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
Tén TEn THn THn T TEr  TER  TEx
Amountsincludedin the measureof st ATEA BB
segment profit or oss or segment AHEENSE
assets:
Fortheyearended31March2018  HE=Z-N\%
ZA=t-BLEE
Additions of prepaid lease payments  ERTAEHELN 286,330 - 119 - - 298262 - 298262
Additions to goodwill EEEI 23,537 - 13,02 - - 36,557 - 36,557
Additions to property, plant and TENE - BEREE
equipment 6,459,520 - 14,617 - - 6,601,937 49,733 6,651,670
Loss ondisposal of property, plant ~ (HENE - BRERREL
and equipment FE (1,663) - - - - (1,663) - (1,663)
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEERH (124,340) - - - - (124,340) - (124,340)
Release of prepaid lease payments ~ EEBAEEFE (39,232) - (16722 - - (55954) - (55954)
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% B RikEHTE
equipment (984,259) - (57314) - - (1,041,573) (8,373) (1,049,946)
Alowance fortrade receivablesand B REMENEERE
other receivables - (74182) (170,066) - - (244,248) - (244,248)
Share of results of associates LN - - - - 25671 245671 251,151 496,822
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE-5—+E-F
(restated) =T-RIEFE (5))
Additions of prepaid lease payments  ERTAEHEEN 139,693 - 13 - - 141,089 - 141,089
Additions to goodwill HEEN 373,445 - - - - 37344b - 33445
Additions to property, plant and RENZ RRRER
equipment 3,179,004 - 193,869 = - 3372873 10516 3,383,389
Gain on disposal of property, LEWNE  HER
plant and equipment BUpd e 1,707 - 532 - - - 2239
Amortisation of intangible assets BAEEH (87,157) - - - - (87157 - (8715
Release of prepaid lease payments ~ ZEEMBEA (32.359) - (16,009) - - (48362 - (68362
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - BRERRENE
equipment (783,062) - (80,908) = - (863970)  (8670)  (872,640)
Reversal of allowance for trade B RNE AR
receivables 1,289 = = = = 1,289 = 1,289
Share of results of associates [ N = = = - 0817 90817 202243 293060
PRI RIERBRAT]

2017/18 BA#§3R e
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC.

All of the Group’s revenue is contributed by external
customers in the PRC.

None of the customers contributed over 10% of total
revenue of the Group.

The following is the information about non-current
assets other than financial instruments and deferred
tax assets by the geographical area in which the assets

6.

WARDEHESR @)
i & & #

AEBOEBERANGTHE -
AEEZHBMARBETENIIRES ©
MEZFPAERMAETEE BB AT 10%IA
bz o

AT RREEMEMEIDNIERDEE

(SBMTARBEREAERIN) HE
£

are located:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
(restated)
(&%)
Hong Kong BB 207,320 182,267
PRC EP 56,339,881 44,191,723
56,547,201 44,373,990
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

7. OTHERINCOME

7. Hi A

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FAT
Interest income MBWA 100,427 69,386

Subsidies from PRC governmental UKL FRL (BfdEta)
authorities (note a) 213,504 195,048
Tax refund (note b) BE (FizEDb) 82,107 48,604
Repair and maintenance services fee  #{E MIRERIGE 4,251 2,583
Other services income E A AR U A 84,971 41,946
Income from gas storage containers R LA - 15,681
Income from leasing of equipment SRR ON 48,626 40,608
Others Hith 30,017 31,788
563,903 445 644

Notes: itz -

(a)

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, certain
subsidiaries received subsidies for (1) the costs incurred
for connection contracts relating to pipeline network for
customers in new urban areas and replacement of old
pipeline network of the natural gas users in the relevant
cities; (2) the additional costs incurred in certain gas
connection contracts in which the connection fee is fixed
by the relevant government authorities in the PRC; and
(3) the costs incurred in removing the coal gas pipelines
and the coal gas storage and replacing with the newly
built natural gas pipelines. All the required work has
been completed by the relevant subsidiaries. All the
costs incurred were recognised as cost of sales in profit
or loss either during the current or prior years.

The PRC government authorities have granted tax
incentives to certain subsidiaries in the PRC by way of
tax refund for natural gas business operated in the PRC.

BEZ-)/\FR_ZT—+F=A=+
—HIEEFE  ETHBRAREHRNATE
BEEDRFERE  (WEERTOHTRE
FEEREBZERANRRARA
FPREEEEBERELNNKAE : (&
TEERRAH (ETNERETHT
BB BRI HEET) REL 2 BIMNK
T RQBHREREEREF LIRS
FREEZKA WA RAREE
R - BB AR EEKAAREL
FFeoIBCELZKRAEREAFELHB
EFE2BRETEBRIHEERRE

Fh B B A A AR T 2B T T
B E LR - AREERBEEERAR
K2R -
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2017/18 B3R

77



7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HbmzRKER
2018 2017
—B-NEF —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FAT
Other gains and losses comprise: Hbias MBS
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries M A RIERIBR (MIFED
(Note i) = (77,454)
Change in fair value of investment REMEZ N EEE
properties 38,490 31,686
Change in fair value of held-for-trading #FEB B E 2 A EEE)
investments 20,675 16,038
(Allowance for) reversal of allowance & 5 & H fh fE ki BR 70
for trade and other receivables (fsf®) &g (244,248) 1,289
Litigation claim (Note ii) FFEAERZ (KiETii) - (87,376)
Exchange gain (loss) b H Wz (E518) 326,892 (101,075)
Reversal of impairment loss on EUE A AR RAEE AT
amounts due from associates and FRIARE O]
joint ventures 8,362 -
Others Hith 15,157 2,239
165,328 (214,653)
Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group resolved
to dissolve two of its subsidiaries in the PRC which
were dormant. As at 31 March 2017, the Group was
in the process of voluntarily winding up these two
subsidiaries and loss on liquidation of the subsidiaries
of HK$77,454,000 was recognised during the year ended
31 March 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED) 8.

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) In April 2011, two former directors initiated legal
proceedings against the Company with regards to their
respective purported exercise of share options of the
Company. On 15 October 2015, the Court of Appeal of
Hong Kong ordered the Company to pay the former
directors a total sum of HK$279,291,000 as damages,
plus interests and costs of the trial and appeal.
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Court of
Appeal stayed enforcement of the judgment pending
determination of the Company’s application for leave to
appeal to the Court of Final Appeal on condition that the
Company made payment into court of the full judgment
sum of HK$279,291,000, together with HK$8,019,000,
being part of the post-judgment interests. The Company
duly made the payment into the Court. The Company
then applied to the Court of Final Appeal for leave to
appeal.

On 18 August 2016, the Court of Final Appeal decided
not to grant the Company a leave to appeal against
the judgment and, as a result, the legal action was
brought to an end. In addition to the sum of damages and
interests of HK$287,310,000 paid during the year ended
31 March 2016, additional interest of HK$87,376,000
was paid during the year ended 31 March 2017.

FINANCE COSTS 9.

HigzEREE @)

BeE - (88

(i)

RZZT——FNA  MEANEEBRE
EZEERITEAR R ZBRIEREAD
RREREF RN-_ZE—AEt+A+
AA BB LEFEEBRSEAQGAZE
AEE S T 48%50279,291,000/8 7T1E
BEEE - SINFE RFFA N EFRACA o
BE_Z—R"F=A=+—HUIFE "
FEREEEERITHR - AFADRIME
H AR AT H AR AP AT FRAB AR
TE AR B AN B ARERE R T H
SRABEA279,291,00078 T R 1E A ER 5
H|5R 1% F B #98,019,000/8 7T © AR A
BHBAERE S IE - AN BEIEEER
IRFEPTIR N FRRRFAIEREE ©

RZZ—"FNATNRB » KREEBR
ERE T ARG EHHRRE R EFRAFF
] El - WEERFAD SR - B
HE_Z—XR"EF-A=+—HLFEX
TEBSE K& F) B £%8287,310,0007 7T
Gy BEZZT—+F=ZA=+—HLF
&> H5851NF 887,376,000/ 7T ©

MBEER

RITREMEEZFE

Interest on bank and other

2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT

borrowings 1,119,264 963,409

Interest capitalised to construction BRI RERZFE
in progress (311,483) (258,293)
807,781 705,116

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying
a capitalisation rate of 4.53% (2017: 4.46%) per annum
to expenditure on qualifying assets.

AEERNEBAERNZEERATIES
BE—RUEEEHES  RARGEREE
B 24.53% (T — L% : 4.46%)
MEFEEERLRAHE o

PR RIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

10. TAXATION

10. BiIE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THT FAT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ZEFTS R 2,022,350 1,229,483
Deferred taxation (note 35) FEIERIE (FI3E35) (91,639) (21,977)
1,930,711 1,207,506

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group
had no assessable profit derived from Hong Kong for
both years.

The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% except for
the tax relief explained below.

Certain PRC group entities are entitled to the preferential
tax rate pursuant to the relevant regulations applicable
to enterprises situated in the western region of the PRC
and high technology enterprises. The applicable tax rate
of those PRC group entities is 15% for the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017: 15%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

10. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

(Loss) profit before

10. BiIE (&)

FERBEFSBa NEME2EBAR
FAURERBLAT (B1R) B A 2 HERIT -

Hong Kong PRC Total
B0 o st

2018

—Z2-N\F
HK$'000

FER

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
T+ F I T el — T — -
HK$000 FLLEH0EE  HK$000 FLLEHLIE  HK$000

TET BRial  THAT el TAT

e BBAT (BI8) WF  (764,506) (223,113) 9,364,361 6,125,315 8,509,765 5,002,202
Tax at the domestic income  ZBR BT ST &

tax rate HE 7B (126,158) (36,814) 2,341,090 1,531,329 2,214,932 1,494,515
Tax effect of share of il YNETE S

results of associates 2hEyE - - (124,206)  (73,265) (124,206)  (73,265)
Tax effect of share of [EIEEEARIEE

results of jointventures  ZBIBHE = - (189,578) (152,796) (189,578) (152,796)
Tax effect of expenses BTIEMS

not deductible for tax AAHRAEY

purpose 2B 2 106,342 14,417 62,994 24,933 169,336 39,350
Taxeffectofincomenot  FEIEM & B/AZRH

taxable for tax purpose WAZ BB 2 (4592)  (9,658)  (86,147)  (49,641)  (90,739)  (59,299)
Tax effect of estimated tax W MR 2 {35718

losses not recognised Eiay BiEY e 24,408 32,085 77,067 90,076 101,475 122,131
Tax effect of income taxat  1REEF k5t

concessionary rate Frigfie iR & = - (150,509) (163,130) (150,509) (163,130)
Taxation g - 1,930,711 1,207,506 1,930,711 1,207,506

Note: The applicable tax rate for Hong Kong and PRC are 16.5%

(2017:16.5%) and 25% (2017: 25%) respectively.

M EERTPBRZEARES B A16.5%
ZE—+F:16.5%) R25% (= F
—+4F 1 25%) °

FERSRIEIRERARE
2017/18 Bti§sReE
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11. PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after AN [E 55 FI| 2 F0BR

charging (crediting): (FtA) TFIRIE
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE B &
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREEZITE
equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments BHERNHEERE
Amortisation of intangible assets including BIEREEERARA 2
in cost of sales B AEEN
Minimum lease payments for operating BREANTIER 2&%
leases in respect of: Mz =EHEE :
- rented premises —HEMHE
- equipment —&fE

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and HE¥Z - K= &&HE

equipment Z e (Es)
Share of tax of associates (included in share FE{REGE AT ZFE (51
of results of associates) N RN )
Share of tax of joint ventures (included in  EIh&EAEZHE (5
share of results of joint ventures) ANEEEERRIZER)
Staff costs: BT :
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) BEME (MisE12)
Salaries and allowances of other staff Hih B T 7 38 K& 28,
Share-based payments of other staff HAith B T AR &
RS
Contributions to retirement benefit BEME T RERR
scheme of other staff BRFHEIE R
Less: Amount capitalised in construction & : BFAEEZIIR
in progress BARZ &

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses  #tIA NEH R A

in respect of: RS 2 TFEKA -

Sales of piped gas BEERARMEE

Sales of LPG BRIEAHREE

Contract costs recognised as expense in MR ERTIRE %
respect of gas connection construction RAFAZHE LKA
contracts

Rental income from investment properties &Y EE ZHE WA
less outgoings of HK$599,000 (2017: RS2 $8599,00078 7T
HK$1,095,000) (ZF—+tF:

1,095,000/ 7T)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

1. NEERF

2018 2017
Sasd -z =
HK$’000 HK$000
TR i
9,688 9,000
1,049,946 872,640
55,954 48,362
124,340 87,157
176,562 147,044
29,400 32,701
205,962 179,745
1,663 (2,339)
186,321 76,485
237,081 172,997
286,285 42,192
1,826,788 1,477,332
408,190 -
487,218 384,883
(118,976 (43,508)
2,889,505 1,860,899
18,903,499 11,633,875
13,838,253 9,968,700
4,711,834 1,205,810
37,453,586 22,808,385
(21,034) (25,300)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN’S
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 19
(2017: 16) directors and the chief executive disclosed

12. EERITERENE

BIEEAETRNEATHEAIHEEZE
NN E19% (ZE—+ % :16%8)

pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies EERETRITRABZHMEWT -
Ordinance, were as follows:
2018 —2-N\F
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors’ and other incentive benefits Share-based Total
fees  benefits payments scheme  payments emoluments
HeR REAAH BAER  HARGA
Ezhe HiER RERE SHEfS  EHHEX  HefE8
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx  THEzn TR THET THET THT
(Note iv)
(Hizkiv)
Executive directors HiTEF
Mr. Zhou Si (Chairman) AR (FE) - - - - - -
Mr. Liu Ming Hui (Executive ~ ZI8RfE 4

Chairman and Managing (HTEEE

Director) EFpgm) = 8,340 7,200 18 96,722 112,280
Mr. Huang Yong BBEA - 7,798 6,600 18 96,722 111,138
Mr. Zhu Weiwei AEREE - 3,480 2,250 18 4,693 10,441
Mr. Ma Jinlong et = 2,400 1,800 - 4,603 8,893
Ms. Li Ching FRERT - 840 560 - 4,603 6,093
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Yu Jeong Joon (Vice aDES &

Chairman) (AIZE) 300 - 100 - 9,387 9,787
Mr. Kim Yong Joong (Note )~ £ %4 (FisE) - 1,674 1,600 - 4,693 7,967
Mr. Liu Mingxing ZImRMS 300 - 100 - 1,396 1,796
Mr. Arun Kumar Manchanda ~ Arun Kumar

ManchandaZt 300 - 100 - 1,396 1,796
Mr. Jiang Xinhao ZERE - - - - -
Ms. Liu Chang (Note iii) 2t (Wit - 535 - - 543
Mr. Kwon Woonsang (Note iii) ESZARC A (HizEiii) - 571 - - - 571
Independent non-executive  BUFHTEE

directors
Ms. Wong Sin Yue, Cynthia ~ E=fEIZL 600 - 200 - 2,347 3,147
Mr. Zhao Yuhua BEERE 540 - 180 - 2,347 3,067
Dr. Mao Erwan o8RBT 540 - 180 - 2,347 3,067
Mr. Ho Yeung (Note ii) A (R 240 - 120 - 2,347 2,707
Ms. Chen Yanyan =3 401 - 120 - 2,347 2,868
Ms. Zhang Ling (Note iii) Fxsx (i) 124 - - - - 12

3,345 25,638 21,110 62 236,130 286,285

FEIRRIZIRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN’S 12. EERHTEFEHE @)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
2017 —E—tF
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors’ and other incentive benefits Total
fees benefits  payments scheme emoluments
Fek  KBEE  RUKEN  MRHA
E3e  EMER  RBRE HEfR EEOREX
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FHL FHL FHL FHL
(Note iv)
(PzEiv)
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Zhou Si (Chairman) BABLE (£E) = = - - -
Mr. Liu Ming Hui (Executive SRR (BTEE
Chairman and Managing Director) ~ #EZH4E) - 7,770 4,800 18 12,588
Mr. Huang Yong BBEA - 7,678 4,400 18 12,096
Mr. Zhu Weiwei REEEE = 3,400 1,500 18 4918
Mr. Ma Jinlong BeEEE = 2,400 1,200 - 3,600
Ms. Li Ching £y = 840 350 - 1,190
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Yu Jeong Joon (Vice Chairman) ~ &iDES A (BIZE) 300 - 100 - 400
Mr. Kim Yong Joong (Note i) SAMEE () - 2,400 1,000 - 3,400
Mr. Liu Mingxing ZIRRES 300 - 100 - 400
Mr. Arun Kumar Manchanda Arun Kumar Manchanda
yiated 300 = 100 = 400
Mr. Jiang Xinhao ZERE = = = = =
Independent non-executive directors  BUFHTEE
Ms. Wong Sin Yue Cynthia EfEINZL 600 - 200 - 800
Mr. Zhao Yuhua HEERE 540 - 180 - 720
Dr. Mao Erwan £l 540 - 180 - 720
Mr. Ho Yeung (Note ii) a4 (Fitstin) 360 - 120 - 480
Ms. Chen Yanyan RA# L 360 - 120 - 480
3,300 24,488 14,350 54 42,192
Notes: BftzE -
(i)  Removed on 7 November 2017 () RZE—tF+—AtAKREHE
(i) Resigned on 27 November 2017 (i) RZT—+F+—A=Z+tBEE
(i) Appointed on 27 November 2017 (i) MNZE—+tF+—A-+tBEZFT
(iv) Performance related incentive payments were (ivy REEERBFERFNEZESET
determined by the remuneration committee, having EF2EZESRARAEE 2 KLEHE
regard to the performance of directors and the Group’s i o

operating result.
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13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z ==

DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments and
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

Mr. Liu Ming Hui is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above
included those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, of the
five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, all of them were directors which included the
Executive Chairman of the Company whose emoluments
are included in note 12.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the chief
executive or the directors as an inducement to join the
Group or as a compensation for loss of office for both
years.

Except for Mr. Zhou Si and Mr. Jiang Xinhao who have
waived their rights to receive remuneration for the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there was no
arrangement under which the chief executive or a
director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

12.

13.

RE BRI
—NEZA=+—HILFE

EERHTEFEHNE @

NEMRBOTES I METRZABES
BEARARAKEER 2 R

A EFRIEMTTES 2 & KRB I
TEEZMETERMREEEART
BEEZR -

FERENMAARB ZITHAR - £
AR E e B EEEITRAR
RERRIEAASE -

EEMS
RBE-F-—N\ER-F—LF=A=
t—BLFE  ARESEFZ D4R

AZHBEE (BEARTNITER)
BERAMESE N2

RZMEFEAEEHEREZTHA
BREEXNEAMSER/MAREE
Z RS HBRARE -

BE_ZT-N\FR_F—tF=A=+
—BLEEE  BRABREEREFRERE
MERSEDME 2N BE-F
—NEFER_F-—tF=ZA=1t—HLHF
B TRARKESHERBEMN L
MELRTHAREDRHNE -

PR RIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. BE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT

Final dividend paid in respect of year BRNEZEZE-_ZT—tF=A=1

ended 31 March 2017 of HK$0.2 —RIFFESR0.2ET (=
(2017: HK$0.1446 in respect of year T—+F HEZT—RF
ended 31 March 2016) per share —A=+—HItFEZK
0.144687T) 2 REARLS 993,704 710,041
Interim dividend paid in respect of six ~BEftEE-ZT—+FENA=
months ended 30 September 2017 + B [E75{E A &R%0.0848 7T
of HK$0.08 (2017: HK$0.05 in (Z2—tF BE_T—
respect of six months ended NEAA=TRHIENER
30 September 2016) per share fA%0.0577T) < R AR B 397,481 243,775
1,391,185 953,816
Afinal dividend of HK$0.27 in respect of the year ended EEEERBEE T - N\F=ZA=
31 March 2018 (2017: final dividend of HK$0.20 in T-BLEFESR27BT (ZE—+
respect of the year ended 31 March 2017) per share FHEZZT—tF=-A=+—HIEF
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to EER0.208B T2 RHRE) 2 KK
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general B EASRREREERRAG I ES
meeting. AEE -
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per RABHEEARIEERERNREERT
share attributable to the owners of the Company is TR MBI BUREE -

based on the following data:

2018 2017
—B-N\F Tt
HK$’000 HK$000
TEr THT

Earnings for the purposes of basic and  sTEERER KL #EEE T~
diluted earnings per share, being profit & #| (BIARRRHEE A
for the year attributable to owners of  JE{HZAREE%F))
the Company 6,095,153 4,147,732

8 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z ==

nancial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

—N\F=RA=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 15. #KRER @)
2017
—E—+F
000
T
Weighted average number of ordinary — sTE&SIREREF| 2 &
shares for the purpose of basic TR
earnings per share 4,968,519 4,908,043
Adjustment for effect of dilutive BREEEE BT
potential ordinary shares:
Share options (Note) R (MsE) 109,324 =
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ sHESREERF 2 L@
shares for the purpose of diluted D
earnings per share 5,077,843 4,908,043

16.

Note: The computation of diluted earnings per share for the Wi HE_T—tEF=A=+—HBLFE K
year ended 31 March 2017 did not assume the exercise BERMNNZHENBBRITERRRZER
of the Company’s outstanding share options as the TEBRE  BHEXEBERECLITEES
exercise price of those share options was higher than the R2017 BB F ERD 2 FImE -
average market price of the shares for the 2017 financial
year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BEYE

HK$'000
FAT

At 1 April 2016 RZE—XR"FHA—H 190,450

Exchange adjustments ME 5 SHE (2,915)

Change in fair value NEEEE) 31,686

At 31 March 2017 R-B—tF=A=+—H 219,221

Exchange adjustments M 5 SR B 15,218

Change in fair value NEEEH 38,490

At 31 March 2018 R-F-/\F=A=1t—H 272,929

PR SRIEIRER AR
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s investment properties are analysed as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

16. REWE @)

AEBZEEMESFTMOT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FHTT
Properties held: BEZME -
- in Hong Kong —(UREE 172,500 145,200
- inthe PRC — R 100,429 74,021
272,929 219,221

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
in Hong Kong at 31 March 2018 has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out as on the
respective dates by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group. The resulting surplus of
HK$27,300,000 (2017: HK$19,200,000) was credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to comparable market transactions available
in the relevant markets for similar properties in the
similar locations and conditions.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
in the PRC at 31 March 2018 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out at these dates by
CHFT Advisory and Appraisal Ltd. (2017: Crowe Horwath
(HK) Consulting & Valuation Limited), independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group. The resulting surplus of HK$11,190,000 (2017:
HK$12,486,000) was credited to consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable
market transactions available in the relevant markets
for similar properties in the similar locations and
conditions.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as 31 March
2018 and 2017 are as follows:

16. REWE @)

AEE 2 RIFLLBLORH ARIE
TRERERNBEZMERERTIARF
ERVNERBRY ABRCEREYE -

AERR_ZE—NFAR_ZTE—LtF=A
=t HHNEREMERBBAFESH
ERAFBIT ¢

Fair value Level 3

Commercial property units located in
Hong Kong

Offices located in the PRC R BRPHAE

R EBHEAYREL

DAVE-FE=R
2018 2017
—EB-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
172,500 145,200
100,429 74,021

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the management of
the Group works closely with the independent qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level
3 fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of
the fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the
Company.

Information about fair value measurements
using key unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values for investment
properties and the key unobservable inputs used in the
valuation models.

FALBEEASEHE=MR -

RESHK  ARBEEERBTAE
BN ERERAE  RESRAT
B REEEA EEAERBA
Bif - HEEATEAEAZE  AH
FHRERARATNEERE -

FHREAZENTBRHNARE
ZAVEFE (B=R) 2&H

TRETUBREMEETE R FERPTA
RETERGEEREMBEETABRE
B ABUE -

PR RIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements
using key unobservable inputs (Level 3)

16.

BEWE @)

FHREATZEATBENAYE
ZAFEFE (B=H) &R

(Continued) (#&)
Relationship of
Valuation ~ Unobservable Range of unobservable
Description Fairvalueasat31March  techniques inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FTRERARE
B RZA=+-B2AVE fER:  TUBRBAHE FTRERARBEE BAVEZBE
2018 2017
= DLa _T+fF
HK$000 HK$ 000
TiT ThL
Commercial units 172,500 145,200  Comparison  Adjusted transaction price  HK$28,957 - HK$46,613 The higher the adjusted
located in approach to reflect marketvalueof  per square foot (2017: transaction price the
Hong Kong ik similar properties HK$25,400 - HK$40,600 per  higher the fair value
R EES BRERHERARR square foot) BRERSERER
i BUMEHTE BYHRBITERELH613  ATEER
AL (Z2—t5: §¥AR
26,400 T 240,600/7T)
Offices located in 100,429 74,021 Comparison  Adjusted transaction price ~ RMBB,272 - RMBG68,756 The higher the adjusted
the PRC approach to reflect direction and per square meter (2017: transaction price the
IR ENHAE HEE height RMBA,000 - RMB69,065 per  higher the fair value
ERER HERNRS square meter) ERERHERER
FRkEE BYARARBB2E NFERS

AR68,7567 (ZB—+
£ §ERKAREI 000
ZAR%69,0857)

272,929 219,221

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolio and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are
held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors
of the Company have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to the Group’s investment properties
has been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 1% - BERRE

Leasehold Machinery  Furniture
land and Construction and and Motor
buildings  Pipelines inprogress equipment  fixtures  vehicles  Vessels Total
BELH FRRER
kT EE KEIR HERZE #E RE ff @it
HKS000  HK$'000 HKP000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR Thn T TAr  TEr  TER  FEL  TEx
cosT A
At 1 April 2016 RIB—F
MA-A 2,904,060 13830331 6072449 3320860 352331 647590 182,762 27,310,383
Exchange adjustment ERAR (114594)  (736,920)  (304,983)  (206,695)  (20490) ~ (39,352)  (10,716) (1,441,749
Additions HE 78121 149,681 2,880,260 162,354 17,726 82,687 12,560 3,383,389
Acquired on acquisitions of  WEHEBAE]
subsidiaries ik 358,848 906,725 193,663 328,631 7,790 24,827 - 1,820,484
Disposal for the year FRitE (11,952 (38,309) - (48563 (17129)  (43.484) - (159433)
Reclassification B E 136,956 1971,198  (2,195,008) 80,018 3,391 3,445 - -
At 31 March 2017 (restated) R=Z—+E=A
=+—B(Z5)) 3351439 16082710 6646381 3637605 334619 675713 184607 30,913,074
Exchange adjustment AR 262,247 1,663,887 761958 356,611 65,942 72,218 19699 3,202,562
Additions E 87,425 171,138 5998855 137,651 17,19 239,382 - 6,651,670
Acquired on acquisitions of  WEEMBA A
subsidiaries & 5,901 12,386 13,564 3,639 1,457 622 = 37,569
Disposal for the year ERiE (6885  (10,143) - (3700 (1691)  (80,027) - (147,948)
Reclassification Eiipnd 39710 2750547  (2819,228) 25,280 3,601 - - -
At31 March 2018 RIZ-N\§
ZA=t-B 3740837 20670525 10,601,530 4125084 406737 907908 204,306 40,656,927
DEPRECIATION AND WERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2016 RZZ-1F
MA-A 455924 2,163,587 - 1376206 186,272 224,431 54,357 4,460,775
Exchange adjustment EREE (13,407)  (125,325) = (66,832  (17.489)  (10,139) (3,000  (236,192)
Provided for the year ENAE 87,270 448746 - 239,341 2697 60612 12974 872,640
Eliminated ondisposals ~ tHERFH (3091)  (4,556) - M09 g0 (27,65 - (835%9)
At 31 March 2017 WZE—+F
=A=1-H 526,696 2,482,452 - 1527684 185270 247,252 64,331 5,033,685
Exchange adjustment AR 41603 282,483 - 154,092 42,366 26,186 6579 553309
Provided for the year FNEE 115533 587,465 - 27942 28,883 76,604 13,469 1,049,946
Eliminated on disposals i ERsHE (1,101) (850) - (14999 (4783)  (46,699) - (68426)
At 31 March 2018 R-Z—)\F
ZA=1-H 682,731 3,351,550 - 1894725 251,736 303,393 84,379 6,568,514
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
ZA=t-B 305806 17318975 10,601,530 2230359 155,001 604515 119927 34,088,413
At31 March 2017 (restated) RZZE—+%=F
=B (Z5)) 2824743 13600258 6646381 2109921 149349 428461 120,276 25,879,389
R RIZIRE R AT
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)
The pipelines of the Group are located in the PRC.
The above items of property, plant and equipment other

than construction in progress are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings remaining terms of the
leases or 50 years
Pipelines Over the shorter of 30 years

or the operation period of
the relevant company

Machinery and 5%-10%
equipment
Furniture and fixtures  15%-50%
Motor vehicles 25%
Vessels 7% (new vessels acquired

from suppliers) or 34%
(acquired from second
hand market)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, interest
capitalised in construction in progress amounted to
HK$311,483,000 (2017: HK$258,293,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group is
in the process of obtaining title deeds from relevant
government authorities for its land and buildings
in the PRC amounting to HK$19,319,000 (2017:
HK$17,672,000). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group is not required to incur additional
cost in obtaining the title deeds for its land and buildings
in the PRC.

At 31 March 2018, the directors of the Company
considered that in the leasehold land and building
elements of certain properties located in the PRC with a
carrying value of HK$96,005,000 (2017: HK$84,441,000)
cannot be separately identified.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

17. W% - BMERKE @)

AEEZ EELMNPE -

EdmE - BMERKEERE (TERE
BIR) DREREATIIFERFTE :

HE+NMET BB TFEIZE0F

A Sk
EiE 0FHBEEAFIZ
A EH o BIEE
G ] 5% — 10%

RIEETEE 15% —50%

JRE 25%
A AR 7% (REHEEREBAZ
Frifn) 334%

(=FMHHEA)

REBEz-_ZE—N\F=ZA=+—81t
FE BraRIREAZNE A
311,483,000 (= & — & &F:
258,293,000/ 7T) °

REBEE_T—N\FEFZA=+—HILF
B AKBEIEREEE19,319,0008 T
(ZE—+%F : 17,672,000 7T) LA
Bl 7 £ ih N B A 75 B T A R S BT
BHERZY - ARREERE ~NEEH
ETERTRE L RAETF 2 TR
i EEFBINKA ©

R-ZE—NE=ZA=Z+—H' AR
AEERBETURPRZYERE
il 596,005,000 T (= & — + F -
84,441,000 L) » HE Lith RIEF P
DEE DB FR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

18. AN HERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(restated)
(&31))
The Group’s prepaid lease payments  AN&EE 7 FERNAEFEBRER
comprise leasehold land in the PRC B2 TS T R B2 Rim
and are analysed for reporting EOME
purposes as:
Non-current portion FEBNERER 5> 1,996,978 1,568,354
Current portion BEREE 63,225 49,997
2,060,203 1,618,345

The leasehold land and land use rights are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the leases.

During the year, the Group is in the process of obtaining
title deeds from relevant government authorities for
its prepaid lease payments in the PRC amounting to
HK$40,951,000 (2017: HK$30,782,000). In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group is not required
to incur additional cost in obtaining the title deeds for
its prepaid lease payments in the PRC.

ME LR+ iERENEREREE
FHEGABREREMEEKARKH
|§/% o

FAN - AEBEIERAEEL0,951,0008
7T (= F —+ 4 : 30,782,000 7T) AL
R R ZEMNAERENE EBT#E
EERFBERY - ARREERE A
EEBARERTEBNEEREBZ
B MEEBINKA -

PR SRIEIRER AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE R TIZ2RE
2018 2017
—E-N\E T+
HK$'000 HK$°000
T FHT
Cost of investments in associates: B30I /NI D N
Listed in Hong Kong REALT 881,765 881,765
Listed in the PRC RHE T 39,272 39,272
Unlisted JELET 2,970,043 1,945,510
Share of pre-acquisition dividend D IUEERIAR B (1,296) (1,296)

Share of post-acquisition profits and D {EUkEE1E % N & E At
other comprehensive income (net of Z2EBA (FOBRUEEE

post-acquisition dividend received) Fris % 2.) 1,802,036 1,067,568
Discount on acquisition of associates W REREE AR Z T8 232,970 232,970
5,924,790 4,165,789

Fair value of listed investments, based _FHi%& 2 A&
on quoted market price (EmHS®ETE) 8,651,717 3,002,010

9 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The Group had interests in the following significant

19. REEE DT 2 RE (@)

AEERATEEREATTHERE

Principal activities

IERH

associates: m
Proportion of
nominal value of
Form of Place of Principal registered/issued
business registration/  place of Class of capital held
Name of entity structure incorporation  operations capital by the Group
it/ il FEEE REBfER,
TRER EBEREA  RUBH bk RAgR BRTRAHELS
2017
T—tF
%
EEMIRMATIR Sino-foreign  PRC PRC Registered b4 44
BRERAA equity joint
venture
PHEERE  HE hE i
BESUETLEMM  Sino-foreign  PRC PRC Registered 39 39
BRAT equity joint
venture
PHRELE  PE HE Bl
EEMALEER  Sino-foreign  PRC PRC Registered 49 49
AARBRAE  equity joint
venture
PHERERE  HE hE Bl
WEEPEME  Sino-foreign  PRC PRC Registered 48 48
AREARR equity joint
([BEEFE])  venture
PHRERE  E it i
BEEBIEE  Limitedliability PRC PRC Registered 35 35
RiLERRAR company
BREARAF  +H H EEaliif
WILaREESIE  Limited liability  PRC PRC Registered 25 25
AAFERAR  company
BREAAF HE e i

(Gas pipeline construction

MREERR

Exploration, collection
transportation,
purification and sales of
natural gas

iRk B R
AARHE

Sales of natural gas

AARHE

Sales of nature gas and gas
pipeline construction

AARHERMREBRER

Refining process, storage of
LPG

RILBhRRRMIEE -
513

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
AARHERMREERR

PR RIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

19. REEE DT 2 RE (@)

Proportion of
nominal value of
Form of Place of Principal registered/issued
business registration/  place of Class of capital held
Name of entity structure incorporation operations capital by the Group Principal activities
it FEEX REBAISR,/
bEER EREREA  RUBH b s kil BRTRAEELS FEXH
2017
Bt
%
BMPBER Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered 40 40 Salesof LPG
BRAR company
BREELR  HHE it i RARHE
Zhongyu Gas Limited liability ~ Caymansland PRC Ordinary b4 44 Investment holding, sales
company of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
PR BREARR  HEHS i Bt RERR - RARHE R
REBER
BNENEHERR  Limited liability  PRC PRC Registered 44 44 Sales of natural gas and gas
HIRRER company pipeline construction
BRAT] BREARR  FH i i} RARHE MR EERR
BARRRAR  Limited liabilities PRC PRC Registered 25 25 Sales of natural gas and gas
BRAR company pipeline construction
BREARR  HE G i} RAARHE MR EERR
ERPRAARE  Limited liabilities PRC PRC Registered 25 25 Sales of natural gas and gas
EHERAF company pipeline construction
BREERR  HE i i AARHERMREERR
Rankam Limited liability ~ Bermuda Hong Kong ~ Ordinary 28 28 Investment holding
International company
HoldingsLimited BREMEAR  ARE BB g REER
Daily Pride Limited ~ Limited liability ~ Bermuda Hong Kong  Ordinary 49 49 Holding of project
company companies for trading of
heaters and boilers
BREERR  BRE &k Bt HREERAGRME LR

9 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z ==

%'5—"_/_\

—N\F=RA=+—HILFE

PR M EE

19. REEE DT 2 RE (@)

Form of Place of Principal
business registration/  place of Class of
Name of entity structure incorporation operations capital
i il FEER
bEER EREREA  RUBH b s kil
WIERMERE  Limited liability  PRC PRC Registered
BRDA] company
BREELR  E hE Bal
KEBERERR  Limited liability  PRC PRC Registered
BirER AR company
BREARAF  +H hE Faali
KHESMARL  Limited liability  PRC PRC Registered
RARERAR company
BREARR  PE HE i
BIEFAEAMA  Limited liability  PRC PRC Registered
BRAF company
AREERR  HE R Bl
\WWREXARFIAA Limited liability  PRC PRC Registered
RAR] company
BREARR  HE hE A
m%%%ﬁa% Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered
BRRL company
BREARR  HE R il

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered/issued

capital held

by the Group

&

B3R/

ERTRAEELA

31

27

40

30

22

25

2017
“E4F
%

Principal activities

TERH

27

40

30

22

25

Sales of gas meter, gas
pressure regulator and
gas pipeline construction

MRE - REBHSEHER
MREERR

Development of energy
technology and sales of
natural gas

ERREIAE RAAREE
Sales of LPG
RICEBREE

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

ARRBERMREBER

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

AARHERMREBRR

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

ARRBERMREBRR

PR RIERERAT
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Form of Place of Principal
business registration/  place of
Name of entity structure incorporation operations
iR TEEE
PEER EBEBEKL  Rut® ks
MIBEREERR Limited liability PRC PRC
NBERAR(HT  company
FEl)
BREERR  * i
B ERMRARA Limitedliability  PRC PRC
Al([B&&R])  company
BREARR  FE i

Note: The Group held a 12% equity interest in AT TEZ. The
investment in #TEL 2 was classified as an investment
in an associate as the Group has the right to appoint
one out of four executive directors in ¥ TEZ. Thus,
the Group can exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policies of #TE£.

At 31 March 2018, included in the cost of investment
in associates is goodwill of HK$1,700,850,000 (2017:
HK$976,339,000).

The financial year end date for Zhongyu Gas is
31 December. For the purpose of applying the equity
method of accounting, the consolidated financial
statements of Zhongyu Gas for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been used as the Group considers
that it is impracticable for Zhongyu Gas with its shares
listed on the Stock Exchange to provide a separate and
complete set of financial statements as of 31 March.
No significant transactions requiring adjustments took
place during the intervening period.
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2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

19. REFE N T 2 IRE (#)

Class of
capital

g tid

Registered

At

Registered

a i

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered/issued
capital held
by the Group Principal activities
rEEfEER
ERTRAEELS FEER
2017
EtF
%
12 Development, production
(Note) and sales of utility
system
(M) BFEOEHHRE  +ER
HE

- Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

ARRHERMREBER

Mz AEEFEMIERE 212%K A #
i@ o IANTHRE 2 REDERRBE R
AZRE  RARAEEAENINTIE
EMATESEHER —NESE -
it - ANE B AT ST R R B S MBS R
REEEAFE -

W-—ZEE—-NF=Z=A=+—8" #
ABERAZEERANETE AR
1,700,850,000/% (= & — £ & :
976,339,000/ 7T) °

PR REREAER AT A=
T—H- - REAERENE  A&ED
ERPHRARRNBE_T—+LF+_-A
=t BLEFEZEEMBERE - RE
RASERSTHRRA (KR DREE
PrEm) TalgelRER=A=+—RBx
BUTBZMBRE - RNERHE - 8
BREAFEHABRNEARS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of
material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each
of the Group’s material associates is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs for the purpose of
preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

All of the Group’'s associates are accounted for using

19. REEE DT 2 RE (@)

EEBE N RV BERML

AEBEEEEMENAZHBENME
T - TXEI 2 M BEREE
RRENEFRE VB RERMREREM
B EERNRR 2L R A B RKA
TEHE -

REBEMARERRRAERANIT

the equity method in these consolidated financial EIREaMBWMERAALR
statements:
BHEEPE WEETRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRt FAET
Current assets MENEE 857,452 1,167,953
Non-current assets IERENEE 3,743,847 2,638,207
Current liabilities nBaE (1,606,373) (1,136,440)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (5,013) (17,283)
Net assets FEE 2,989,913 2,652,437
Revenue g 1,789,316 1,589,988
Profit and total comprehensive income  F R F| & 2 EU A 4258
for the year 489,776 107,674
Dividend received fromPaERE B FREWEHRETEZRE
during the year 73,104 194,383
PR SRIEIRER AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19. REBE QT ZRE (3

Summarised financial information of EEHE A RMBEERSM (5)
material associates (Continued)
W E S E (Continued) WEEPE (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB E R E BRSBTS SRR
information to the carrying amount of the investments RZEERNA 2 IRERABEHK
in associates recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Net assets offia BB B MREREFEE 2,989,913 2,652,437
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ ANEERWBEETREZ
interest inMGERBF B BB LA 48% 48%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AEBRKEETEZ
in BREE R reflected in the Group’s  HERBREE (EAREEY
consolidated statement of financial REMBIORR P RE)

position 1,435,158 1,273,170
Zhongyu Gas and its subsidiaries PHRRIREREQE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET
Current assets MEEE 2,011,076 1,653,727
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,789,655 7,969,936
Current liabilities mENAE (3,676,669) (2,709,103)
Non-current liabilities EmRBaE (4,400,845) (4,108,629)
Net assets FEE 3,723,217 2,805,931
Non-controlling interests IR A 549,265 252,725
Revenue Wz 5,048,100 3,722,507

Profit and total comprehensive income  FREF| & 2 EUL A 4258
for the year 1,074,262 571,229

]»() CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19. REBE QT ZRE (3

Summarised financial information of BEEBRE N TMBEEREM (@)

material associates (Continued)

Zhongyu Gas and its subsidiaries (Continued)

FHMRREEKBAR (&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB B R ZE N AR S B SRR R
information to the carrying amount of the investments RZEERNA 2 IRERABEHK
in associates recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Equity attributable to owners of Zhongyu#4z& B FR&X T 23Rh 4
Gas reported in the consolidated BAREER AFE(hiER
financial statements 3,173,952 2,553,206
Less: Fair value gain on revaluation of & : 5t A% - BiE KRR
pipelines included in property, plant ZEEBEN AT ERE
and equipment (828,944) (480,240)
2,345,008 2,072,966
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRPRARZ EGE
interest in Zhongyu Gas e dadndlll 44% 44%
Goodwill S 483,469 483,469
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZANSEBR AR IRIAR 2 xS
in Zhongyu Gas reflected in the RHEE (EAEBEZ&RE
Group’s consolidated statement of BRSO 2R R )
financial position 1,516,445 1,396,611
FEIRRIZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19. REBE QT ZRE (3

Summarised financial information of EEBZ N TBMKERMSM (@)
material associates (Continued)
ERBER B ER
yAokE:]
—E—N\FE
HK$000
FHExT
Current assets mEVEE 2,228,613
Non-current assets IERENEE 4,942,863
Current liabilities mENEaE (4,216,807)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (1,222,107)
Net assets FEE 1,732,562
Non-controlling interests SRR = 215,382
Revenue Wz 3,483,716

Profit and total comprehensive income & P& FI| & 2 EUR A 4258

for the year 280,558
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LA B RS R R B OAR & B RS R R
information to the carrying amount of the investments R E R A RERE B -
in associates recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

2018

—E-N\F

HK$’000

FExT

Equity attributable to owners of &[5 /%7 BB E AR 1,517,180
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in REBEWES RO HERE

G ET R L 25%

Goodwill mE 704,833

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in B8P ANEBNERS B 2 R EEE
reflected in the Group’s consolidated statement of ~ (FEAREE 7 474 BRI K+
financial position ) 1,084,128

1 O CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of
material associates (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

19. REEE QN TZ2RE (18)
BEEBRE N TMBEEREM (@)

BRMSAEHFERZHENRNETE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHEx FHIT

The Group’s share of profit RE B ERRET] 170,041 84,893
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERZEBERRZ

Group’s interests in these associates  HERHAFTEREIE 1,889,059 1,496,008

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Cost of investment in joint ventures REERBIZIEERKA

20. REERAIZKRE

2018 2017

SEA ==

HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET TAET

—unlisted —JELEm 3,182,735 3,154,253
Share of post-acquisition profits and G UES 1% % A & EAth
other comprehensive income (net of ZHEWA FOkRYER
post-acquisition dividend received) FrUCER A% 2.) 3,189,830 2,206,784
Discount on acquisition of joint ventures W& & AR 2 IT:E 51,050 51,050
6,423,615 5,412,087
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20.
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had interests in
the following significant joint ventures:
Form of Place of Principal
business registration/ placeof  Class of
Name of entity structure incorporation operations capital
i,/ TERE
bxER EBERES AU bk RAER
WA R Sino-foreign ~ PRC PRC Registered
BRAR equity joint
venture
PHRELE  PHE P A
el il Sino-foreign  PRC PRC Registered
HRERBB AR equity joint
venture
PHRELE  PE hE B}
WA R P R T Sino-foreign ~ PRC PRC Registered
MREBRBBARME  equity joint
MR venture
PORERE  PHE i AT
BT Sino-foreign ~ PRC PRC Registered
HRERBRAR equity joint
venture
PORERE  HHE i el
ERRRIEFITE  Sino-foreign  PRC PRC Registered
MRARAR equity joint
venture
PHRELE  PHE h AT
RERARERAA Equity joint PRC PRC Registered
venture
ABL%E i i A

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

REERTRZRE @)

RZE-NFRZT—+tF=A=1+—
B AEERATEIERERATHESR

s

Proportion of
nominal value
of registered/
issued capital
held by the Group
rEEfSER/
BRTRAEELS
2017
S S
%

Principal activities

IRER

50 50

50 50

50 50

50 50

51 91

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

AARBERMREERR

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

ARRHERMREBRER

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

AARHERMREBRR

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

ARRBERMREBER

Nature gas refill service and
gas station administration

AARIMRRE KR ER
Sales of natural gas

AARBE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERR MR

20. INVESTMENTS

(CONTINUED)

IN JOINT VENTURES

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

20. AEERTRIZERE @)

Principal activities

IERH

Proportion of
nominal value
Form of Place of Principal of registered/
business registration/ placeof  Class of issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation operations capital held by the Group
i,/ TERLE FEBASER
i 244 ERRBK AUty bk RAgR  CRORAEERA
2017
—T—tF
%
Fujian Anran Gas Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49 49
Investment Company ~ company
Limited (“Fujian Anran”)
BRZAMAREER AREHERF P& P Bl
1A ([ERZR])
EERMAARGE Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49 49
BREMRT company
BREARR oE hE Bl
RATA IR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49 49
(RE) BRAR company
BREEDR  HH i EEali
AMEREBRMM  Sino-foreign  PRC PRC Registered 50 50
HRRBEEERAA equity joint
venture
PORERE  HHE i Bl
SEFMRERR Sino-foreign ~ PRC PRC Registered 50 50
B mIRR equity joint
FRERAA venture
PHORERE  HHE P AT
REMAERRER Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 40 40
BRAR company
BREERA  HE P i

Investment holding

RERR

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
AARHERMAEERR

(Gas pipeline construction
MREBERER

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

AARHERMREBRR

Retailing and wholesaling
of gas accessories and
provision of maintenance
service

TERRBERREN R
FRALGRE AR

Provision of pipe natural gas

RIEERAR

PR RIERERAT
2017/18 B3R

105
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS

(CONTINUED)

IN JOINT VENTURES

20. REERQATIZKRE (@)

Principal activities

FEEK

Proportion of
nominal value
Form of Place of Principal of registered/
business registration/ placeof  Class of issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation operations capital held by the Group
i,/ TERE rEEFBER
bRER ERRBY  RutH bk Bags  ERORIEELA
RMETLRILR Sino-foreign ~ PRC PRC Registered 50 50
LN equity joint
venture
PHSERE  E P Bl
SUETHTEMA Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 50 50
BRAFE company
BREERA  $E P Bl
ZHTRRRE Sino-foreign  PRC PRC Registered 49 49
BREEAT equity joint
venture
PHRERE  HHE P Bl
China Gas - SKE&SLNG Limited liability HongKong  HongKong Ordinary 50 50
Trading Limited company
tik - BRRARICAAR BREARR HE BB Bt
BHBRAF
REOPIEZEEE  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 51 51
BRAR company
BREERR  HE i afi
MMBLREES Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 50 50
BRAR company
BREARR  HH i Al

10
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Sales and distribution of LPG

BICRHRBERNH

Sales of natural gas,
petrochemical products
and gas accessories

KRR BlCERRRR
RAHEE

Sales of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction

AARBERMREERR

Investment holding

RERR

Sales of nature gas and
delivery of hazardous
products

ARRHEREhmES

Sales of natural gas

AARHE



20.

INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

IN JOINT VENTURES

Form of Place of Principal
business registration/ place of
Name of entity structure incorporation operations
it/ TERE
bRER EBRBEA  RUBH e
China Insurance Investment PRC PRC
Investment China Gas ~ Fund L.P.
(Shenzhen) Clean
Energy Development
Fund L.P
iR (RYN) REES e e
BRERERES (BRa%)
(BIRE#) (Note)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group

cooperated with China Insurance Investment Fund L.P.
(“ClIF”) to establish the China Insurance Investment
China Gas (Shenzhen) Clean Energy Development
Fund L.P (the “Fund”). The Fund is expected to have an
aggregate capital commitment up to RMB10 billion in
which RMB?7 billion and RMB3 billion will be contributed
by CIIF and the Group respectively. The Fund will provide
capital support for investment in the PNG, LNG, CNG
and LPG projects. Prior to CIIF having contributed
its committed capital of RMB7 billion in full and the
investment projects of the Fund having generated
income or stable cash flow, the Fund shall not seek
capital contribution of RMB3 billion from the Group. Up
to 31 March 2018, CIIF contributed RMB5,800,000,000
(2017: RMB700,000,000) to the Fund.

ClIF is entitled to a preferential return based on its actual
capital contribution (after deducting any redeemed
amount).

In connection with the Fund, the Company made an
undertaking to procure, among other things: (i) the
divestment of CIIF in the Fund; (i) the payment of
the preferential return of CIIF from the Fund; and (iii)
the preferential redemption of CIIF in the Fund in the
event that the Fund does not have sufficient funding in
satisfying the aforesaid requirements.

—NF=ZA=1t—HLFE

20. REERQTRIZKRE @)

Proportion of
nominal value
of registered/
Class of issued capital
capital held by the Group  Principal activities
REBAHER,
RAER  ERORAEERS FEXH
2017
—I—+%
%

Registered 30 Investment in piped natural
gas (‘PNG”), liquefied
natural gas (‘LNG”),
compressed natural gas
(‘CNG”) and LPG energy
projects

Eaali REBXMA ([PNG]) &
fLRER (TLNG) - Bl
FERR (TCNG)) RB1LE
MRARRARE

izt BMEZT—+F=ZA=T—HILFE &X5%

EHEFBERRIREES (ERE®B) (THR
®]) AR R FREFTR ORI BRERE

REZ (BRA&%) ([ZEx]) - ZEZ G
R HEREARKI1008T - P ARK

7018 T R AREES0E TS 5 Bl B R KA
EEAE - ZE LB APNG  LNG » CNGX
LPGIEERERBEATHE - RAREEH
REEARBIELIRALERBERZES
Txﬁlﬁﬁ Eéiqiﬁikiﬁuimﬁ‘ ’ E?g
TTERAAEESKAREIVBITHLE -
EZTZ-N\FEZA=Z+—8  dREEHZ
ESELREAL E K ARMS5,800,000,0007T
(ZZ—+%F : AR¥700,000,0007T) °

TRERBEEERBBLER NREACHE
BISIRR) S EEZHEEER

MRESHIRE » AR EMEL AR JUE@E (/H\
hEE)  (IPREEZESTHRE
HEM%? RZESKRENBEDR &(iii)$
AAHBELEBELFREEZESRENE
HEZESL EEHESHE N LER -

PR RIERERATE
2017/18 BiiReEs



For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - =

20.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

As all the relevant activities of the above entities require
unanimous consent from all joint venture parties, they
are accounted for as joint ventures.

On 9 June 2017, the Group cooperated with BOCOM
International Trust Company Limited (“BOCOM
International”) to establish the China Gas BOCOM
(Shenzhen) Clean Energy Equity Investment Fund L.P
(the “BOCOM Fund”). The BOCOM Fund is expected to
have an aggregate capital commitment of up to RMB10
billion in which RMB9 billion and RMB1 billion will be
contributed by BOCOM International and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries and the Group respectively. The
BOCOM Fund will provide capital support for investment
in the Group's 4G (PNG, LNG, CNG and LPG) energy
projects. Joint venture entity of the BOCOM Fund was
yet to set up as at 31 March 2018.

At 31 March 2018, included in the cost of investment
in joint ventures is goodwill of HK$265,806,000 (2017:
HK$238,621,000).

Summarised financial information of
material joint ventures

The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint ventures’ consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of the Group’s joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

—N\EF=ZA=1T—HLHFE

20. REERQTIZRE (@)

i LR ERA AR EDEEME A
ANASRIN-BAE  KEAKS
AR -

RZZE—tFNANA  AEBHERIIR
B EREARAR ([RIBERR ) Bt
BRAZIR ORI BB RRERERESE
X (BERER) IRBES]) - Eit
RIFESMBERAEKEAREI00
BT E$AE%%ﬁ*&AE%mF
TEDARBERERE2ENBA
K%Iﬁéoxﬁgﬁkﬁﬁﬁlm
4G (PNG ~ LNG * CNGMLPG) &R 18
BREREBEESTH RZZE—NF=
A=+—H RBEHEHEZEERAEE
AR °

TE-—NFE=ZA=+—H it AEE
kS }ﬂz$ﬂ’9@ﬁ§§2%265,806,0005%
—Z— 4 : 238,621,000 7T) °

R 35 & R

SR>
Hl

HIEH/‘\

ESERD

TS 2 B ER B ERRER SN
B EERRE 2 & E R RERE TR
RFIRERE °

AEBEFRAERERATFRAEIEN I
ERAMBERRAAL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REERRZRE @)
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of BEESELNTMBEREM @)
material joint ventures (Continued)
45 IR AN R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E2—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
Current assets mENEE 1,358,902 1,336,543
Non-current assets IEREEE 3,529,153 2,974,780
Current liabilities mEAG (2,394,128) (2,108,494)
Non-current liabilities JEmBEE (58,461) (288,463)
Net assets FEE 2,435,466 1,914,366
2018 2017
—z— 5 LS
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Revenue Wes 1,686,670 1,626,386
Profit and total comprehensive FRREF R 2B AL
income for the year 521,100 167,396




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REERRZRE @)
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of EESELRHMBEERBL (#)
material joint ventures (Continued)

R4S 4R (Continued) RS ()

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial F B R E R R B PR S B IS R B
information to the carrying amount of the investments in RZABRRZEEREELE

joint ventures recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHET

Net assets reported in the consolidated #7& BAFEEREKFT 2 BWAEFI

financial statements of FERIERFHRIR AP FEE 2,435,466 1,914,366
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRIFREER IR
interest in FEANSE R A WEE R LI 51% 51%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest & B EAS IR 2

in MEADERF R A reflected in the HmREE (EAEE 2
Group’s consolidated statement of RERMBIR R REL)
financial position 1,242,088 976,327
Fujian Anran and its subsidiaries BEZAREME LT

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E2—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Current assets mENEE 1,198,167 866,535
Non-current assets JEMENEE 3,050,715 2,397,338
Current liabilities mEAE (852,015) (755,793)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (768,244) (567,023)
Net assets FEE 2,628,623 1,941,057

1 1 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REERRZRE @)
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of EESEARMBERSM (@)
material joint ventures (Continued)
Fujian Anran and its subsidiaries (Continued) BREZAREWEBLE (8)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Revenue WS 2,114,245 1,497,447
Profit and total comprehensive FREH R EERALLLE
income for the year 687,566 166,256
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial A ER R BN RS B Rk
information to the carrying amount of the investments in RLBERRIZFEEEMELHE
joint ventures recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

2018 2017
—2-N\F —FtF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET

Net assets reported in the consolidated 4548 BTSIRKR T 2R

financial statements of Fujian Anran BRELARZFEE 2,628,623 1,941,057
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRBELZAZ BERE
interest in Fujian Anran = Faanalll 49% 49%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ANEEABIR LR 2 HEZS

in Fujian Anran reflected in the HEREE (EAREE 2
Group’s consolidated statement of ERE AR R )
financial position 1,288,025 951,118

FERSRIEIRERARE
2017/18 Bti§sReE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REERRZRE @)
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of ERREQAMBERBM @)
material joint ventures (Continued)
Fujian Anran and its subsidiaries (Continued) BEZAREWE AR ()
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BRI EXLFERZRERRNEE
individually material: o
2018 2017
—E-N\E ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
The Group’s share of profit REEELRT 448,257 338,617
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ANEBRZEESERFIZ
interest in these joint ventures EmAETIRAE 3,893,502 3,484,642

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of
material joint ventures (Continued)

Included in the balance of amounts due from
joint ventures are loans of HK$36,428,000 (2017:
HK$38,636,000) which are unsecured, interest bearing
at fixed rates 3.915% per annum. The remaining balance
is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand. The balance is expected to be repayable within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
shown under current assets. All balances are neither
past due nor impaired at the reporting date as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the Group believes that the amounts are considered
recoverable.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the balance of amounts
due to joint ventures of nil (2017: HK$794,653,000) were
of non-trade nature, unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. The remaining balance is
of trade nature aged within 180 days based on invoice
date.

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20. AEERTRIZERE @)

EEZSENRUBERSL (@

FABKEGEERRIRELEB ZEX
36,428,00055 7T (ZZ—+4F : 38,636,000
BIT) IR R EF3.915E < EEF
KRB o pEENERE - B RRERE
B o ERTERARREHRE T Z@EAR
BE WA ARBEE - ANEEERY
|EARE  BASEREEBESEGE
Al FURE - BRIRE BH - B &R E
BEANORE o

R-ZZE—NE=ZRA=+—H" st AE
NEERBREZEB AT (ZT—+
% : 794,653,000 L) W ABIEE S
goERE - RERIREREE - RE
ZoME SRR EEZEAEEREKE—B
N+H-

21. IHHEZRE

2018 2017
—EB—N\F ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHET

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, ~ M&EB FH 2 AES -

at fair value EAEESE 123,371 142,934

Unlisted equity securities, at cost less ~ 3E_FHIRZANE S @ HEAE
impairment HIME (FOBRIRE) 283,607 180,422
Other investments EAbim & 2,198 948
409,176 324,304




For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. AHEHEZRE @
(CONTINUED)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair REAELTZBRAESZDRAFET
value: The fair values of listed equity securities are R ETIRAE S Z A FETIRE T ®R
based on quoted market bid price. Change in fair value ZTHBEANEBEE RBE_T—\F
of the listed equity securities classified as available- ZA=ZT-HLEFE  wERARHH
for-sale investments for the year ended 31 March 2018 EREZ LHBRABLZ 2 A FEZESR
with a decrease of HK$22,959,000 (2017: decrease of 422,959,000 T (ZF—£F : B
HK$21,794,000) was recognised in the consolidated 21,794,000/ 7T) RNiraBE hEME
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ERA SRR FER
income.
Unlisted equity securities issued by private entities FEEMARATE B B R BB R A
incorporated in the PRC and Hong Kong. They are M ZFA AR BIFEAT o RS BARIRAK
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the AHBERERE  RERGEAFER
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair ACBEAK  ARARESERE A
value estimates is so significant that the directors of the FETREA AT S ©
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot
be measured reliably.
22. GOODWILL 22. BB
HK$'000
T
COSsT 5%
At 1 April 2016 RZE—R"FEOA—H 2,479,992
Arising on acquisitions of businesses (note 38) E4 A UBEER (FFE38) 373,445
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A B RRER (1,015)
Exchange realignment ME 5 SE B (126,818)
At 31 March 2017 (restated) R_ZE—+F=A=+—8 (F7) 2,725,604
Arising on acquisitions of businesses (note 38) E4 BB (Hf7E38) 36,557
Exchange realignment M 5 SR B 317,463
At 31 March 2018 R-F-/\F=ZA=1—H 3,079,624

The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and
in the financial year in which the acquisition takes place,
or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

AEERBFERNETRBZMBEE
elARmEEERE EENRKHN
EE AR ER - @ EATR

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

22. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 22. BE (&)

Impairment testing on goodwill BERE AR
Management considers that each subsidiary engaging EEERA  BEEREARAMNS &

MEB AR EBMRHE BRI AMR
HEXBAKRBILRSEEEM

in business of the sales of piped gas and sales of LPG
business with each subsidiary represents a separate
CGU for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing.

KRB NFR=F—LE=A=+—
ANEBNREES BNT

The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 March 2018
and 2017 are allocated as follows:

2018 2017
it SR 3 Tt
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER THET
(restated)
(&%)
Sales of piped gas business within UTEHBLARIZEE

each of the following subsidiaries MR E XK
Clever Decision Enterprise Limited Clever Decision Enterprise Limited 153,159 140,105
EMNPRH TR RERBRAF EMFR R TR ERBR AR 48,419 44,293
IR ER AR IR AR AR AR 16,795 15,363
HMEAREE SERERAR HMEAREE SERERAT 58,023 53,078
BETRETIRRERERAR HETRETRRERERAR 16,134 14,759
BRI TRRERAR LR EGPRBTRRERER AR 29,327 26,828
HAF ST RERER AR HARRBTRRERARAR 32,851 30,051
REERSEERERAR REERFEERERAR 126,500 115,719
IEREEE R ERAR AR I REDEE HaE R M ERAR DA 34,901 31,927
China Gas — SK Energy Holdings Co., i — B BRARIERERE AR

Limited 98,464 90,072
Fortune Gas Investment Holdings Limited EHARIRE I GR A E] 927,342 848,307
EHHIMRRBRAF] EHHIMRRBRAF] 20,120 18,405
EHEMERRRER AR EEEERRRERAF 127,167 116,329
MR B IMRBR AR MR B IMRBR AR 18,010 16,475
REFREEREBARAR] REPREEREBAR AR R

and China Gas Hong Kong China Gas Hong Kong Company

Company Limited (‘B8R EE") Limited ([ E&MREE ) 197,919 181,057
Beijing Gas Development Limited IERERARAR ([HEMRER])

(“Beijing Gas”) 189,537 166,808
ML R A R A R (“ALHRER M) WML RARAR ([JERRERMN 1) 34,200 21,747
LEMEERNRRARAF LEMERRRBERAT

(“TEMER") ([EmEHE]) 8,999 -
Other CGUs Hi RS EEEN 323,856 240,959

2,461,723 2,172,276
PRI RIZERERATE]

2017/18 B3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

22. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

22. BE &)

2018 2017
—E-N\f¥ S
HK$000 HK$'000
FiH 7T
(restated)
(2%1)
Sales of LPG business withineachof LU T&KEBARZRILABREE
the following subsidiaries %%
EEmeRIERER AT EEmeRERER AT 227,867 208,447
EBERMBERAR EBERMBERAR 27,101 24,791
BREERRREBRAT BREERRREBRAT 45,747 41,848
Panva Gas Holdings Limited Panva Gas Holdings Limited 304,165 278,242
HERRBETRERBRAR HEPRBETRERBRAR
(“HERHRET) (TH@rmELIl) 9,051 =
EERTRBE IR BR AT EERTRE IR BR AT
(“EE2RI) (E281)) 3,970 =
617,901 553,328
3,079,624 2,725,604

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value in use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax
rates that reflect current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectation of future changes in
the market.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ReEt sz RmEaEIRERE
BET - FREEREEXIEBRRASEA
EEZIMER BEXNEHEHRE
BAAE - - EEERRBRE A ESE
ZEBERRCELBN 2 RERR L
BB RAARTINEK - MRRILE AR
HIERETE - EEZHNERKARE
EEPIREMMSERR 2 EHMETE -



For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—ZE—NF=A=+—HLFE

22. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets approved by the
management for the next five years. The CGUs cashflows
beyond the 5-year period until the expiry of the relevant
operation period or exclusive rights ranging from 15 to
30 years are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2017: 3%)
growth rate for CGUs in the natural gas business and 5%
(2017:5%) for CGUs in the LPG business. The financial
budgets and growth rates are estimated according
to the stage of each operation with reference to the
development curve of the natural gas business and
LPG business in the PRC region. The pre-tax rates used
to discount the forecast cash flows for CGUs are from
14% to 17% (2017: 14% to 17%). In the opinion of the
directors, no material impairment loss is identified for
both years. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of CGUs to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of CGUs.

22. B (@)

AEBRBEEEEMERARAFZ KA
R KEERERSREEE - BEX
RAEBRRIECAMREBAFHER
FHBELSHMRBREEESEM (N
%15i30ﬁ5Tw) E/ﬁjziﬁigiif

HeneDRHEARBTEEREI% (=
T—+F:3%) R5% (ZE—+F:
5%) #EITHE - UHEBEEREEXRTY
BESEBZBREBBERE2EFREM
B2 RAREBLBRIEEHRER 2B
BHZEG - ARBABRSEEBN
ZRAIRESRENMMEEBR14%E17%
(ZE—+F  14%E17%) T F - BESE
RBE - RZMEFERES KA SRR
EEE - TEERBUNLLBREZEMNE
Br gk EENEHHTSBRRCES
B REAREBSBEAREEE -

PR RIERERATE
2017/18 BiiReEs



For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

23. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

cosT

At 1 April 2016

Exchange adjustments

Addition

Acquired on acquisition of
businesses (note 38)

At 31 March 2017
(restated)

Exchange adjustments

Addition

Acquired on acquisition of
businesses (note 38)

At 31 March 2018

AMORTISATION

At 1 April 2016
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2017

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2018

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017
(restated)

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Exclusive
rights of
natural gas
operation
ARREK 2
BRICER
HK$'000
FHET
B
RZZE—"FNA—H 2,155,561
P& AR (118,105)
NE 56
WEEBME
(P7E38) 820,270
R-ZE—tF=A
=+—A8 (&%) 2,857,782
fEE ¢ % 133,475
NE 533
W BHE
(Ffi+E38) 44,960
RZB—)\F
“A=+—H 3,036,750
B
RZZE—"FMHA—R 290,911
TRICE:S (14,880)
FAZH 73,002
R-F—tF
=A=+—H 349,033
BE H AR 32,520
FAZH 110,389
RZZE—)\F
=ZA=+—H 491,942
REE
RZZT—N\F
—A=+—H 2,544,808
R-ZE—tF=A
=1+—A8 (&%) 2,508,749

23. HittEBREE

Production

sharing  Technology
rights rights
EEDRE B
HK$'000 HK$000
THT TAT
1,151,940 56,716
(68,906) (2,900)
89,399 =
1,182,433 53,816
110,164 5,014
49,785 =
1,342,382 58,830
10,038 4,886
(613) (250)
7,170 5,485
16,695 10,121
1,556 943
8,034 5,648
26,284 16,712
1,316,098 42,118
1,165,738 43,695

Customer
relationship

EFEE
HK$'000
TET

15,629
(799)

14,830
1,382

16,212

13,789
(705)
1,500

14,584
1,359
269

16,212

246

Total
st

HK$'000
TR

3,379,846
(180,710)
89,455

820,270

4,108,861
250,035
50,318

44,960

4,454,174

319,624
(16,348)
87,167

390,433
36,377
124,340

551,150

3,908,024

3,718,428



For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—ZE—NF=A=+—HLFE

23. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Note: The exclusive rights of natural gas operation, technology
rights and customer relationship are amortised on a
straight-line method over the period of 30 years, 40 years
and 10 years respectively.

Production sharing right represents the right under
the production contract entered between a subsidiary
of the Group and a PRC entity for the exploitation and
development of a coal-bed methane resource in the
PRC (“CBM Project”) under an exclusive right granted by
the PRC government to explore, develop and produced
coal-bed methane with that PRC entity as joint operation
partner up to 2029. The Group has a 50% participating
stake in the CBM Project. Production sharing right is
amortised by using the units of production method
based on the expected proven reserve to be extracted
during the contractual period.

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES

Included in the balance of amounts due from associates
are loans of HK$7,703,000 (2017: HK$1,704,000) which
are unsecured, interest bearing at fixed rates of 6% per
annum (2017: 6% per annum). The remaining balance
of HK$14,555,000 (2017: HK$13,493,000) are of trade
nature aged within 180 days based on invoice date
and a dividend receivable of HK$16,089,000 (2017:
HK$239,818,000). A credit period of 30 to 180 days
is granted to these trade customers. The balance is
expected to be repayable within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and shown under current
assets. All balances are neither past due nor impaired
at the reporting date as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the Group believes that the
amounts are considered recoverable.

As at 31 March 2017, balance of amounts due to
associates of HK$100,939,000 were of trade nature
and aged within 180 days based on invoice date.

As at 31 March 2018, the amount due to an associate of
HK$125,000 is of non-trade nature which is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

HitEREEE @)

s RARERZBRELHE  RiTERE
FRED BIR30F - 40F K104 2~ 5
FIRAERE T ABEY -

EESREEREE —RME AR
il B (b ZE pEAR IR P B BURF 3 M S o
Bt ((FREARZERH) BF - H
BRAEREROBREEEMERRL
REFERERER ([KEREEB D
RIVHAEERNBT 2% AREE
—EoNEF - ARERNKERBRER
50%2 B - AENKEREBERA
WA RN R RARBERLE
EELDAFH#H -

24, UL (FEfY) BEE D RIRIA

AABRKBE AR RELEHBZER
7,703,000 JT (= & — + 4F : 1,704,000
BT HEER . RS FE (ZF —
F: BF6E) cEEMEFTLE - 258
14,555,000/ 7T (ZZ—+£4F : 13,493,000
Br) BESHE - BREcABE LR
1808 A+ LA K F& I i% B.16,089,0007% 7T
(ZZT —+ % : 239,818,000/ T) » AN &
ERzEE SRR TI0HE180H 212
B - SREBTERAESREE AR T @R
WERE  WEtARBEE - BRNEEER
SimE AR E - HZIS%lifEﬁﬁF@é%E%ﬁ
{ERI FURE] - A RE BHEE - Br Lilt=18
Gh Pﬁ“ﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁ@,ﬁﬁ&/&ﬁ

R-ZE—+E=A=+—H  EN#HL
N AR TE 100,939,000 LB &
SIS BREBEEZHEEIT180HA -

R-_E—N\F=A=+—8 " ENH#
ENBIFIE125,00008 T VB IEE HE
T EEHE . B RIRERKEE -

PR RIERERATE
2017/18 BiiReEs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

25. INVENTORIES

25. 78

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FEx FiT

Construction materials =) 1,389,985 577,076
Consumables, spare parts, gas SEFES B RERA

appliances and other materials M E AR 864,833 404,499

Natural gas RAR 201,023 158,973

LPG BIERBER 613,405 538,340

3,069,246 1,678,888

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS
FOR CONTRACT WORK

26. B (BfY) BFZEHNIRE

FIE

2018 2017
At —F—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Contracts in progress at end of the RMERRCTEREL

reporting period:

Contract costs incurred plus recognised BE4EZ A KIS FER

profits less recognised losses AR E R R 6,043,420 3,435,100
Less: Progress billings T EE AR (3,819,084) (2,342,186)
2,224,336 1,092,914

Analysed for reporting purposes as: VE2MAB D

Amounts due from customers for EWERF 2 E&HTENRIE
contract work 3,166,968 1,738,107

Amounts due to customers for NP ZAEHTIIERIE
contract work (942,632) (645,193)
2,224,336 1,092,914

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, there was no retention
monies held by customers for contract work performed.
At 31 March 2018, advances received from customers
for contract work not yet commenced amounted to
HK$431,661,000 (2017: HK$377,169,000) which were
included in trade and other payables in note 30.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RE—NEFER_T—+F=ZA=1+—
H WERBFEARFHREETZA
HIRmMBFE - RZE—-NEFE=A=1+
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. ES R H M EIWERIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FAT
Trade receivables B 5 AR 3,409,101 2,407,026
Less: Accumulated allowances B RETRHE (473,333) (379,289)
Trade receivables B 5 IR 2,935,768 2,027,737
Deposits paid for construction and other Ti2 & At # £ B 4124
materials 448,968 379,795
Deposits paid for purchase of natural ~ BEEXARMBRILAHEE
gas and LPG [EADE s 1,786,991 909,187
Advance payments to sub-contractors  J&ft 56 2 FIE 859,784 739,990
Rental and utilities deposits e A AAEERS 262,897 190,736
Other tax recoverable E b4 Fi 18 973,943 337,174
Other receivables and deposits E AU ERIE M iR e 1,256,836 1,077,147
Prepaid operating expenses AR 460,459 380,223
Amounts due from non-controlling FEWP BB A R FEIE AR fE 2 SR IE
interests of subsidiaries 33,584 25,004
Total trade and other receivables B 5 REMERIRIBLAEE 9,019,230 6,066,993
Other than certain major customers with good BEFANFEHEREF I ITERRPERE
repayment history which the Group allows a longer HEFEREEEHN S BHARI - &
credit period or settlement by instalment basis, the ER-RAEZEZEFPIRHETHI0E
Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 180HZZEH -

to 180 days to its trade customers.
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of impairment losses presented based on invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

27. ES R EHMEWERIE (@)

RBEER REZAM2NN 2 EHE
WER R (IR EEE) 2 Rk o
T

2018 2017

—z—n5 [ ST

HK$°000 HK$000

TR THR

0-180 days 0£180H 2,532,433 1,794,627
181-365 days 181HZ=365H 211,664 168,785
Over 365 days 365HLAE 191,671 64,325
2,935,768 2,027,737

The trade receivables with carrying amount of
HK$2,532,433,000 (2017: HK$1,794,627,000) are neither
past due nor impaired at the reporting date for which
the Group believes that the amounts are considered
recoverable.

The Group has policies for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which are based on the evaluation of collectability
and age analysis of accounts and on the management’s
judgment including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group made
an allowance of HK$74,182,000 in respect of the trade
receivables related to the gas pipeline construction
business and LPG business, which was past due at
the reporting date with long age and slow repayments
having been received from respective customers since
the due date. The Directors of the Company considered
the related receivables may be impaired and specific
allowance was made.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

8R M {B2,532,433,000 ;T (Z T — +
& :1,794,627,0008 L) 28 5 EWE
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ARG B2 RIERBBER TR EE B3R
AR 2 FHE MRBEZREDNT - LR
BREEEHEREREPAR ZEMEE
N RWGREE 2 HI6 -
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AEERERREEEZREL R
AMAEERE 2 E S EREERIED
74,182,000 7T 2 B e+ ZERAN IR
LHHE RS BRRARBEBREFA
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group made
a reversal of allowance of HK$1,289,000 in respect
of the trade receivables related to the gas pipeline
construction business and LPG business, which was
received during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts
for trade receivables:

27. ES R EHMEWERIE (@)

HE - T—+F=fF=+—RHItEE "
AEERERREEEREL R
AMREERE 2 B SRR E B
1,289,000 T ' ZEBEREREEZ
E—+tF=A=+—HIEFEKE -

BIRMRAZ RIZREGB 22

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTERT FHT

Balance at the beginning of the year FOEEER 379,289 394,188
Exchange differences M ER 23,413 (13,610)
Charge (credit) for the year FAR (FFA) 74,182 (1,289)
Written off against trade receivables i85 5 eI I8 (3,551) -
Balance at the end of the year FI SRR 473,333 379,289

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivables from the date credit was initially
granted up to the reporting date. The trade receivables
past due but not provided for impairment were either
subsequently settled as at the date these consolidated
financial statements were authorised for issuance or
no historical default of payments by the respective
customers. The concentration of credit risk is limited
due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company believe that
there is no further credit provision required in excess of
the allowance for bad and doubtful debts.

HEE 5 RKRRESTKREE - NEH
EEREIRUERZERERBEE
MRALE BEEHE A HHE 2 £
2 - BRMERELREZE S REE
REFFRERNAGRE M RRERET
B2 ADERN - BN EBEEREN
Rz EP  EANEPEHERARYL
THE  REEETRRAR - &t
ARRBEFREBENRERBE LA
E—FTREBEEEME -

PR RIERERAT
2017/18 B3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EZ R HAMEWERTE @)
(CONTINUED)

Included in the Group's trade receivables are debtors, AEEZBZREERTRBEREE
with a carrying amount of HK$403,335,000 (2017 403,335,000 TTZ RK (ZF—LF:
HK$233,110,000) which are past due at the reporting 233,110,000/ 7T) + & EFHIANHE A
date for which the Group has not provided for el EXAKEEREEERRE
impairment as there has not been a significant change EAREL B WANBAR R PSR
in credit quality and the amount are still considered REBELEE AKEUERZTEH
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral FRAETAER - RZF-N\F=A=*
over these balances. The average age of these trade — B ZEFBESRBERZFAERRE
receivable is 398 days (2017: 349 days) as at 31 March 398H (ZZT—+%F : 349H) °
2018.
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not BEEMERIHEREZE ZEYRRZ
impaired: BREHITIAT -
2018 2017
—EB-\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
180-365 days 1803655 211,664 168,785
Over 365 days 365HI £ 191,671 64,325
403,335 233,110
The non-trade balances of amounts due from non- JE BT 8 X RISE R IR e 2 2 FE B 5 A5 £
controlling interests of subsidiaries are unsecured, non- HAEERR 2B BAREREE -

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

28. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 28. FEEERE

2018 2017
—z—nx [ R
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Fit

Equity securities at fair value listed in ~ IRAFEIEZ EFS L
Hong Kong N 48,077 27,402

1 2 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z ==

RE BRI

—N\F=RA=+—HILFE

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 28. HIFEERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Held-for-trading investments as at 31 March 2018 RZEBE-NF=ZA=+—RAK=ZE—+
and 31 March 2017, represent equity securities listed F=RA=+—H E’JT%T’EEE&ﬁTEB’\\%
in Hong Kong. The fair values of the investments are BETZBRAES - ZFEREZATFE
determined based on the quoted market bid prices AR Bme MG EBMERE ° 5
available on the Stock Exchange. The fair value of held- EEBEREZRATED ;*eEF% NEE R
for-trading investments was classified as Level 1 of the E— -
fair value hierarchy.
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 2. EEHBRTER RITERF
BALANCES AND CASH RR&E
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the RITEF RSP EASEFEE RS
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original M RAH =8 A s AN B ER 2 2 BR SR 1T
maturity of three months or less and carry interest at TR REF001EE285E (ZF—
market rates which range from 0.01% to 2.85% per +F: BF0.01EZE2.80E) 25 F
annum (2017:0.01% to 2.80% per annum). KB o
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged EHEARITFRUERIESE TASE 2 1R
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the TRVE MR TERIT21F 5K ° 290,729,000
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$290,729,000 (2017: BT (ZZE—+F : 517,676,000 7T) 2
HK$517,676,000) have been pledged to secure short- TR EFEERURGERRITER R ARE
term bank loans and undrawn short-term facilities and BRaHmE - Fits %E/,’%muibéf?k E
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged HEIRRITF IR S F1.55E X 4.550F (=
bank deposits carry fixed interest rates of 1.55% to —tF : BF1.50EE479E) ZIE*'JZ?
4.55% (2017:1.55% to 4.79%) per annum. FTE o
The details of the Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank AEBUSHBAEECE 2 NEEK L
balances and cash which are denominated in currencies Sz B E 2 BIRERITEIA KR
other than the functional currency of the respective group TRERBES ZEBENNET -
entities are set out below:
United States
Dollars (“USD”) HK$
ESA(E V) BT
HK$'000
equivalent HK$’000
FHTEE T
At 31 March 2018 R-_E-N\F=A=+—H 396,925 567,563
At 31 March 2017 R-—F—tF=A=+—H 164,183 75,857
R AT

2017/18 B3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z—F— N\F=A=+—HILtFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30.

Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The following is an
aged analysis of trade and other payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

BZ RHEMEMNIRE

EHREMENRECRESEERR
BRAZRGEBHE - MBREHKR - 1K
BEAHRI B REMENERE L
BREEDATENT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHIT
0-90 days 0£90H 3,252,218 3,078,423
91-180 days 91H=180H 1,177,211 558,837
Over 180 days 180H A E 3,040,546 1,368,979
Trade and bill payables B SRR R ENEE 7,469,975 5,006,239
Other payables and accrued charges ~ EfhfEBRIB K EHE A 867,813 569,243
Consideration payable JERRE 482,446 550,964
Construction fee payables JERT TR E A 1,216,433 586,801
Other tax payables FERT E A F I8 156,066 84,143
Accrued staff costs FEETE TR 161,593 76,234
Loan interest payables FERTERFE 179,437 109,098
Advance payments from customers RERFZEWHIE 2,778,969 2,013,342
Advances received from customers for 2 AIMAKERZ &4 L2
contract work that have notyetbeen  BPURERZ Bk
started 431,661 377,169
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAH BB A R IEIE R AE 2 5B
interests of subsidiaries 300,577 276,572
14,044,970 9,649,805

All of the balances were aged within 90 days based on
invoice date and the average credit period is 90 days.

The non-trade balances of amounts due to non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

1 2 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE T — N\F=A=+—HILtFE

31. BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. RITRHMEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT

Bank and other borrowings comprise  $R{7 R EAMEERIE

the following: AR&IR :
Bank borrowings RITEE 23,673,867 17,498,605
Other borrowings HiER 8,698,554 6,119,830
32,372,421 23,618,435
Secured HEM 2,960,714 2,733,449
Unsecured AR 29,411,707 20,884,986
32,372,421 23,618,435
The maturity profile of the above MEFZ BIHERLAT -
borrowings is as follows:
Within one year R—FR 11,079,288 10,873,256
More than one year, but not exceeding %W —F{ENEBBRE
two years 13,636,482 4,739,895
More than two years, but not exceeding ZHIMFETNBBAE
five years 5,889,718 4,486,561
More than five years ZAF 1,766,933 3,518,723
32,372,421 23,618,435
Less: Amount due within one year BT —FAREIERFIA
shown under current liabilities MENB B KIA 11,079,288 10,873,256
Amount due after one year — 1258 2 FE 21,293,133 12,745,179
Borrowings comprise: EERE
Fixed-rate borrowings EBEE 12,778,824 7,738,621
Floating-rate borrowings FREE
— R EEFEFES M
- London Interbank Offered Rate 1.75/2£2.352
(“LIBOR”) plus 1.75% to 2.35% (=%
(2017:0.80% to 2.12%) 0.80EE2.12F) 7,903,820 6,255,927
- Base rate of People’s Bank of China ~ — FIEI A REFTTEER|=R 11,689,777 9,623,887
32,372,421 23,618,435
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 E#Z ==

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

The details of the corporate bonds as included in the

—NF=ZA=+—HILFE

AFARMER

BOTREMEER @

R NBEESFHBWT ¢

other borrowings are as follows:
2018 2017
—E2—N\F ZE—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FAT
Corporate bond 1 (note 1) RNEIEH (MsE1) 1,174,773 1,170,848
Corporate bond 2 (note 2) NEIEH2 (FisE2) 2,272,769 2,270,030
Corporate bond 3 (note 3) AR)EHS (FIFE3) 1,740,717 -
5,188,259 3,440,878
Notes: BT
(1) The listed corporate bond of RMB1 billion was issued (1) ARBIVETLETRAREBEHFEFER
with coupon and effective interest rate of 4.2% per _Z—/\$ RT=R&EBRILEREH
annum and maturity date on 13 January 2019 through CBEMNERREBRFERTFL2%
the private placement in the PRC on 13 January 2016. &x”ﬁﬁ HR=-ZT—NF—A+=A-R
The corporate bond was listed on Shanghai Stock ZE—RFZATNAB  ZRRESFR
Exchange Comprehensive Electronic Platform of Fixed FEEERGFEEREESFGEET
Income Securities on 19 February 2016. FaEme
(2)  The listed corporate bond of RMB2 billion was issued 2) /\E%ZO%TEJ:?D_’AET%%EQJ B m
with coupon and effective interest rate of 3.05% per —ANEFTAZTEABTTHEE
annum and maturity date on 27 October 2021 to ﬁ%a“xﬁ% BEMNERBEBENERE
qualified investors in the PRC on 27 October 2016. The F.05%MEHBA-T-_—F+A=
corporate bond was listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange ‘f’t H - RZZ—R<"F+—ANB &
Comprehensive Electronic Platform of Fixed Income RNRAEHFR LEBHRZFMEE W= H
Securities on 8 November 2016. FirABFFEA LM
(3)  The corporate bond of RMB1.5 billion was issued with B) AREISETAGBEHFEFER-Z
coupon and effective interest rate of 4.75% per annum *ti)\ﬂ Ei FERILEREET
through the private placement in the PRC on 1 August SNERERFNEREGF4.75% ° }\E
2017. The corporate bond of RMB1 billion and RMBO0.5 B0 7%%&/@%%5 EVIWNG
billion are with maturity date on 3 August 2020 and 3 BEFZHBESR AT _TFN\R=
August 2022 respectively. The corporate bond is tradable S| &_giiﬁﬂﬂ =H - %R AEEF
on National Association of Financial Market Institutional ARFABRITETSXIEAHERS °
Investors.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, amount of REZE-E—+tF=A=+—HIHF

HK$1

1,522,131,000, which was denominated in USD

was early repaid.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE T — N\F=A=+—HILtFE

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. |MITRHEMEBE (@)
(CONTINUED)

The range of effective interest rates (which are also AEEBEZERNEONEE (FEE
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s RETAIRZ) AT

borrowings are as follows:

2018 2017
—z- 0

Effective interest rate per annum: BEEREFIE
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEE 0.9%-4.91%  2.02%-4.59%
Floating-rate borrowings REEE 1.1%-9.38% 1.44%-8.13%
The details of the Group’s borrowings which are AEEREAREETE Zﬂﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁg A
denominated in currencies other than the functional I BEHEZ EEFHIBEYMT
currency of the respective group entities are set out
below:
Japanese Euro dollar
UsD HK$ Yen (“JPY”) (“EURO”)
H BT
EJH BT (N=1=0) (&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FAT
equivalent  equivalent  equivalent  equivalent
EE EE EE EH
At31March 2018 R-ZE—N\F=A=+—H 1,783,636 2,908,627 595,241 19,869
At31March 2017 RKRZZE—+F=A=+—H 815,550 881,651 544,511 18,175
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 April 2016
Issuance of shares

(Note 38(B)(v))
Repurchase of shares
(Note)

At 31 March 2017 and
31 March 2018

32. IRA<

Ordinary shares

EER

No. of shares
‘000
at HK$0.01
each
gk
AE0IET
HT iR
ETE 9,000,000
BETRER
RZZ—EENA-A 4,910,384
B{7iRA (F38B)W)
110,823
EERH ()
(52,688)
RZE—tE=A=1-H
k=F-\F=R=+-H 4,968,519

The new shares issued rank pari passu with the existing

shares in all respects.

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange

HK$000

TR

90,000

49,685

Convertible
preference shares
TRRELR
No. of shares
‘000
at HK$1.00
each
Bk
EfH0.0187T
T RARE

HK$'000

TiEm

124,902 124,902

Total
h

HK$000

TR

214,902

49,685

BRTHBAE S ERRERATAR
R -

i BE-F—tF=A=T—HILFE
AR B BB AR A & 2B

as follows:
No. of
ordinary
shares
Month of repurchase of HK$0.01
0.01% 7T
B8 A 47 ZERBREE
November 2016 —T—RF+—A 3,264,000
December 2016 —Z—RE+=A 47,192,000
January 2017 —ET—+tF—8 2,232,000
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T
Price per share
highest lowest
BRERK
RS R
10.28 10.12
10.54 9.97
11.38 10.52

Aggregated
repurchased
costs

e A
HK$'000
TR

33,416
481,433
23,746
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e MR
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE
33. RESERVES 33. fH#E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Translation reserve BEFE
At the beginning of the reporting period A ¥R HA¥] (1,104,712) (26,225)
Exchange difference arising on EgmEmEECERERE
translation 2,573,578 (1,078,487)
At the end of the reporting period AR IR 1,468,866 (1,104,712)
Investment revaluation reserve REShfHE
At the beginning of the reporting period & HAH) 8,982 30,776
Decrease in fair value on available-for- I H & 7 & N FER
sale investments (22,959) (21,794)
At the end of the reporting period RIRE IR (13,977) 8,982

FERSRIEIRERARE
2017/18 Bti§sReE
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34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 4. FTHEEMTIA

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHTT

Financial liabilities BRAas
Cross currency interest rate swap
contract

RN EEM XA L

2,338 936

In order to manage the Group’s foreign currency
exposure and interest rate exposure in relation to the
Group’s borrowings which are denominated in USD, the
Group entered into a cross currency interest rate swap
contract to buy US$ for RMB.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has an
outstanding cross currency interest rate swap contract
with an aggregate notional amount of USD21 million
(2017: USD28 million) that requires the Group to buy
USD for RMB at exchange rate of RMB6.534 (2017:
RMB6.534) for USD1 and change from paying floating
interest rate of 6 month LIBOR + 1.75% per annum to
paying fixed rate of 5.52% per annum with maturity
periods to be matched with the maturity periods of the
relevant borrowings.

The cross currency interest rate swap is measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period which is
determined by reference to the prices as quoted by the
counterparty financial institution.
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REBEASEBEBUARTHEZASHE
tEEMSNE R LR KRR - AREET
VRXEBMNEHEHMEL  UARKE
AKTT

RIFER - AEBZARFHRIXEE
FEREHEONBEZESTH2,1008E
T (ZZT—+tF:28008%7T) RE
REBIZIETLH ARKEESL534L (ZF
—+&F: AR¥B534TT) ZIEERUAR
EEAZE WA FEFFR6EA
WBERITRIER B E M .75E N A
B EFHR5.520F - HRARAEEED
HABR ABAL o

2 X E AR R R AR RS
5T 5 e BBBARERTEEHAT
B3 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

35. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior reporting years.

Fair value

adjustment

on property,

plant and

Revaluation  equipment
Accelerated on and prepaid
tax  investment lease
depreciation  properties  payments
ES

RafbAR

BREEH

MEHE  REWE BATE
] B Fik:S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AT T TR

35. IEIERLIR

UTRRABEFERABEFEZE
BRAETEHRAAE (BE) NARERE
@J o

Impairment
ontrade
and other
receivables
and amounts  Impairment
duefrom  on property,
Tax Intangible customersfor  plantand
losses assets contractwork  equipment Total

BHRIER

hekERPz

ANIRIE WF BE
WEER EVAE e RRERE st
HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000
TEr  Thn TR Thr  Thn

At 1 April 2016 RZE—F
mA-A 471 29,016 135,858  (14,531) 605,379 (135,002) (31,104) 590,087
Exchange adjustments  [E 5 3% - - 130 - (1639 1933 1,562 1987
Charge (credit) to profit EMREZTHIR
orlossfortheyear (&%) (fitzE10)
(note 10) = 6,289 (5,341) (6,637)  (18,282) 307 1687 (21.97)
Acquisition of W%
businesses (note 38)  ([f138) - - 37,024 - 182923 - - 219947
At 31 March 2017 RZE—t+%=4
(restated) =+—H (&) 47 35,300 167,671 (21,168) 768,382 (132,762) (27,855) 790,044
Exchange adjustments 3 3% - = % (303) 2945 (1847) (1,594) (774)
Charge (credit) to profit FRRERT Mk
orlossfortheyear  (#%) (A3 10)
(note 10) = 7,302 (7,297) (4,500)  (26,872) (60,267) - (91,639
Acquisition of s (Fskss)
businesses (note 38) - - - - 120 - - 1240
At31March2018  RZE-N\F
=f=t-8 47 42,607 160,399  (25976) 755,695 (194,876) (29,449) 708,871

PR RIERERAT
2017/18 B3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

35. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 35. IEIERIIE (@)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

MEJGRAMBINARME - ETET
MEEERABD THEE - AT A
&N s EEHBEHROMN -

2018 2017

—B-N\fF —B—tF

HK$’000 HK$000

TR THAT

(restated)

(E51)

Deferred tax assets BEREBIAEE 224,325 160,617
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIARIR (933,196) (950,661)
(708,871) (790,044)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profit earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onward. No deferred taxation has been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC entities amounting
to HK$23,098,948,000 (2017: HK$16,239,199,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Majority of joint ventures and associates established
in the PRC are held directly by certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC which
are therefore not subject to the above-mentioned
withholding tax.
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REFECEMEHE AZTTN\F
—A—HRB BPENBAEHERR
ZEFMMEIR 2K EAKKBENR -
BAMBERRTERTFHLERNE
#123,098,948,000 T (= F —+ F -
16,239,199,000/ 7T) 2 E =5 {EH
BERERE - R E R A S E e 5B
EERZE KL BERZERE
TRl B REE -
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36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of HK$6,012,195,000
(2017: HK$5,526,864,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$157,423,000 (2017: HK$128,288,000)
of the tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised for the remaining estimated tax losses of
HK$5,854,772,000 (2017: HK$5,398,576,000) due to
the uncertainty of future profits streams. Included
in unrecognised estimated tax losses are losses of
HK$3,669,876,000 (2017: HK$3,361,606,000) that will
expire in 5 years from the year of origination which is
ranged from 2018 to 2022 (2017: 2017 to 2021). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 6 February
2003 (the “Old Scheme”) for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to any directors of the Company,
any employees of the Group, or any employee, partner
or director of any business consultant, joint venture
partner, financial adviser or legal adviser of the Group.

35.

36.

IEAERLIE (&)

RS EIR - AN B A R LA B AR 2R )
2 (i ET AR B) A I8 &5 48 /456,012,195,000
B (Z T — £ F:5,526,864,00008
JT) ° B $157,423,0008 T (— T — +
F 128,288,000 7T) » FIBFIBFER
FEREFTEE E o AR ARG F 2RIR AT
TEE - E 5T FH 18 E5185,854,772,000
B on(Z & — + % :5,398,576,000/8
L) WERREEHREEE - RERG
AHEBETEEARRFEE-Z—N
FEZZ-_F(ZE—+tF: ZF—
+tEE_ST - —FHMH) BFSFANE
W 23,669,876,000% 7T (ZF — £ F ¢
3,361,606,000/7T) E518 - EfhEsian &
PREfAEEE o

BRETERAKRGHERD
P

ARBRBER-_ZFZT=F_ABAB
ZRFBRMERAN —IARERAER 8 (&
i)  REFBZEERE I RER
ARRABEMES AEBEEAEERE
MEBER ALBH  AEBEMBKE
R ARBRZEMER AR ARE
=

PR RIERERAT
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-

BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Old Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme
(“Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is
refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the
renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Old Scheme must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company then in issue. Each grant of
options to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder must be approved by independent
non-executive directors. Where any grant of options
to substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates
would result in the shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options already granted
and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital at the relevant time of grant and
with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in
the 12-month period up to the date of grant must be
approved in advance by the Company’s independent
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$10 per grant.
Options may be exercised at any time from the date to
be determined by the board of directors to the tenth
anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The life of the Old Scheme is effective for 10 years from
the date of adoption until 5 February 2013.
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36. BIRESTERUKROBERDN

B (@)

RIBZ A BRI 2 BB PTY M 2 X
AR - TRBARRIEZEEE
BARRE BTN 210% ([FHEIEE
PREE]) SRINZ10%MRE T IAEH - A5
BRI EERASREREEBART
BEITRN210% - AITEBREZER
EMBEEERARITEZMAERITEER
HmA R T 2 R AE ERASEEH
RABTEFEBHITHRMDBEZ30% - T
1218 A #IE &R T ERA L 2 BIRERR
BRZBMEE  TREBBERALQT
BETRNEE 1% - SRLBERETE
MEE TRAHITIERRARIE
MIERITEEME - ERARLBRET
TERRIBEIIFNTE R E AT
BALTESBRTTRERE R TFRE
Z HARERS B BT R i T RITR M B EAR
AR ERRARF D EITRA0.1%M
BERZEBARI2EANEEEERE
5,000,000/ T * FEFEARABE
MRRERESHLE o

Rz BAREARR AR 28H A
g BARLEREZARER/IOE
T BEEAREFTEREZARNES
RO Az +BFMEERITE - 17
EBRARBEZETE @ WS TAMER A
Tz®meE () RHB KRR R RN UK
mE: (NERRLAMAABEEEAR
0 2 FHUTE K (i) D EE ©
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F-HAHIE - BHEA10F -



For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—ZE—NF=A=+—HLFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-

BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Since the Old Scheme expired on 6 February 2013, no
further options can be granted thereunder. However,
the provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in force
in all other respects and all options, granted prior to its
expiration shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance therewith.

A new share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 20 August 2013 (the “New
Scheme”). The purpose of the New Scheme is to grant
share options to eligible persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group. The New
Scheme will expire on 19 August 2023.

The eligible persons as defined in the New Scheme are
individuals or entities who or which may participate
in the New Scheme (“Eligible Persons”). The following
individuals or entities who in the absolute discretion of
the Board of Directors of the Company have contributed
to the Group on the basis of their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group may participate
in the New Scheme:

(i) aneligible employee; and

(i) a non-executive director and an independent
non-executive director of any member of the
Group; and

(i) an agent or a consultant of any member of the
Group; and

(iv) a supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any director or employee of such
supplier;and

(v)  a customer of any member of the Group or any
director or employee of such customer; and

(vi) person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or
any advisory, consultancy or professional services
to any member of the Group or any director or
employee of any such entity; and

BRETESRURGAEERN
B @)

F \EZ%HEU E—=%F_"HAKH
& ﬁh@%ﬁiﬁ‘xﬁj&ﬂﬁﬁ% °
I EZ%J%ZMXK%&E@EE
AADRAB R - B fE i B 2 B A
RADRABRR - W AIRIR L F IR T ATT
f&E -

BE_Z-—=F \A-+HBAN—IE
IREBRRMFBES B ([FEHE)) -
Mar8lE ERAEMATE TRODHE
B B E S AREELNER
BN —_FE_=F \A+LBER -

MEtBAFRENEEMALIEN2A
MarBlWEARER ([GEBALD -
ARREFTGENU T EARERYAN
SENBRNMERMENER - KEB
HRBERAERAEATEAREBH A
SEERRE - AT2EMHE

(i) AEEEAKEATNFERTES
MBIMIFATES - &

(i) AEEEAKLE A RMRIEASEE
E

(iv) AEBEEAKERTNEDHRS
MEER - NREEENTAES
HEE : R

v AEEEAKERBNEP @ &%
EFMEMEZHES &

(vi) RAAKEEFKERBREFE
A % S B At B9l SO IR SRR T2
FAREXRRBENEARER - X
EAIZEERNEZHES &
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(vii) asubsidiary of the Company; and

(viii) a company in which the Company holds, either
directly or indirectly, 20% or more of its equity
interest.

Maximum number of shares available for
subscription

(i)  Subject to the Listing Rules, the maximum
number of the shares of the Company subject
to outstanding unvested or vested options under
the New Scheme (“New Options”) and outstanding
options under other share option scheme of the
Company (“Other Options”) must not exceed 30%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at 20
August 2013 (“Overriding Limit”). No New Options
or Other Options may be granted if it will result in
this Overriding Limit being exceeded.

(i) Subject to the Overriding Limit, paragraphs (iii)
and (iv) below, the total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all New Options and Other Options must not
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the 20 August 2013 (subject to adjustment
in the event of a capitalisation issue or rights
issue or open offer of shares of the Company, or
consolidation, sub-division or reduction of share
capital of the Company (other than an issue of
shares of the Company as consideration in respect
of a transaction)) (“Mandate Limit”). Unless
approved pursuant to paragraphs (iii) or (iv) below,
no New Options or Other Options may be granted
if such grant will result in the Mandate Limit being
exceeded. New Options and Other Options lapsed
according to the terms of the New Scheme or
other share option scheme(s) will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Mandate Limit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Maximum number of shares available for
subscription (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Subject to the Overriding Limit and an approval
of shareholders of the Company, the Company
may from time to time “refresh” a Mandate Limit
provided that the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all New Options or Other Options to be granted
under the limit as “refreshed” must not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
date of the resolution to approve the “refreshed”
limit (“Refresher Date”). New Options and Other
Options previously granted (whether outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed (according to the New Scheme
or the other share option schemes of the
Company) or exercised) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”. The
Company can seek the approval of shareholders
of the Company to “refresh” a Mandate Limit any
number of times as the Board of Directors of the
Company considers appropriate. Unless approved
pursuant to paragraph (iv) below, the board of
directors of the Company cannot grant any New
Options on or after the Refresher Date if such
grant will result in the Mandate Limit as refreshed
being exceeded.

Subject to the Overriding Limit and a specific
approval of shareholders of the Company, the
board of directors of the Company may grant New
Options to Eligible Persons identified by the board
of directors of the Company. If the approval of
shareholders of the Company is obtained, the
board of directors of the Company may grant
New Options to any Eligible Person in respect
of such number of shares of the Company and
on such terms as specified in that approval of
shareholders of the Company.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-

BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Options granted under the New Scheme must be taken
up within 20 business days of the date of grant and pay
the Company the amount payable, if any, on acceptance
of the option. Any option under the New Scheme which
has vested, in respect of which all conditions attaching
to it have satisfied and which has not lapsed may be
exercised at any time, by no option may be exercised
if such exercise would, in the opinion of the board of
directors of the Company, be in breach of the New
Scheme, any applicable law, rule or regulation or the
terms and conditions of the relevant option granted
under the New Scheme.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (i) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

No share options were granted by the Company during
the two years ended 31 March 2018.

The Group estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest was based on an assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. For the year
ended 31 March 2018, the directors of the Company
consider that options granted with non-market vesting
conditions only are expected to vest as the non-market
vesting conditions for exercising those share options are
probable to be met.

For options granted with market conditions, the Group
recognised share-based payments expense from
employees who satisfy all other vesting conditions,
inspective of whether the market condition is satisfied.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, share-based
payments expense of HK$644,320,000 is recognised
(2017: nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2018, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remaining
outstanding under the New Scheme is 345,600,000
(2017: 345,600,000) representing 6.96% (2017: 6.96%)

of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by employees (including directors)
and movements in such holdings during the two years

36. BRETERURDAHERDN

B (@)

W_BE—-NE=F=+—08 RBEH:t
ZIERE B MARITEMBES KRG
# B 5345,600,0000% (= B — 4 -
345,600,000/%) * th AR QA RIE AE BT
BE17H6.96% (ZZT—+4F : 6.96%) °

TRILER (BRES) FART
BRELHBRBE_ZT-N\F=A=

T HUEMEFEREBREZZEHE

ended 31 March 2018: o
Granted Cancelled
during during Number
Number the year the year of share
Exercise of share ended ended options at
price options at 31 March 31 March 31 March 2017
Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period pershare  1April2016 2017 2017 and 2018
B2 BE W-ET-N%
RZB-XE  ZB-tF  ZF-tF RCR-tE
mA-A =A=t-A Z=A=t-A Z=A=t-A
RLAS BEH 7SR BRAKE ZBEREHR LEECRY LEEDZH  2BREHA
Held by Directors
HEZRE
16.4.2014 (Note 1) (Note 1) 1240 21,000,000 = (4,000,0000 17,000,000
(FizE1) (Riz1)
25.6.2015 (Note 2) (Note 2) 1384 100,000,000 = - 100,000,000
(Btz¥2) (fitzE2)
25.6.2015 (Note 3) (Note 3) 13.84 2,400,000 - (800,000) 1,600,000
(BfE3) iER)
123,400,000 = (4,800,000) 118,600,000
Held by Others
HEMARE
16.4.2014 (Note 1) (Note 1) 1240 227,000,000 = - 227,000,000
(Mzt1) (Hzt1)
350,400,000 - (4,800,000) 345,600,000
Weighted average exercise price HK$12.82 = HK$12.64 HK$12.82
il SR 128287 12648 1282871

Exercisable at the end of the year

ARERTTE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE=—E— N\F=ZA=+—HLFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1) The validity period of the options is five years from
16 April 2014 to 15 April 2019. And the options may
be exercised on or after 16 April 2017. The exercise of
the options will be subject to the conditions that (i) the
audited profit after tax of the Group after deduction of
non-controlling interests for the financial year ended
31 March 2017 or before shall not be less than HK$5.5
billion; (ii) if the above condition is not fulfilled, the
options may be exercised if the audited profit after tax
of the Group after deduction of non-controlling interests
for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 shall not be
less than HK$6 billion; and (iii) the options will lapse if
the above two conditions are not satisfied.

(2)  The validity period of the options is from 25 June 2015
to 24 June 2022. And the options are exercisable upon
satisfaction of either one of the conditions that (i) the
Group’s audited net profit after tax and deduction of
non-controlling interests for a full financial year based
on the consolidated audited financial statements of the
Group amounts to HK$7.5 billion or above; or (ii) the total
market capitalisation of the Group amounts to HK$150
billion or above, where the “total market capitalisation”
shall be the product of the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange at the end of any trading day
and the total number of issued shares of the Company
on that same day. The options will lapse if none of the
above conditions is satisfied within the validity period
of the options. Subsequent to the financial year ended
31 March 2018, the vesting condition of “total market
capitalisation” was met.

(8)  The validity period of the options is from 25 June 2015
to 15 April 2019. And the options may be exercised
on or after 16 April 2017. The exercise of the options
will be subject to the satisfaction of either one of the
conditions that (i) the Group’s audited net profits after
tax and deduction of non-controlling interests for the
financial year ended 31 March 2017 based on the
consolidated audited financial statements of the Group
amounts to HK$5.5 billion or above; or (ii) if the above
condition is not fulfilled, the options may be exercised
if the Group’s audited net profit after tax and deduction
of non-controlling interests for the financial year ended
31 March 2018 based on the consolidated audited
financial statements of the Group amounts to HK$6
billion or above. The options will lapse if none of the
above conditions is satisfied within the validity period
of the options.

The options outstanding as at 31 March 2018 have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 years
(2017: 3 years).

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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37. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

IN SUBSIDIARIES

(A)

(B)

Acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiaries in 2018

The Group entered into certain sale and purchase
agreements with the respective holders of the
remaining equity interests holders of certain
subsidiaries in the PRC for a total consideration of
RMB19,551,000 (approximately HK$24,287,000).
The difference between the consideration paid
and the carrying amount of the additional interest
acquired by the Group of HK$6,856,000 was
credited to equity as capital reserve during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiaries in 2017

The Group entered into certain sale and
purchase agreements with the respective
holders of the remaining equity interests holders
of certain subsidiaries in the PRC for a total
consideration of RMB133,386,000 (approximately
HK$151,575,000). The difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of
the additional interest acquired by the Group of
HK$127,400,000 was debited to equity as capital
reserve during the year ended 31 March 2017.

37. WIBHI B~ B REIMRE RS

(A)

(B)

REZZB-NFREHNB QT
BIMER

AEEHRETHRMBARZHT
AR S BB ARBREA
R #19,551,0007T (4924,287,000
BIL) AN ETEE WS - EXf
REBEREEFKEREMERRA
{82 #%86,856,000/8 TREE—
T \FZA=Z+—HILFENUE
RNEBTT AT -

R-Z-—tFWREHRELAF
BIMER

REBHETFTHBENE AR &
THRARZSBZERARRA
R & A R #133,386,0007T (49
151,575,000 7T) 8] L & T &
E@m - EXNRELALREE
FriiEmEIIN s REmELEZ 8
127,400,000 TREZ-2—+
FZAZ+ - HIEFEUEREE
BARERF o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(A) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018

(i) In July 2017, the Group acquired 80%
equity interest in FARE=RIERBRAT]
(“FAZL1ES") at a total cash consideration
of RMB9,600,000 (approximately
HK$11,294,000). The acquisition was
completed in July 2017, on that date the
control in FAZ{E5 was passed to the Group.
FAZ{Em is engaged in the gas appliance
business. The directors of the Company
considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing
business of the Group.

38. WEEKIE 2 H

(A) RZZ-—NFEBWEBEKHE
ACLEES S

(i)

RZE—+tFELA &
BLBARSREARKE
9,600,0007T (#911,294,000
B WEAZESRIER
BRAR ([ARES]) 80%
ez - WEER =T —
+tELAZEK - REHB &
TEBZENRERELRE
c L EE M EBEMARME
X% AARESRAUE
FEKERANEEREREBT
R 2% 15 R RRHE o

Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FET
Cash He 11,294

Provisional fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition
recognised by the Group:

A BB B AR 2
B AR R R (R B
F 2 ATHE -

HK$'000

FHTT

Property, plant and equipment LE Y ] 3,095
Inventories ESSS 193
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk HE A fEYERIE 44
Bank balances and cash IRITHET RIS 10

Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERERIA (500)
3,239

Non-controlling interests FEPERR R (648)
Goodwill [EES 8,703
11,294

14 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018
(Continued)

(i

(Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)
The initial accounting for the above
acquisition has been determined
provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to the
property, plant and equipment.

The fair value as well as the gross
contractual amounts of the trade and
other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$441,000 at the date of acquisition. The
best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected was nil.

38. WWEEKI B~ 7] (&)

(A RZZ-—NFEBWEBEKHE
DNAWBER (@)

i (&

SERNAE (&)
ERBBERZS R
BHEREE  DAFRE
BRNME BEREBZE
EIGERETE -

RUER - TkBZES R
HEMmEWERBAFERELD
4858 B441,00058 7T o UK
BHYESHEZRD AR
ERZHEGFAE -

Goodwill arising on acquisition RWEmEL 2EE
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred BEEEAE 11,294

Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets
acquired, net of non-controlling

B TR BRI F EE
RNYHE - HIRRIFERX

interests - (2,591)
Goodwill arising on acquisition BB i B 2 PR 8,703

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
M {®5 was attributed to the anticipated
profitability of its gas appliance business.

None of the goodwill arising on this
acquisition was expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

R BRLEaMELZE
BHEREMRRBEER
BHIAFEEN

BHYERZBRENESE
ZEEAIHIRBIA

PR RIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018
(Continued)

(i

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in AZES
recognised at the date of the acquisition
was measured by reference to the respective
proportionate shares of recognised amounts
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and
amounted to HK$648,000.

38. WWEEKIB 2~ 7] (&)

(A) R=ZZE—NFEBWEKE
AENBER @)

(&)

RS

REBRERZARESI
ERERE2ZREHER
AIFEEMESHBEERSE
FELLPIET = /648,000 7T ©

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition AREmEE2RERLFHE
HK$'000
FHIT
Bank balances and cash acquired FrisiE 2 SR1TEEF RIRE 10
Cash consideration ReRE (11,294)
(11,284)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WIBHAEEEEF o FE

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$327,000 attributable
to the acquisition of FAZ{EE. Revenue of
P {E S included in the Group's revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$19,930,000.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BE_T-NF=ZA=1+—
BUEFEZGNEERBER
W g 78 & 1= = 2327,000/8
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38. ACQUISITION OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018
(Continued)

(ii)

InJuly 2017, the Group acquired 80% equity
interest in AT RIERBERETAF
(“BEFFAZ") at a total cash consideration
of RMB6,400,000 (approximately
HK$7,529,000). The acquisition was
completed in July 2017, on that date the
control in B{f% A% was passed to the Group.
RFF K% is engaged in the gas appliance
business. The directors of the Company
considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing
business of the Group.

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) R=F—N\FEBRIBKHE
ARWBRE (@)

iy R—ZT—+tFtA &&
BELBEREREARE
6,400,0007T (#77,529,000
Bor) WERB KERIEE
BEREELA ([RBAR])
B0%B AR WBEE RN
—E—tFLAEK RE
B BEAE2EdEER
EAEE HBEAFZHER
ABEBEBEEAAEERE
EEHERE ZHRIRE o

Consideration transferred EEENRE
HK$'000
FAT
Cash Be 7,529

Provisional fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition

REBERUE B #ER 2K
BEELMAEABELRE

recognised by the Group: EZRAFE :
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment L S 1,917
Inventories FE 120
Trade and other receivables 5 R H M YRR 50
Bank balances and cash WITHEFRIES 124
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENIRIE (5)
Taxation I8 (87)
2,119
Non-controlling interests SRR = (424)
Goodwill kS 5,834
7,529
FEIRRIZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018
(Continued)

(i) (Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)
The initial accounting for the above
acquisition has been determined
provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to the
property, plant and equipment.

The fair value as well as the gross
contractual amounts of the trade and
other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$50,000 at the date of acquisition. The
best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected was nil.

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) REZ2-—N\FEBREHE
DNEAWBER (@)

(i)

(%)

SERNE (&)
ERBBERZS R
BHEREE  DAFRE
BRME BERREBZE
KIGERETE -

RREE - TkBZ2ES R
HEMEWERBAFERESLD
#FE 50,0008 70 - R UK EE
BHBEHELKRDANRE
R EEGTAT -

Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMELE2EE
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred BEEEAE 7,529

Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets
acquired, net of non-controlling

B FTRBE R B RF EE

RNYHE - HIFRIFER

interests - (1,695)
Goodwill arising on acquisition B T B 2 PR 5,834

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
a5 A% was attributed to the anticipated
profitability of its gas appliance business.

None of the goodwill arising on this
acquisition was expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

1 4 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. ACQUISITION OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018
(Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in 5 AZE
recognised at the date of the acquisition
was measured by reference to the respective
proportionate shares of recognised amounts
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and
amounted to HK$424,000.

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) R=F—N\FEBRIBKHE
ARWBRE (@)

(i)

(%)

IR R

U B 1R 2 B 5 KRR IE
EREZC2ZEENBER
RIFEEMNZSIHEBEERS
AL BIET 2 A424,0008 7T °

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition BT EL 2 RERHFE
HK$'000
T
Bank balances and cash acquired FrisiE 2 SR1TEEF RIRE 124
Cash consideration ReNRE (7,529)
(7,405)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the W AEEEEF o FE

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$59,000 attributable to
the acquisition of FFFAZ. Revenue of &
F%AZ included in the Group's revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$8,403,000.

BE_T-N\F=H=1+—
BLEFEZ&EMNERRB
7 UEE RS K &= 259,000
Bt AREB#HE -
Z-N\E=ZA=+—BL#F
EREOREARKAER
8,403,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(Continued)

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through (A) ng—}}ﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁ B /B
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018 DNEWBER @)

(i) In September 2017, the Group acquired (i RZFE—LFALA K&
70% equity interest in HEFAET at a NEASTKREBEARE
total cash consideration of RMB9,625,000 9,625,0007T (4311,324,000
(approximately HK$11,324,000). The B WEHBERRMKE L
acquisition was completed in September 70%B A HEE - HBER
2017, on that date the control in H &R “EEFNAER RE
BT was passed to the Group. HEF R B HETHREIL 226 E
BT is engaged in the LPG business. The EREAREE - HEPRE
directors of the Company considered that THRELPGER - ARAE
the acquisition will bring about a further ERRWESTEERAEE
synergy effect of the existing business of the BB EBTRE Z 1 RE o
Group.

Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FET
Cash BHE 11,324
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities AEBERUEE BRI
assumed at the date of acquisition BEERFIEEBEZATF
recognised by the Group: B :
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment L S ] 3,247
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR (974)
Goodwill EES 9,051
11,324

1 5 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)
(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through (A) %:g—}}ﬁiﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ B /B
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018 DNEWBER @)
(Continued)
(i) (Continued) (i) (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition HWBmMELEZEE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred EEERE 11,324
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets B FTUE R R EEE
acquired, net of non-controlling NFE - HRIEZER
interests s (2,273)
Goodwill arising on acquisition I RE B A 2 R 9,051
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of H WEHBEPMRBE ImES
AR E T was attributed to the anticipated CEEBDNERELPGER Z
profitability of its LPG business. TEHARRIRE ) -
None of the goodwill arising on this B BRI 4 (R % TR MR RS T A A
acquisition was expected to be deductible Z RN HRBIE
for tax purposes.
Non-controlling interests FRIER
The non-controlling interests in HERAF A E RERBRAZERTRRE
7T recognised at the date of the acquisition LIEERE R 2 E R
was measured by reference to the respective BARFEEMNSHBD®
proportionate shares of recognised amounts R & L HE 2 /974,000
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and BT o
amounted to HK$974,000.
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEMEEzBEREFE
HK$'000
FHETT
Cash consideration ReERE (11,324)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)

(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through (A) %Eg_}’\fﬁﬁjﬁqﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁg
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018 REWIEE (&)
(Continued)

(i) (Continued) (i) (&)
WEHAEEEEZE

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$27,000 attributable to
the acquisition of HEEF¥ABEIT. Revenue
of HEFM AL included in the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018
amounted to HK$11,389,000.

(iv) In September 2017, the Group acquired (iv)
75% equity interest in Z2H)T at a total
cash consideration of RMB4,500,000
(approximately HK$5,294,000). The
acquisition was completed in October 2017,
on that date the control in EZHT was
passed to the Group. ZE2H/T is engaged
in the LPG business. The directors of the
Company considered that the acquisition
will bring about a further synergy effect of
the existing business of the Group.

HE_Z—NF=ZA=+—
BEFEZZMBEFBR
WEEHBFRME T 227,000
BILe st AREEHE_Z
—N\E=ZA=+—HIEE
WEmHBEPFRE I RESR
11,389,000 7T °

RZZE—+tFhA &
BEABBEERBARE
4,500,0007T (495,294,000
B WEZE T T75%M
Az WBER=-ZF —
+tF+AEK - RER &
2EHIZENEERZ A
EE EEH TN ELPGE
e ARREETRAKES
Hi§ BAEBER B EBER
B Z B RIKFE o

Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FAET
Cash B 5,294

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition
recognised by the Group:

REBERUEE B R Z i
BEERFIAEBBEZAYF
B :

HK$'000

FET

Property, plant and equipment W - WE k& 1,765
Non-controlling interests FEPER R (447)
Goodwill EES 3,970
5,294

1 5 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through

(Continued)

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) REZ2-—N\FEBREHE

purchase of subsidiaries in 2018 ARIWIBERK (&)
(iv)  (Continued) (iv) (%)
Goodwill arising on acquisition HBBmEEZEE
HK$'000
FHTT
Consideration transferred BEENRE 5,294
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets W FTEE R B RFEE S
acquired, net of non-controlling NFE - HRIEZER
interests s (1,324)
Goodwill arising on acquisition I RE B A 2 R 3,970
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of AlBELEIMEEZHE
EEZHT was attributed to the anticipated BENELPGER 2TEH

profitability of its LPG business.

None of the goodwill arising on this
acquisition was expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in E&H)T
recognised at the date of the acquisition
was measured by reference to the respective
proportionate shares of recognised amounts
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and
amounted to HK$441,000.

BFIgES -

TEHAY AR B N E L
Z B HREBIA

RS

R EERZEZZHTIE
IERESELEHENER
AFEEMNSHECERS
FALL Bt E A441,0008 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through

(Continued)

(iv)

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) REZ2-—N\FEBREHE

purchase of subsidiaries in 2018 REWBEE (')
(Continued) (iv) (%)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition HWBmEEZRER L FHE
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HeRE (5,294)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WEHAEEEEZTE

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$152,000 attributable
to the acquisition of EZH)T. Revenue of
EEZA)T included in the Group's revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$1,394,000.

In October 2017, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest in Z9EMIEHE at a total
cash consideration of RMB50,000,000
(approximately HK$58,824,000). The
acquisition was completed in October 2017,
on that date the control in 25 H/E% was
passed to the Group. 25X TT1EH is engaged
in natural gas and gas pipeline construction
business. The directors of the Company
considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing
business of the Group.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HE-_T—N\F=A=+—
HEFEZMBRERBER
U B E 2 H T 2152,0008
Lot AXEEHE=Z
—N\E=A=+—HIHF
FERENEZETKREA
1,394,000/ 7T °

RZE—ttF+ A K
EEUNBEIE S AKREA
KR #50,000,0007T (&
58,824,000/ 7T) U g =%
TEE100% M AR - Wi
ER-ZT—+FE+AEK
RER - 2U2mEE 2
BEBREAEER - 2UEMIE
BERERAREIMRREERE
REE - ARAEZRBU
BEEBANEBERBEY
HIRE LR RIRE -



38. ACQUISITION OF

(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through

(Continued)

(v)

SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) REZ2-—N\FEBREHE

purchase of subsidiaries in 2018 REWBEE (')
(Continued) v (&)
Consideration transferred CSEREAE
HK$°000
FHET
Cash e 58,824

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition
recognised by the Group:

AREBNKEBRERTKREEENA

AERBEZRFE:

HK$'000

FAET

Property, plant and equipment Y - S RERE 22,289
Other intangible assets HithmEEE 36,780
Inventories FE 213
Trade and other receivables 5 REMEUERTE 3,538
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 258
Trade and other payables B 5 N H A e ARIE (4,058)
Deferred taxation IREFE IR (9,195)
49,825

Goodwill [EES 8,999
58,824

The fair value as well as the gross

contractual amounts of the trade and
other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$3,538,000 at the date of acquisition.

The best estimate at acquisition date of the

contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected was nil.

RKRBER BB ZE S REAMER

RIBAFEKE KB AE3,538,000%
70 o RN UREE H TR B SRR B A 43R &
W2 EREGETATZ -

PR RIERERAT
2017/18 B3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z—F— N\F=A=+—HILtFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through

(Continued)

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) R=ZF-NFEBWBEKHE

purchase of subsidiaries in 2018 DEWIEER (#)
(v)  (Continued) (v) (%)
Goodwill arising on acquisition RyBmEE 2HE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred BEENRE 58,824
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W FTEERT BRI FEE 2
assets acquired N E (49,825)
Goodwill arising on acquisition B W B i B A 2 PR 8,999

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of &
ETBEL was attributed to the anticipated
profitability of its natural gas and gas
pipeline construction business.

None of the goodwill arising on this
acquisition was expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

AU BsEmEEMELZ
ﬁﬁﬂgﬁéﬁﬂi%ﬁ&%ﬁ

BRRFEL BB
jj o

TEHAY AR B N E L
ZEBAIHIRIA

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition AWEMEE2REREEHE
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired FrisiE 2 SRITREF RIS 258
Cash consideration HeRE (68,824)
(58,566)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WA EEEF 2 FE

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$237,000 attributable to
the acquisition of Z2YZ M8, Revenue of 2
Em 188 included in the Group's revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$1,543,000.

1 5 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

HE-_T—N\F=A=+—
BIEFEZZMNBEFEBER
W g 2K T 8 8 2 237,000
/11712 u‘|’)\$%@@i_7
—N\EZA=+—BLEFE
Wam2ZmERKZE B
1,543,000/ 7T °



38. ACQUISITION OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018
(Continued)

(vi)

In April 2017, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest in IBFEBERTERA A
(“SEFEEE”) at a total cash consideration
of RMB14,000,000 (approximately
HK$16,471,000). The acquisition was
completed in April 2017, on that date the
control in EFFREE was passed to the
Group. SFE B & is engaged in the natural
gas and gas pipeline construction business.
The directors of the Company considered
that the acquisition will bring about a further
synergy effect of the existing business of the
Group.

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(A) REZ2-—N\FEBREHE

DNEAWBER (@)

RZT—EFMA AEFEEA
WEREBEARK14,000,0007T (49
16,471,0007%% 7T) UK 8 35 F %
ERRBERAR ([BFHBEE])
100% A #Exm - WIBER T —
+tFEAZENK - RER - BFHEH
BEHEEREARER - BF
FZEBEBRERRTERRREBER
X% o AR EERAEREEES
BAEBBRABEBEREZHRS
@ o

Consideration transferred EEENAE
HK$'000
FATT
Cash Be 16,471
FHEIRRIERERAT)

2017/18 B3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)

(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through (A)
purchase of subsidiaries in 2018
(Continued)

(vi) (Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition
recognised by the Group:

REZZ-NFEBWEHE
REWIBEE (&)

i) (&)

EEERE (&)
REBRIE B ER 2T
BEERFIAEABZAF
& :

HK$'000

FHIT

Property, plant and equipment W - B RE&E 5,256
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIA 6,060
Other intangible assets Hth\mpEaE 8,180
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EYERIR 651
Bank balances and cash RITHEF LIRS 639
Trade and other payables B 5 KA ERARIE (2,270)
Deferred taxation IRIETRIR (2,045)
16,471

The fair value as well as the gross
contractual amounts of the trade and
other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$651,000 at the date of acquisition. The
best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected was nil.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

RUEER  FTKEEZEZE S K
HMEWERBAFERESD
#8 %8 £651,00058 7T ° BRI
BRHEEBRERKES LR
SR EEGTAE -



38. ACQUISITION OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through

38. WIEKHI B A=) (&)

(A) REZZ-—NFEBWEKHNE

purchase of subsidiaries in 2018 AR B ER ()
(Continued)
(vi)  (Continued) i) (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition RbBEmEE 2EHE
HK$ 000
FHET
Consideration transferred EEEARE 16,471
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B TR R EE Y A TE
assets acquired (16,471)
Goodwill arising on acquisition EU M 2 E -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition HlREmMELEZRESREF
|
HK$ 000
T
Bank balances and cash acquired FrisiE 2 SR1T6EF MRS 639
Deposit paid [EANE-&A 11,364
Cash consideration RERE (16,471)
(4,468)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the - A ES a4

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$638,000 attributable to
the acquisition of IBFE&BI{E. Revenue of I
FHBU1E included in the Group's revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$478,000.

BE_Z-N\F=A=+—
BUEFEZGHNEERER
Y 5 35 F 5% B 4% 2 638,000
BT stAXREEERE_—F
—NFE=ZA=+—HIEFE
WENBEFERERER
478,000/ 7T °

PR RIERERAT
2017/18 B3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017

(i)

On 23 August 2016, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement
with an independent third party, pursuant
to which the Group acquired 89.55%
equity interest of ERMPRETRRERE
BRATF (EEFH") at a consideration
of RMB194,136,000 (approximately
HK$223,145,000). The acquisition was
completed on 1 January 2017, on that date
the control in ERFH#R was passed to the
Group. BRI is principally engaged in
natural gas and gas pipeline construction
business. The directors of the Company
considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing
business of the Group.

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z—LtFEBWEWNE
DL £

(i)

RZE—XRENAZ+=
B AEBZHEBER LS
VEZFAKE R B
I 2N 52 [ W O R R R O
mRRERBRAR ([EE
R 1) Z289.55%A% AHEZS -
REAARE194,136,0007T
(#9223,145,000/8 7T) ° WS
ER_ZE—tF—A—H=E
R RER  BEERMZE
HlEEEEARER - EET
MEBRERARERS KM
REBERER - NRRE
ERBUEETEEALER
MEEBERE SR EBUE -

Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FET
Cash He 223,145

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017

(Continued)

(i

(Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition

recognised by the Group:

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z—LtFEBWEWNE
REWIBEE (&)

(%)

EEERE (&)
REBRIE B ER 2T
BEERFIAEABZAF
& :

HK$'000

FAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NE&E 53,262
Other intangible assets Hth\PAE 206,803
Inventories eSS 15,908
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EUERIE 19,819
Bank balances and cash RITHEE MRS 30,587
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERERIE (23,564)
Deferred taxation ERERIE (54,462)
248,353

Non-controlling interests FEPEAR R (25,953)
Goodwill =S 745
223,145

The fair value as well as the gross
contractual amounts of the trade and
other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$19,819,000 at the date of acquisition.
The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be

collected was nil.

RWER - FrkEZE S &
HitEWEBERATFERELD
#% /319,819,000 7T ° I
Wi A S RBEEKRES L
BemZREGLTRE -

PR RIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through (B) %:g—ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁg
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017 DNEWBER @)
(Continued)

()  (Continued) M (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition RbEmEE 2BHE

HK$ 000
FAET
Consideration transferred EEEARE 223,145

Less: Fair value of identifiable net B TR R E 2 A THE

assets acquired, net of BRI A =

non-controlling interests (222,400)
Goodwill arising on acquisition E RS EE A 2 TR 745

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
SERI AR R was attributed to the anticipated
profitability of its natural gas and gas
pipeline construction business.

None of the goodwill arising on this
acquisition was expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in J7&Fg A
recognised at the date of the acquisition
was measured by reference to the respective
proportionate shares of recognised amounts
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and
amounted to HK$25,953,000.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

AKRBEETRMELEZRE
BHERERAREBL I
REERRFEHZAHAF

ak
e /) °

BN A Z BB N ELE
Z B HREBIA

R ERE

USRS B TR 2 R R SE
IERESELEHENER
AFEEMNSHEBEERS
B I 5l 5T 2 525,953,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)
(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through (B) %:g—ﬁ FEBWIEHE
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017 DNEWBER @)
(Continued)

()  (Continued) M (&)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition ApEmMEEZRESREF
-]
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Frid g 2 SRITRF RIRE 30,587
Cash consideration HaRE (223,145)
(192,558)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WEHAEBEEE TS
Group
Included in the profit for the year ended 31 HE-_ZT—+tF=A=*+—
March 2017 was HK$5,426,000 attributable BUIEFEZGENEBEFEBR
to the acquisition of B " A. Revenue of /7 e B m R MR 25,426,000
FFFR included in the Group's revenue for B st ARNEBEHZE —
the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to T-—tHE=A=+—HI1E
HK$48,370,000. FRWGENBERTREER

48,370,000/ T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017
(Continued)

(ii)

On 31 March 2016, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement
with an independent third party, pursuant
to which the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of ERERMRXARBRAE
RAR (“E5BA”) at a consideration
of RMB11,774,000 (approximately
HK$13,533,000). The acquisition was
completed on 1 July 2016, on that date the
control in EFZ AL was passed to the Group.
EF58IBC is principally engaged in natural
gas and gas pipeline construction business.
The directors of the Company considered
that the acquisition will bring about a further
synergy effect of the existing business of the
Group.

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z—LtFEBWEWNE
REWIBEE (&)

(i)

R-ZE—ARF=A=+—
B RNEBENBAREEFT
FEZFRIL W EHE B
I AREBUWREER K
RARBEBR AT ([EH
L)) Z100%0% A 4 25
REAAR11,774,0007T
(#913,5633,000# 7T) Uy B
ER_ZT—REtA—H%E
K RER BESEKEzE
FliEEEEARER - EEEH
RREBHERARERE LK
REERRER - ARFE
ERBUNBEEEBEALER
REEBERE LR EBE -

Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FHETT
Cash B 13,533

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)
(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through (B) ng—ﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁ B /B
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017 DNEWBER @)
(Continued)

(i) (Continued) iy (&)
Consideration transferred (Continued) EERERE (&)
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities REBERUEE B R Z AT
assumed at the date of acquisition BEERAEAEZAT
recognised by the Group: B
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment W - B R&E 67,441
Inventories "E 1,219
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H At e W AR IA 11,589
Bank balances and cash RITEFRIES 5,432
Trade and other payables B 5 R A A ERERIE (75,242)
10,439
Goodwill [EES 3,094
18,688
The fair value as well as the gross KRB - FﬁHﬁZEﬁZﬁ%&ﬁf@ﬁEH&iﬂE
contractual amounts of the trade and I;E\/D\$@&/E'\'£\"‘7 A8 78 /311,589,00078
other receivables acquired amounted to Lo RIS AR AKRE S NR €
S = [+ = s T
HK$11,589,000 at the date of acquisition. M2 BEERT -

The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected was nil.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)
(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through (B) %:g—ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁ B /B
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017 DNEWBER @)
(Continued)
(i) (Continued) iy (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition AWEmEE ZHE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred EERENRE 13,533
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B FTRE R RE A E 2 ATHE
assets acquired (10,439)
Goodwill arising on acquisition EU S M A A 2 3,094
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of A L e 3 5 ) B T A 2 P
E[ZE8AC was attributed to the anticipated BNEARERAREBL KK
profitability of its natural gas and gas REBEREB2ABER
pipeline construction business. EEWAIS
None of the goodwill arising on this T HA I M BN 5% TE WHE 1T B A
acquisition was expected to be deductible Z BRI RRIE o
for tax purposes.
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEMEEZREREF
4]
HK$'000
FHTT
Bank balances and cash acquired PR 2 SRITREF R ® 5,432
Cash consideration ReERE (13,533)
Deposit paid Bftiee 4,598
(3,503)

16 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. ACQUISITION OF

For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year ended
31 March 2017 was HK$29,995,000
attributable to the acquisition of 5 H#HAT.
Revenue of EZ#IEL included in the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017
amounted to HK$98,042,000.

In April 2015 and June 2016, subsidiaries
of the Group entered into acquisition
agreements with an independent third party
and a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of SK
E&S Co. Ltd., a substantial shareholder of
the Company, pursuant to which the Group
acquired an aggregate 100% equity interest
of E&IMRAEEE at a total consideration
of RMB495,000,000 (approximately
HK$585,515,000). Control in E/&RREE
was obtained by the Group on 30 September
2016. BXMARER is principally engaged in
investment, construction and operation of
natural gas related business. The directors
of the Company considered that the
acquisition will bring about a further synergy
effect of the existing business of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash He

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z2—LtFEBWREHE
DNEAWBER (@)

(i)

(iif)

(%)

WEHAEEEE 2 TE
HE_Z—+t&F=ZA=+—
BIEFEZXERREFBR
1 B 7B b5 88 id 2 29,995,000
B FAREBEHEZET
—+tE=ZA=+—HIt&E
ERmELEILLKEA
98,042,000/ 7T °

RZE—RFRAR-ZE
—RNEXNA  AEEBET
MEBAREBIE =K
SK E&S Co. Ltd.Z 3E 2 &
B AR (SK E&S Co. Ltd.
BEARARREBRE) FIZ
WEEmE B A5
KWEEAMIEE A K
100%M ANz - BRE AR
A R #495,000,0007T (49
585,515,000 L) » A& H
RZE—"FNLA=Z1+HR
BEEMRDEE ZIEH#E -
BEEAMAEEETERER
Z EREEERAZEN
¥ AR EZRAWE
EEBALEBIEFERS
RE Z R RIRE

= E I

HK$'000
TAT

585,515

PR RIERERATE
2017/18 BiiReEs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017
(Continued)

(iii)  (Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition
recognised by the Group:

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z2—LtFEBWREHE
REWIBEE (&)

(iif)

(%)

EEENRE (&)

REBE P AR AT
BEENFAEREZAT
& :

HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment W - B RE&E 643,118
Other intangible assets Hth\pAE 323,292
Prepaid lease payment TEMFEFE 8,811
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEEMZE - BE REEEE
plant and equipment 13,929
Investments in associates REERRIRE 2,247
Inventories eSS 23,972
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWIRIE 91,035
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRIES 149,331
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A R ERIE (463,189)
Taxation 18 (56,812)
Bank and other borrowings IRITRHEMEE (241,294)
Deferred taxation RIERTE (80,823)
Non-controlling interests of the BEEMREEMNB LA
subsidiaries of E /&R EE 2 I g (60,153)
404,464
Goodwill [k 181,051
585,515

The fair value as well as the gross
contractual amounts of the trade and
other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$91,035,000 at the date of acquisition.
The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected was nil.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. ACQUISITION OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through

(Continued)

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z—LtFEBWEWNE

purchase of subsidiaries in 2017 DNEWBER @)
(i) (Continued) (i) (4&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition AWEmEE ZHE
HK$ 000
FAT
Consideration transferred EEEARE 585,515
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W FTWEE R BRI FEE 2 A A
assets acquired (404,464)
Goodwill arising on acquisition EU M 2 E 181,051
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of & WEEEBRMA S B MmEE
IR E=E was attributed to the anticipated ZEABDERERARBEE
profitability of its sales of natural gas and EBRMREBREREBZ

gas pipeline construction business.
None of the goodwill arising on this
acquisition was expected to be deductible

for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

BHIAFEEN

TEHAY A IR B N E L
Z B A HRBIA
WEmMEEZRESREF
#

HK$'000
TAT

Bank balances and cash acquired
Cash consideration paid
Deposit paid

PR 2 SRITREF R ®
ENRERE
EffEe

149,331
(585,515)
9,485

(426,699)

PR RIERERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017
(Continued)

(iii)  (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year ended
31 March 2017 was HK$108,579,000
attributable to the acquisition of ZE&IRE,
=& Revenue of ERMREE included in
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
March 2017 amounted to HK$612,827,000.

(iv)  On 23 June 2016, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement
with Beijing Gas Group Limited which is a
subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises Holdings
Limited (“Beijing Enterprise”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant
to which the Group acquired 51% equity
interest of 1b#AEF/1 at a cash consideration
of RMB234,558,000 (approximately
HK$266,543,000). Control in IL¥AERM was
obtained by the Group on 31 December
2016. EMREEM is principally engaged in
the distribution of city gas and natural
gas for vehicle use and the construction
of long-distance natural gas pipelines. The
directors of the Company considered that
the acquisition will bring about a further
synergy effect of the existing business of the
Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash ke

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=E—+tFEBWREHE
AENBEK (&)
(i) (&)
WEHAEEEE S HE

(iv)

HE-_ZT—+tF=A=+
—HIEFE 2% B IiE 85
BRRBEBEIRIEEZ
108,579,000/ JT ° & A A&
EEBE—_ZT—+E=/H=
+—HIEFEREESER
REE W A612,827,000
BT

RZE—RNEFENA-+=
B A£EHBAREEAA
RIEZREILFIERER
A ([ mEER]) Z KB
ARAERRREEBER A
RIEI B - Bk - &
&= B UL EE b A 88 M Z251%
BAEZDZ BeREAA
R #234,558,0007C (49
266,543,000/8 7T) © A&
RZE—AREFE+_A=+—
H EX 1S 4t #R 558 I 2 22 il 4 o
EREBINEZREHRTRR
DERRARRER KB
AAREENRER - A2 A
EERANBEEBEALSE
EREEBEREZHRM
ﬁg °

EERNE

HK$'000
TAT

266,543



38. ACQUISITION OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017

(Continued)

(iv)

(Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)

SUBSIDIARIES

(iv)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition

recognised by the Group:

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z—LtFEBWEWNE
REWIBEE (&)

(%)

SERNAE (&)
REBERUEE B R Z T
BEENMAAZAGBZAF
A :

HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NE&E 289,230
Intangible assets mEE 242,935
Prepaid lease payments TEMFEFE 38,976
Available-for-sale investments A E 2B 110,485
Inventories e 134,689
Trade and other receivables 5 R AR TR 56,991
Bank balances and cash RITHEFLIES 33,713
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENIRIE (363,752)
Deferred taxation RAETIE (63,276)
479,991
Non-controlling interests SRR = (235,195)
Goodwill [EES 21,747
266,543

The fair value as well as the gross
contractual amounts of the trade and
other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$56,991,000 at the date of acquisition.
The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be

collected was nil.

RWER FTREZES R
HtEWEREBEZ AFERE
#) #4858 556,991,000/ 7T °
RUEE B R EE KD &
AMEMZEEMFTARE
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)
(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through (B) %:g—ﬁﬁiﬁiﬂﬂﬂﬁ B /B
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017 DNEWBER @)
(Continued)

(iv)  (Continued) (&)

Goodwill arising on acquisition RbEmEE 2BHE
HK$'000
FHETT
Consideration transferred EERENRE 266,543
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W MBI FEE S

assets acquired, net of NHE - HIBRIEEAR M R
non-controlling interests (244,796)
Goodwill arising on acquisition AW EmEE e 21,747

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
1E#RERI1 was attributed to the anticipated
profitability of its distribution of city gas and
natural gas and the construction of long-
distance natural gas pipelines business.

None of the goodwill arising on this
acquisition was expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in E#ASHIN
recognised at the date of the acquisition
was measured by reference to the respective
proportionate shares of recognised amounts
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and
amounted to HK$235,195,000.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. ACQUISITION OF

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z — =&

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017
(Continued)

(iv)

(Continued)

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition

Bank balances and cash acquired
Cash consideration paid

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year ended
31 March 2017 was HK$21,563,000
attributable to the acquisition of JE#RERIN.
Revenue of 1b#A88 M included in the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017
amounted to HK$116,836,000.

On 28 June 2016, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement
with Beijing Gas Group (BVI) Co., Ltd which
is a subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
The Group acquired 100% equity interest
of Beijing Gas at a consideration of
HK$1,270,031,000 by the issuance of
110,823,011 ordinary shares of the Company
(closing price of HK$11.46 per share at the
completion date). Control in Beijing Gas
was obtained by the Group on 31 March
2017. Beijing Gas is principally engaged
in the distribution of city gas, natural gas
for vehicle use and construction of long-
distance natural gas pipelines in the PRC.
The directors of the Company considered
that the acquisition will bring about a further
synergy effect of the existing business of the
Group.

—NF=ZA=1t—HLFE

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=

(iv)

PRl 2 RITREF MRS
BENRER(E

—CFFBWEHNE
Y\ 7”&&%%7% ()
(&)
ABEmMEEZRERAR
#®
HK$'000
TET
33,713
(266,543)
(232,830)
WEHAREERAITE

HE_Z—+tF=ZA=+—
HBEFEZZMNBEFEBR
U BE AE A 58 M 2 21,563,000
BT st AREEHE_Z
—+tF=A=+—HIEF
B bR BN K= B
116,836,000 7T °

RZE—ARFSNAZFTAN
H AEEWBAFERA
Al EERE I R 2 K

BARtEMRERBBV)AE
ARG ZWERHE - BB
%% 17110,823,01 108 & & A
LAY - ANE BRI IR E
B Z100%M% Az - R E
/%1,270,031,000/% 7t (R 7=
MEERKEEBI.46/5
TT) c AEBR-ZT—+F=
A=+T—HERBILHMER 2
THIRE - LR BEREZEN S
BEHERTRRERRKA
REXRRBPHAAREE
BREBR - ARBEERE
WHEEEEAAEER B X
TSR E Z W RIUE -

PRI RIZERERATE]
2017/18 BiiReEs



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WEEMIEB A F (@)
(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through (B) R=% —ﬁ FEBWIEHE
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017 DNEWBER @)
(Continued)

(v)  (Continued) v (&)
Consideration transferred BERAME
HK$'000
T
Share issued at fair value AAHEETZIRGN 1,270,031
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities REBRUWE B &7k
assumed at the date of acquisition BEERFAEAEBI AT
recognised by the Group: A :
HK$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment W% - BE M 767,433
Deposits for acquisition of property, WY - BB REEEE
plant and equipment 2,557
Prepaid lease payments TEHEEFIAE 13,055
Intangible assets mVEE 47,240
Investments in associates REEERRIZEE 564,725
Inventories YESSS 49,570
Trade and other receivables H 5 REMEWERIE 147,766
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRIES 222,435
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENIRIE (325,153)
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE (336,818)
Taxation I8 (502)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIBAE (21,386)
Non-controlling interest of the bR RIMTE R P 2 JEE AR R
subsidiaries of Beijing Gas (27,699)
1,103,223
Goodwill P 166,808
1,270,031

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. ACQUISITION OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017
(Continued)

(v)

(Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)

The fair value as well as the gross
contractual amounts of the trade and
other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$147,766,000 at the date of acquisition.

The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected was nil.

In addition to the 51% equity interests in 3t
B¥REBN acquired as mentioned in note 38(B)
(iv), the Group further acquired 48% equity
interests in JE#ASFIN through the above
acquisition at a consideration equivalent
to the carrying amount of the additional
interest acquired.

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z2—LtFEBWREHE
REWIBEE (&)

(v)

(%)

SEERE (&)

RIKER - IREZE SR
HEMEWEBEZ AFERE
#)4EEE 147,766,000 T °

KU B S ERERZKRE S
HWRE M REBFTRE

B DA I Bff 5E38(B)(iv)12 K Ut
BB M 251 %A s
S AR EE B W B A
RERENKREEI M ES
FREEEE - S WRBIL NS
M2 48%FXHE -

Goodwill arising on acquisition HUBEmMEEZEE
HK$'000
FHETT
Consideration transferred BERERE 1,270,031

Less: Fair value of identifiable net
assets acquired

B FTRE R R EE 2 ATHE

(1,1083,223)

Goodwill arising on acquisition

RUBEmMEL 22

166,808

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
Beijing Gas was attributed to the anticipated
profitability of its distribution of city gas,
natural gas and construction of long-
distance natural gas pipelines business.

RUBIERERMELZE
BNERERTRR - XA
REZNMKBHAARES
BEFEH EHARNES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through
purchase of subsidiaries in 2017
(Continued)

(v)

(Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition (Continued)
None of the goodwill arising on this
acquisition was expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

(B) R=Z2—LtFEBWREHE
REWIBEE (&)

(v)

(%)

RWEmEE2EE (&)
RN A Z BB ELE
ZEERIRBIA

Bank balances and cash acquired

PR 2 SRITREFE RS

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

No profit and revenue for the year ended
31 March 2017 was attributable to the
acquisition of Beijing Gas.

(C) Acquisition of assets through purchase
of a subsidiary in 2018

(i)

In 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Continental Hong Kong Group
Limited (“Continental HK”) which holds
25% equity interest in J&FZ/E P at a total
consideration of HK$750,000,000. The
acquisition was completed with significant
influence exercised in J&ZET in April 2017.
Continental HK is an investment holding
entity, while J&F5&P is engaged in the
natural gas business.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HREMEEZRERAF
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C) REZ-—NFEBWEBEHE
DNEWBEE

(i)

RZTE—tF XEENUR
IR % X 750,000,000/ 7T
WENEEBEEBEERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION
(CONTINUED)

OF

(C) Acquisition of assets through purchase

SUBSIDIARIES

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

C) R=F-—NFEBWEBEHE

of a subsidiary in 2018 (Continued) NRINBEE (&)
(i)  (Continued) W (&
Consideration transferred EEERE

HK$'000
THTT
Unsettled consideration (Note) REERE 200,000
Cash consideration HeRE 550,000
750,000

Provisional fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition

REBERNUE B HERZ TR
BEERMAEABEERE

recognised by the Group: EZANFE :
HK$'000
FAET
Investment in an associate R—REBE A ZIEE 1,037,622
Trade and other receivables 5 REMEUARTE 9,539
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIRS 17
Other payables (Note) HibpeftARIE (fiaE) (296,112)
Amount due to an associate i DRl A/NCIE Gzl (112)
Taxation 18 (954)
750,000
Note: Included in the other payables balance Mz R EMENEREZR

is an amount of HK$249,985,000 which
represents an amount due by Continental
HK to former shareholders of J&B&/%
P§. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement for this acquisition, the vendor
agreed to settle any amount payable to
former shareholders of J&[5/& 70 in excess
of HK$249,985,000, if required, The Group
will settle the remaining consideration of
HK$200,000,000 when the above payable
balance is duly settled. The unsettled
consideration is included in trade and other
payables (see note 30).

The initial accounting for the above

acquisition
provisionally, awaiting the

determined
receipt of

has been

professional valuation in relation to the
investment in an associate.

249,985,000 JT Z K 1B
BNEEBEMNESER
ATRRER 2 378 - RIEZIB
WEZEERE AR
ERFERSETMABR
249,985,000 7T FE - 3B
5 EPEATIRER 2 U8 » &K
SEER i ENETE
BEER  BERBRE
200,000,0005 JT » & /&
BEREFAESREME
WARTE (RKIEES0) °

PR BERZ VSRR
BHEREE  DAFRE
ERAN—HBERRZRE
ZBEMMERETE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(C) Acquisition of assets through purchase

38. WEEKIE 2 7] (&)

C) REZ-NFEBWBEKHE

. . . N I =]
of a subsidiary in 2018 (Continued) REABREE (8
(i) (Continued) M &)
2= §
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition ?;L&gg L L

HK$'000
FHET
Bank balances and cash acquired FriE « IRTTEEF RIS 17
Cash consideration HaRE (5650,000)
Deposit paid previously LRIES1ES 200,000
(349,983)

If the above acquisitions of businesses during the year
ended 31 March 2018 had been completed on 1 April
2017, total group revenue and profit for the year would
have been HK$52,895,611,000 and HK$6,671,035,000
respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of the operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had above
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2017, nor is it
intended to be projection of future results.

If the above acquisitions of businesses during the year
ended 31 March 2017 had been completed on 1 April
2016, total group revenue and profit for the year would
have been HK$33,997,795,000 and HK$5,057,221,000
respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of the operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had above
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2016, nor is it
intended to be projection of future results.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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39.

40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimization of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which include the amounts due to associates and joint
ventures and bank and other borrowings disclosed in
notes 20, 24 and 31 respectively, and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital disclosed in note 32, reserves and accumulated
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the management, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

39. EXERERE

AEEERLAL  UREAEERT
ERGTRENSACEEREE
B B B (L B T RIS T 8 A R
%o ER - AREE Y BERRA TS o

AEBEZEXRGERRER (KBRS
RIRAMTE20 « 24 RINRE 2 BB R
AINABRARBNLRITREMER)
RARBEE NS (B E328
BZOBTRAURGAREE BRI
B2 i R RS FIARK) -

BEEREZEARAREZERER
ERZRARBRIERNERE - ENEEE
ZEE ARESEERMNKE - BT
MR BTHEIELREGER FEE
ERENGE -

40. €RT B

SRTAER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Financial assets TRUBE
Available-for-sale investments AMHHEZIRE 409,176 324,304
Held-for-trading investments RIEEEREA 48,077 27,402
Loans and receivables (including BN EWERIE (B4
cash and cash equivalents) ReMRE&EEEE) 14,973,586 9,102,191
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost i3IS 43,295,330 31,776,061
Derivative financial instrument TTESBMITA 2,338 936




40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading
investments, amounts due from associates and joint
ventures, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables, amounts due to associates and joint
ventures, amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries, derivative financial instrument, bank and
other borrowings, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risks

Currency risk

The Group collects most of its revenue in RMB and most
of the expenditures as well as capital expenditures
are also denominated in RMB. However, the Group has
certain bank balances, amount due to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary and bank and other borrowings
that are not denominated in functional currency of
the respective group entities. The appreciation or
devaluation of RMB against foreign currencies may have
positive or negative impact on the results of operations
of the Group.

During the current year, the Group entered into a cross
currency interest rate swaps contract (see note 34) to
mitigate against the USD foreign currency risk arising
from its USD denominated bank borrowings as detailed
in note 31.

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. €@ T A @)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

BREREEEERBER (@)

misEkE ()

Currency risk (Continued) EXmEE (&)
As at end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts R ERR - NEELINESTEZ G
of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities that are BERBECERRENAT
denominated in foreign currency are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2018 2017 2018 2017
St T Bl T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHT FHET FHET
usD EW 396,925 164,183 1,783,636 816,486
HK$ BIT 567,563 75,857 2,908,627 881,651
JPY H = = 595,241 544,511
EURO BT - - 19,869 18,175

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
against respective foreign currencies. 5% (2017: 5%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2017:5%) change in foreign currencies
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5% (2017:
5%) against the USD, JPY and EURO or where RMB
weakening 5% (2017:5%) against HK$. For a 5% (2017:
5%) weakening of RMB against the USD, JPY and EURO
or strengthening against the HK$, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the result for the year and
the balance below would be negative.

BURE DT
TRAMAEEGRARYE X ZINEFE
T ES% (ZF—+HF : 5%) 2 Rk
Feb% (ZE—+tF :5%) BRAEE
EEABRIBEMING R FT A 2 B
BHER  IRREEBINEE RS IE
AREE BT 2 - MBELNER
BEOTEINZINEFTEERIER @ Wit
HNSTER 7 5% (ZB—+4F : 5%) &
RMEMRFAEELRE - TRFIRZIE
BiEHWARK Y E - AR REUTH
B5% (ZZE—+%F : 5%) KA ETiE
5% (T T —+4F :5%) B BFE%
FMeBsmLEA - - WARERZET - A
METRER LB THES (ZF—t
F:5%) B BEFEEEBKAERE
RAZFE  BTlESREEEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

40. €T A &)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

BREREEEERBER (@)

misEkE ()
B (&)
GRED (B)

Increase
in post-tax profit for the year

FERBIEIEFIE M
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FAT
USD impact ELHE 52,090 24,461
HK$ impact B 87,790 30,218
JPY impact =RE 22,322 20,420
EURO impact BUTR & 745 682
162,947 75,781

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based
on interest rate level as well as potential impact on the
Group’s financial position arising from volatility.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to amounts due from associates, and
fixed-rate bank and other borrowings issued by the
Group (see notes 24 and 31 for details of these balances
respectively).

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 i E=ZE—N\F=H=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
floating-rate bank and other borrowings (see notes
29 and 31 for details of bank balances and these
borrowings respectively). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rate risk for both floating-rate
bank and other borrowings, together with the interest
capitalised to construction in progress at the end of
the reporting period. Floating-rate bank balances have
not been included in the sensitivity analysis as the
management considers that the interest rate would not
fluctuate significantly in the near future and therefore
the financial impact to the group is not significant. A
change of 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points) was
applied to the yield curves and interest rate on both
floating-rate bank and other borrowings, together with
the interest capitalised to construction in progress. The
applied change is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. If the interest rate of variable
rate bank and other borrowings, had been 100 basis
points (2017: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, after taking into
account the interest capitalised to construction in
progress, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year, after
taking amount of interest capitalised to construction in
progress, would decrease/increase by HK$161,006,000
(2017: HK$130,440,000).

40.

R T A @)

BHEREERERBE (@)

SRR ()

FEmfE (&)

A& EINE RS ¥ B RITREF TR
RITMEMEE (RERTEFLEER
HBORI R E29831) 2BEREN
FEE - AKEZBRILDFRRZFH
MEMEEAFERERXFEN @R -

BURRE DT
BREESWMNREZERTREMES
ZHRER  BERRBEHREBRE
BIRBENMZFEETE BARERE
RANA RERAETG KIBEE - &
EBMMMEZETK WA EEZER
TRFFABBREDNF - EEER
AhEMEEZREHMERFE (EF
BARERIRERZFE) FH100
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s certain available-for-sale investments
and held-for-trading investments are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to equity price risk. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks of listed
equity instrument at the reporting date. A 10% (2017:
10%) change is used when reporting equity price risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in equity price.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, if the market bid
prices of the listed investments had been 10% (2017:
10%) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
would increase/decrease by HK$4,014,000 (2017:
HK$2,288,000) and the Group’s investment revaluation
reserve will increase/decrease by HK$12,337,000
(2017: HK$14,293,000) respectively. This is mainly
attributable to the changes in fair values of the listed
held-for-trading investments and available-for-sale
investments respectively.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’'s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties or debtors provided by the Group is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
financial assets classified as loans and receivables
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each half-reporting end date
and end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in the PRC and
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not
have any significant concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of
sub-contractors, commercial and household customers.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - =

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The policy of allowances for doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of accounts and on management’s estimate.
In determining whether impairment is required, the
Group takes into consideration of aging status and
likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made
for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised on the difference between the estimated
future cash flows expected to receive discounted using
the original effective interest rate and the carrying value.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowance may be
required.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition to issuance of
new shares, the Group also relies on bank and other
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. The
Group has net current liabilities of HK$2,224,273,000
(2017: HK$7,216,492,000) as at 31 March 2018. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis because the directors believe
that the Group has sufficient funds to finance its
current working capital requirements taking account
of the cash flows from operations and assuming the
continuing ability to utilise the available long-term bank
loans facilities. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had
available unutilised long-term bank loans facilities of
HK$72,304,689,000 (2017: HK$62,955,853,000). Details
of the Group’'s bank and other borrowings as at 31 March
2018 are set out in note 31.
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e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. €@t T B (@)
Financial risk management objectives and MBREREEBFEREEK (@)
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) HizEE (E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEAE SR ()
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining TRHFMAEBGHIIETESHEBEZ
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BRTEHINEHER - FHSIKRIEREEH
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the ARERNRzETAHNERBER
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based BRI MR o
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal gross KPP BENERARERESMEMETE o i
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating RFBHHNEFR - RUEREBRBRED
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest REFE RS o
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
Liquidity tables TBEL R
Carrying
Weighted amount
average Payable Between Between Total attheend
contractual on Less than Tto 3months Between Over undiscounted  of reporting
interest rate demand 1 month 3months tolyear  1toSyears 5years cash flows period
it 337 AR REEEE

aRNE  ZERRRE  OWN-BR -fAE=ER =@RE-§  -¥ERf EENE RERER  ZEEEE
% Hk§000 HK$000 Hk§000 HK$000 Hk§000 HK$000 Hk§000 HK$000
% Thn TEL TEL TAL ThT TRT T TRL

At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE

=ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial #f744REE
liabilities
Trade and bill payables  EHEMER

REMZE - - 2,179,73% 1,072,484 3,141,068 1,076,689 - 7,469,075 7,469,975
Other payablesand ~ EAE(EE
accrued charges RIEHER - - 2,201,717 533,034 238,140 - - 3,063,791 3,063,791
Amounts due to EfHBAA
non-controlling iR
interests of -]
subsidiaries - 300,577 - - - - - 300,577 300,577
Bank and other BOREEE
horrowings
- fixed rate ! 3.4 - - - 6,303,812 7,003,461 503,880 13811162 12,778,824
- floating rate -8 4,63 - - 37,691 7169412 12,441,076 1606653 21254832 19,593,597
Amountsduetojoint  FEFFAEAR
ventures pi vl - 88,441 - - - - - 88,441 88,441
Amounts due to EREELF
associates LR - 125 - - - - - 125 125

389,143 4,471,451 1,644,109 16,852,432 20,521,226 2,110,542 45,988,903 43,295,330
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. €@ T A @)
Financial risk management objectives and MBREREEBFEREEK (@)
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) mERE ()
Liquidity tables (Continued) TBEL K (&)
Carrying
Weighted amount
average Payable Between Between Total attheend
contractual on Less than 1to 3months Between Over undiscounted of reporting
interest rate demand 1 month 3months tolyear  1toSyears 5years cash flows period
ik 3] ABR REEER

A0FE  ZREREE  JW-BA -BAE=@R =@AE-§  -%Eif BENE  REREE  CREGE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
% T Tin Tin T Tin T TEn T

At31March 2017 R-B-t§

=A=1-A
Non-derivative financial A4 4REE
liabilities
Trade and bill payables  EHEMER
RERZE = - 2,317,685 760737 954,695 973122 - 5,008,239 5,006,239
Otherpayablesand ~ HffERER
accrued charges REHER = - 1478412 344,443 153,628 - - 1,976,483 1,976,483
Amounts due to R EAE]
non-controlling FERER
interests of i
subsidiaries - 216,572 - - - - - 276,572 276,572
Bank and other BORAMEE
borrowings
~fived rate -E8 360 - - - 11817 6,676,468 478,962 8,567,247 7738621
- floating rate -8 479 - 707,266 476912 9,158,172 8,493,334 889,995 19,725,679 15,879,814
Amountsduetojoint  ERFAERR
ventures 3B - 797,393 - - - - - 797,393 797,393
Amounts due to EfEERF
associates LB = 100,939 - - - - - 100939 100939
1,174,904 4,503,363 1,582,092 11478312 16,342,924 1,368,957 36,450,562 31,776,061
The amounts included above for variable rate bank WZMNEA S A RN R EH RS
borrowings are subject to change if changes in variable FEREARE - BIA L FBIRITEE
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates RS ER S NE -

determined at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. €@t T B (@)
Fair value measurements of financial SRMIAAFETNE
instruments
This note provides information about how the Group AT REEALAEENNEESES
determines fair values of various financial assets. BMEEANTFEZER -
()  Fairvalue of the Group’s financial assets that are (i) AEERBESEEERATEE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis ZEMEERFE
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are REEZATFEFABZCEHE
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting EDREREHRELATENE -
period. The following table gives information about TREHBANAIETZESRE
how the fair values of these financial assets are EZAVFEZER -
determined.
Fair value
DA Fair value
Financial assets 2018 2017 hierarchy
THEE —2-)\f¥ —2—+tF DHERR
Held-for-trading Listed equity securities in Listed equity securities in Level 1
investments Hong Kong — HK$48,077,000 Hong Kong — HK$27,402,000
RHIEEERE EBLHRAES BELMREES F—&
48,077,000 7T —27,402,0007% 7T
Available-for-sale Listed equity securities in Listed equity securities in Level 1
investments Hong Kong — HK$123,371,000 Hong Kong — HK$142,934,000
AfHEZRE BB LHRAES BALTRAES £
123,371,0007% T — 142,934,000/ 70
Derivative Financial Cross currency interest rate swap Cross currency interest rate swap  Level 2
Instrument Hong Kong — HK$2,338,000 Hong Kong — HK$936,000
PTESRIA EBRXEEBRIRERY BARXEENRIEHES 2t
2,338,000/ 70 — 936,000/ 7T
There were no transfer between instruments in E-R_RIAZHERMEFES
Level 1 and 2 in both years. IR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
arecurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities, except for corporate bonds, is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their respective fair values.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 41, METHELE 2B BYHIR @)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Amounts

Borrowings due to non-

(including Amounts controlling

Consideration loan interest due to joint interest of
Payables payables) ventures  subsidiaries

& (B ENEE EAHELAR
ENRE EAERNE) DAZHE FEREZERA

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET TAEL
(Notes 30
and 31)

(PfEE3031)

At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FNA—H 550,964 283,727,533 794,653 276,572 25,349,722
Financing cash flows RERERE (321,966) 6,460,348 (794,653) 19,324 5,363,053
Foreign exchange translation ~ SNEITE 53,448 1,244,713 = 4,681 1,302,842
Interest expenses FEHY - 1,119,264 - - 1,119,264
Consideration payables ERRE 200,000 = = = 200,000
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\E=A=+—H 482,446 32,551,858 = 300,677 33,334,881
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

42. COMMITMENTS 42. EiE
Operating lease arrangements BERNZH
The Group as lessee AEBEREABEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIpEHR - NEBIREE T2 EHEE
commitments for future minimum lease payments w2 AR EE I E YR KRB SR
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect MABERR R 2 HERBSAT :
of rented premises and equipment which fall due as
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T
Within one year —FR 135,215 56,735
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF
(BREREMF) 105,149 74,688
After five years hEE 62,456 79,893
302,820 211,316
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable AN 2N RIEREERTBEMER
by the Group in respect of rented premises and REENZES HEWELEZERY
equipment. Leases for rented premises and equipment KETFIEHABEA—FNF HEETFE -

are negotiated for an average term of one to six years
with fixed rental.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

42. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Operating lease arrangements (Continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

42, AIE @)

mEMENZHE @)

AEBERHBEA

RBEHR - REBEETIHEERZT
AREEENEKERY - AEEE R
HEPRATARREBRENRR A
#

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —FR 13,473 22,320

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF

(BEEEMF) 4,226 27,975
After five years hEE 416 13,332
18,115 63,627

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to ten
years with fixed rentals.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has capital
commitments in respect of the acquisition for property,
plant and equipment and construction materials for
property, plant and equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements
amounting to HK$134,766,000 (2017: HK$121,324,000)
and HK$54,934,000 (2017: HK$81,825,000) respectively.

In October 2016, the Group cooperated with CIIF to
establish the Fund and the capital commitment of the
Group regarding the Fund is set out in note 20.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43. EEEH
The Group pledged certain non-current and current REBHRETHERR 2H TIERS
assets and equity interests over certain subsidiaries LnBEERKRERRTIRITHSFHK
to banks or financial institutions to secure loan B EREERERCEXRBE ZER -
facilities granted to the Group. Carrying amount of the EEBTRITSREBIEATEER
non-current and current assets pledged to banks or BeERRMEERZERBDERDEE
financial institutions to secure loan facilities granted FREMEWT :

to the Group is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET T
Long-term loan facilities REENRE
Investment properties "EYE - 72,200
Property, plant and equipment W - BB &H - 31,267
Other deposits HAfRES 68,323 -
Short-term loan facilities EHERRE
Pledged bank deposits DRI ER 290,729 517,676
359,052 621,143
At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s equity RIBEEAKR - AT RNETFHBATZ
interests in certain subsidiaries were pledged to a bank EAREREMBETFAER ZEZEREIR
for credit facilities granted to the Group. WP —RRTT -
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44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 44, RIKEFIGTHE

The Group has joined a MPF Scheme for all employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at rate specified in
the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect of
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available
to reduce the contribution payable in the future years at
31 March 2018 and 2017.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
covered by the retirement and pension schemes defined
by local practice and regulations. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement and pension schemes.
The only obligation of the Group in respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contribution.

The calculation of contributions for PRC eligible staff is
based on certain percentage of the applicable payroll
costs. The contribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated
based on the rules set out in the MPF Ordinance which
is 5% on the basic salary of the relevant employee
subject to a specific ceiling.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - =

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the amounts due from (to) related parties
and transactions as disclosed in notes 20, 24, 27 and
30 respectively, the Group entered into the following
transactions with major related parties that are not
members of the Group:

(i)

(iif)

(vi)

(vii)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
purchased gas for total amount of HK$30,005,000
(2017: HK$27,045,000) from a joint venture.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group sold consumables and spare parts for
a total amount of HK$1,392,418,000 (2017:
HK$136,475,000) to joint ventures.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
received other contracted construction revenue
for total amount of HK$2,375,950,000 (2017:
HK$42,389,000) from joint ventures.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group purchased consumables and spare parts
for total amount of HK$616,171,000 (2017:
HK$309,445,000) from associates.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
purchased gas appliances for total amount of
HK$1,302,663,000 (2017: HK$234,029,000) from
an associate.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
received interest income for total amount of
HK$480,000 (2017: HK$1,120,000) from a joint
venture.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
received management fee income for total amount
of HK$12,324,000 from joint ventures.
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(iif)

(vi)

(vii)

(E=E-N\F=ZA=+—HLHF
€ A& E %4 530,005,000
BT (ZZE—+F : 27,045,000/%8
J0) M—EAEEARIBEMRSE -
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JL) °

HE-ZT—\F=A=+—HLF
B AEERBERRFEEERE
m R 2% 5616,171,0007
L (ZZ —+ % : 309,445,000
JL) °

HE-ZT— \HF=A=+—HLHF
B AEER—HBEQREE
MR ES L 42%851,302,663,000/%8
T (ZZ — 4 : 234,029,000
JL) °

HE-_Z— N \F=ZA=1+—HLHF
o AEER—HAERQEWER
A58 5480,0008 T (ZE—+
£ 11,120,000 7T) °

BE—_Z—N\F=ZA=1+—HLHF
B AEBREAERARKDRERE
WA HE%E 512,324,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. B A RS (&)
(CONTINUED)

The remuneration of key management of the Group was AEEFRZEREE HMEWT
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT
Short-term benefits ySEGLER 50,093 42,138
Post employment benefits BEERIZ BRI 62 54
Share-based payments VARGt BERE R 2 236,130 =
286,285 42,192
The remuneration of key management is determined FEEEEMeBFHNEESLERE
by the remuneration committee having regard to the AKRBRRTISBRIEETE

performance of individuals and market trends.



For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - =

46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 30 March 2017,the Company received a form of claim
filed by a former director of the Company in the Labour
Tribunal of Hong Kong claiming approximately HK$140
million (being the alleged loss of salary in the sum of
HK$21.6 million (annual salary of HK$7.2 million) for
the three financial years ended 31 March 2014 and the
aggregate bonus in the sum of approximately HK$118.4
million for the four financial years ended 31 March
2014) and other unliquidated damages and interest
from the Company for the alleged wrongful dismissal by
the Company of a former director of the Company as a
director and an employee of the Company on 29 March
2011. By the mutual consent of the parties to the claim,
the claim has been transferred to the Court of First
Instance of the High Court.

In addition, the above former director and other share
option holders initiated legal proceedings against the
Company with regard to their respective purported
exercise of share options.

In respect of the aforementioned legal proceedings,
the Company has sought advice from its legal advisors
and has been advised that there is a sound basis for
defending the above claims, no provision of contingent
liabilities (2017: nil) was provided as at 31 March 2018.
For details of the legal proceedings, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 2 June 2017
on the website of the Stock Exchange (please note
that the above former director has since withdrawn his
claims against the Company in respect of HCA751/2017
referred to in the said announcement).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
SRR LR, HRERTRE/
WEARER BRHE FHRERA AfEx
RRREEZCRI) PRC Wholly-foreign Registered
BRAH owned US$187,800,000
enterprises
("WFOE”)
P HERERF B}
(TWFOE]) 187,800,000%7T
IR EBR AT PRC WFOE Registered
US$250,000,000
PE WFOE Gl
250,000,000% 7T
I RRRARDBEREM  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
BRADE] equity joint RMB20,000,000
venture
i PR ERT] AR
20,000,0007T
wRTRATIREEE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
LN equity joint RMB44,000,000
venture
i PR ERT] AR
44,000,0007T
HERRRATIREEE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
LN equity joint RMB100,000,000
venture
i PR ERT] AR
100,000,0007T

47. TEMB QTS

FEMBRARIFENT :
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company  Principal activities
FARFRERITRE
& A E Al EL:3 34
2018 2017
T2\ e
) %
100* 100 Investment holding and
treasury
REZRRER
100* 100 Investment holding and
treasury
REERRER
607 60%*  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
RARHEER
MREEER
807 80%*  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
RARHEER
MREEER
90## 90%*  Sales of natural gas

and gas pipeline

construction
RARHER

MREBER

PR RIERERAT
2017/18 B3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
SRR LR, HRERTRE/
WEARER BRHE FHRERA AfEx
BEETMHTMEREE  PRC Limited liability Registered
BRAT] company RMB70,000,000
P BRAEANH EMARE
70,000,0007T
EETPRHATIREEE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
BRDA] equity joint RMB72,000,000
venture
P PR ERE EMARE
72,000,0007T
ZRPMRARARRA PRC Sino-foreign Registered
equity joint RMB118,950,000
venture
P PR ERE EMARE
118,350,0007C
ZRPTHTREEE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
BRDA] equity joint RMB16,002,000
venture
P PR ERE EMARE
16,002,0007T
WFRATIREEE  PRC WFOE Registered
BRAT] US$3,060,000
P WFOE Gl
3,060,000%7T

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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47. TEMB N EFHE (@)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company  Principal activities
FARFRERITRE
& A E Al EL:3 34
2017
e S
%

70%# 70%*  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER
100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
RARHER
MREBRER
100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
RARHEER
MREBRER
100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
RARHER
MREBRER
100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas

and gas pipeline
RARFEER
MREBER
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
SRR LR, HRERTRE/
WEARER BRHE FHRERA AfEx
TR AR PRC Sino-foreign Registered
equity joint US$40,000,000
venture
P PO ERE i
40,000,000%7T
EETMHMREEE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
BRDA] equity joint RMB265,725,000
venture
P PR ERE EMARE
265,725,0007T
BETPREREMA  PRC Limited liability Registered
BERA company RMB38,000,000
P BRAEANH EMARE
38,000,0007T
BETRRAMR PRC Limited liability Registered
BERA company RMB20,000,000
P BRAEANH EMARE
20,000,0007T
AARMITRARE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
BRDA] equity joint RMB200,000,000
venture
P PO ERE EMARE
200,000,0007T

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
RAAMBERITRE
& A E Al

2017
—T—+F
%

47. TEMB N EFHE (@)

Principal activities

IERH

75##

75##

64*

64**

64

64**

64

64**

100%# 100%

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHEER
MREBRER

Design, construction
and maintenance of
city pipeline projects

HTRREE LR
Bt RARAE

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHEER
MREBRER

HERRIERERAT

2017/18 B3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
SRR LR, BrERaRE/
WEARER BRHE FHRERA AfEx
FEHFRATIREEE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
BRDA] equity joint RMB42,000,000
venture
P PR ERE EMARE
42,000,0007T
BETMHTIREEE  PRC WFOE Registered
BRAT] RMB50,000,000
i WFOE EMARK
50,000,0007C
IR PRC Sino-foreign Registered
equity joint RMB133,330,000
venture
P PR ERE EMARE
133,330,0007C
EETFRHTIREEE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
BRDA] equity joint RMB20,000,000
venture
P PR ERE EMARE
20,000,0007T
BEMARERAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
equity joint RMB183,800,000
venture
P PO ERE EMARE
183,800,0007C

20 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

47. TEMB N EFHE (@)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company  Principal activities
FARFRERITRE
& A E Al EL:3 34
2017
e S
%

100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER

100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER
70%# 70%*  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
RARHEER
MREBRER

100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER
80" 80%*  Sales of natural gas

and gas pipeline

construction
RARHER

MREBER
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paidupissued  issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital ~ held by the Company  Principal activities
FRRLREMR, BREBRARE/ KRDAIAFBCRORE/
WEA R AR BXH EBREYA SMER aMEREELA FTEER
2017
—T—+F
%
BEMRARMIET  PRC Limited liability Registered 80 80 Design, construction
HRERAR company RMB20,000,000 and maintenance of
city pipeline projects
hE BRAEANH AARE HmRREE LR
20,000,0007T Rt ERRAE
DEThaRER PRC Limited liability Registered 100 100 Investmentin
BRRA company RMB1,130,000,000 petrochemical
facilities of storage
and transportation,
fundamental
facilities of pier,
sales of raw
chemical materials
and construction
materials
hE BREAATF AARE RiLEERTRES
1,130,000,0007% REREENRR
5~ Rt SmHt
RBEMHEHE
AT REBRR PRC Limited liability Registered 100## 1007  Producing and storing
BRAF company RMB300,000,000 LPG and chemical
products
HhE BREAAF FHARE & RE#FLPG
300,000,0007T RtIER
FEIRRIZERER AT

47. TEMB N EFHE (@)

2017/18 B3R
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47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. TEWE R RFE @

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paidupissued  issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital ~ held by the Company  Principal activities
SRR LR, BRERORE/ ARFAMBERORE/
WEARER BRHE EBREYA SMER aMEREELA FTEER
2017
e S
%
ENELRRRE PRC Limited liability Registered 95.37# 95.37%%  Manufacturing of
BRRA company USD60,000,000 highly purified LPG,
highly purified
propane and butane
hE BREAATF Eali HERHELPG
60,000,0005%7C BHRRRT
AR E R PRC Limited liability Registered 100## 100 Sales of LPG
BRAR company RMB400,000,000
Tl BREMEAHA EMARK LPGH#HE
400,000,0007T
Fortune Gas Investment  Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding,
Holdings Limited HK$702,730,911 sales of natural gas
and CBM business
Bt RalipAv i RERR AR
702,730911587C $HE - RCBVER
TREEMFERRAF  PRC Limited liability Registered 80 80  Sales of natural gas
company RMB50,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
hE BREAAT FARE RARHE
50,000,0007T RREERR
BMEREGRAT  PRC WFOE Registered 100* 100 Investment holding
RMB30,000,000
P WFOE AR RAER
30,000,0007T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
FRRLREMR, HRERTRE/
WEA R AR ek EBREYA SMER
EHEMRRERLR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered
equity joint RMB64,000,000

venture

hE PO ERE AARE
64,000,0007T
EHMMRRABBAE  HongKong Incorporated Ordinary
USD59,027,780
B AL ER
59,027,780% 7T
MM TR PRC Limited liability Registered
EREARAA company RMB100,000,000
hE BREFAT AARE
100,000,0007T
ispileh el i) PRC Limited liability Registered
EREARAA company RMB50,000,000
hE BREFAT AARE
50,000,0007T
BERRPAAR PRC Limited liability Registered
REARAA company RMB16,000,000
hE BREFAT AARE
16,000,0007T

47. TEMB N EFHE (@)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company  Principal activities
RAAMBERITRE
& A E Al FTEER
2017
e S
%

100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER
7 70%  Explorationand
production of coal
bed methane
R R ERRR

100%# 100%  Design, construction
and maintenance of
city pipeline projects

HTRREE LR
Ret - BRLAE

100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER
75 75%  Design, construction

and maintenance of

city pipeline projects
HHREETLR

Ret - BERER

HERRIERERAT

2017/18 B3R
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(CONTINUED)

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
FRRLREMR, BRERTRE/
WEARER BENDY EBRRERA FER
AR R PRC Limited liability Registered
REBBRAT company RMB150,000,000
HE BREFAT FMARE
150,000,0007C
AR TR PRC Limited liability Registered
EREARAA company RMB40,000,000
HE BREFAT FMARE
40,000,0007C
AERRH TR PRC Limited liability Registered
EREARAA company RMB300,000,000
HE BREFAT FHARE
300,000,0007C
HRERER (A)  PRC Limited liability Registered
BRRA company US$59,600,000
HE BREFAT i
59,600,000%7C
AYTRRFRRLI  PRC Limited liability Registered
BRLA company US$10,000,000
HE BREFAT FHh
10,000,000%7T

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

47. TEMB N EFHE (@)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company  Principal activities
RAAMBERITRE
& A E Al FTEER
2017
e S
%

99## 99%*  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RARHER
MREBRER
100%# 100%  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
RARHER
MREBRER
100%# 100%  Design, construction
and maintenance of
city pipeline projects
HTRREE LR
Ret - BRLAE
100%# 100 Gas station
construction,
management and
consultancy services
MRILER - B
Rk AR
100%# 100%  Production of natural
gas
RAREE
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e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. TEWE R RFE @

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paidupissued  issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital ~ held by the Company  Principal activities
SRR LR, BRERORE/ ARFAMBERORE/
WEARER BRHE EBREYA SMER aMEREELA FTEER
2017
e S
%
HEREFMATMA  PRC Limited liability Registered 85+ 85  Design, construction
EREARAA company RMB397,050,000 and maintenance of
city pipeline projects
P BREARR EMARE HRREE LR
397,050,0007C Rt ERRAE
HREREERE S PRC Limited liability Registered 100 100 Development,
BRDA] company RMB100,000,000 consultancy services
and investment in
clean energy
P BREERA FMARE FIE - AR
100,000,0007T RBERRE
RMARERER  PRC Limited liability Registered 100 100 Provision of
(RINERAT] company RMB100,000,000 management
services to group
companies
HE BREAAT FMARE AEERAR ARM
100,000,0007T EER%
BHREREFAMA  PRC Limited liability Registered 65*# 65%  Sales of natural gas
BEERRAR company RMB133,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HE BREAAT FMARE RARMHE
133,000,0007T RREERR
Panva Gas Holdings BVI Incorporated Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding and
Limited US$1,111 sales of LPG
SBRES Bilijavs it REERRLPGIHE
1IMET
FEIRRIZERER AT

2017/18 B3R
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47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. TEWE R RFE @

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paidupissued  issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital ~ held by the Company  Principal activities
SRR LR, BRERORE/ ARFAMBERORE/
WEARER EESiE FHRERA SMER aMEREELA FTEER
2017
“EtF
%
China Natural Gas BVI Incorporated Registered 100* 100*  Investment holding
Investments Limited UsD100
EBENS AL i 100%T RERR
Panriver Investments ~ BVI Limited liability Registered 100## 100 Investment holding
Company Limited company HK$200,000,000
RBRENS BREERA ERali REER
200,000,000/87C
Energy Link Investments Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100* 100¢  Investment holding
Limited company HK$800,000,000
Bt BREAAT i REER
800,000,000/ 7T
China Gas Energy Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100* 100 Investment holding
Utilization Holdings company HK$1
Limited Bk ARERRF R REER
BT
Zhongran Energy Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100* 100¢  Investment holding
Network company HK$100
Development Limited ~ &75 BBREMRT LR REER
100%7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. TEWE R RFE @

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paidupissued  issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital ~ held by the Company  Principal activities
SRR LR, BREBRARE/ KRDAIAFBCRORE/
WEA R AR ek EBREYA SMER aMEREELA FTEER
2017
e S
%
ERHRE PRC Limited liability Registered 100 100 Sales of natural gas
company RMB10,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
hE BRAEANH AARE RARHER
10,000,0007 MREEER
RERRREE PRC Limited liability Registered 100%# 100 Development,
BRRA company RMB390,310,000 production and sales
of gas appliances
HE BREFAT A AR R HER
390,310,000 RAtMREA
Beijing Gas BVI Incorporated Ordinary 100%# 100%  Investment holding
US$1
ZBRZS RiAv Lid RERR
ES
LR PRC Limited liability Registered 99## 99%  Distribution of city gas
company RMB300,000,000 and natural gas for
vehicle use and the
construction of long
distance natural gas
pipeline
hE BREERA FMARE HRRRERRAR
300,000,0007T HERREMAAR
EEMER
EHERAAR PRC Limited liability Registered 97%"# 97%*  Sales of natural gas
BRAF company RMB118,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
hE BREERA HMARE RAREERMAEE
118,000,0007T R
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(CONTINUED)

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

—NF=ZA=+—HILFE

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
FRRLREMR, HRERTRE/
WEA R AR ek EBREYA SMER
BHRIHTIRE PRC Limited liability Registered
EREARAA company RMB60,000,000
HE BRAEAH FARE
60,000,0007T
HRLERE IR PRC Limited liability Registered
BRA7 company RMB80,000,000
HE EBREERF HARE
80,000,0007T
BEmRRATRR  PRC Limited liability Registered
ERARDA company RMB80,000,000
HE EBREERT HARE
80,000,0007T
IREIRE halRRM  PRC Limited liability Registered
ERARLA company RMB107,500,000
HE EBREFRF FHARE
107,500,0007T
tRER ORIl  PRC Limited liability Registered
BRAA company RMB50,000,000
HE EBREFAF FARE
50,000,0007T

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2017/18 FINANCIAL REPORT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 E#Z ==

47. TEMB N EFHE (@)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company  Principal activities
RAAMBERITRE
& A E Al FTEER
2017
e S
%

100%** 100%**  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

AARHEERMREE
&

100%"# 100%**  Development and
consultancy services
in gas pipeline
construction

MREBER A
HART

100%*# 100%**  Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

RAARHEERMREE
2R

55%*# 55%**  Development,

consultancy services
and investment in
clean energy

R HARKREZ
RUIRI A

100%*# 100%**  Sales of natural gas

and gas pipeline
construction
RARHERMAEE

218
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. TEWE R RFE @

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paidupissued  issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital ~ held by the Company  Principal activities
SRR LR, BREBRARE/ KRDAIAFBCRORE/
WEA R AR ek EBREYA SMER aMEREELA FTEER
2017
e S
%
RIS e PRC Limited liability Registered 100%*# 100%**  Development,
BRRA company RMB500,000,000 consultancy services
and investment in
clean energy
HE EBREERF HARE ¥ FARBREZ
500,000,0007T BRREA
AITHRREZ  PRC Limited liability Registered 100%*  100%**  Investment holdings
REREEARDA company RMB10,000,000
HE EREERT af AR REER
10,000,0007T
TiEHERERS (R)  PRC Limited liability Registered 100%*  100%**  Provision of
BRRA company RMB100,000,000 management
services, and
consultancy services
hE BREAAT FMARE REER R AR
100,000,0007T
Zhongran Energy HK Limited liability Ordinary 100%* 100%*  Investment holdings
Limited company HK$2
B BREFAT LR RERR
VBT
Sky Access Limited BVI Incorporated Ordinary 100%* 100%*  Investment holdings
US$100
ZBRZS AL BB RERR
100%7T
Fresh Goal Limited BVI Incorporated Ordinary 100%* 100%"  Investment holdings
US$100
5BRAS EiijAv L RERR
100%7T



For the year ended 31 March 2018 #lZE =T —\F=H=1T—HLFE

47. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
AR, BrERaRE/
WELAREE EXH ERRBYA &R
China Gas Capital BVI Incorporated Ordinary
Management Limited US$100
KBRS AEMA AL @
100%7

s The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/

registered capital/registered capital directly held by the

Company.

L The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/
registered capital/registered capital indirectly held by

the Company.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of
the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B#E=E—N\F=A=+—HILFE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONOF ~ 48. R AR Mk &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of the financial ARBR I ERR 2B HMRKREF N
position of the Company at the end of the reporting T
period is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F§ —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TRt FAET
Non-current assets IERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries RETB AR 2 7,860,279 7,064,688
Investments in associates REZNR 28 E 1,408,560 1,410,350
Investments in joint ventures REBERRZIEE 598,974 598,974
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZRE 2,900 2,900
Amounts due from subsidiaries RS NGI 17,177,311 12,249,298
27,048,024 21,326,210
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables and prepayment EAbEYARTE R TE FRIA 2,793 208,842
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 885,104 229,572
887,897 438,414
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables and accruals EAb R BRTE R FERT IR 124,972 60,622
Amounts due to subsidiaries LR NGRS 8,624,364 4,235,982
Bank borrowings RITEE
— due within one year — R—F R 2,702,145 1,758,886
11,451,481 6,055,490
Net current liabilities BB ETE (10,563,584) (5,617,076)
16,484,440 15,709,134
Equity T
Share capital [N 49,685 49,685
Reserves 1] 10,424,899 8,711,119
Total equity 48R 10,474,584 8,760,804
Non-current liability EREBAE
Bank borrowings RITEE
— due after one year — R—F1&ZIH 6,009,856 6,948,330
16,484,440 15,709,134
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

48. AR T MM RT (@)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: BRABZHEEEE :
Employee
share-based Capital
Share compensation  Translation ~ Contributed  redemption Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits Total
Bkt &&
RVEE  HWRE  AERE  EARR  RERE  ZEEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tén T T Tién Tén T
(note)
(Bzt)
At 1 April 2016 RZE-ERA-A 7,074,281 = (205,364) 65,475 1,107 1478129 8,413,628
Profitand total comprehensive ~ EERFIREARALE
income for the year = = = = = 783,267 783,267
Fxchange difference arising from #EE47EH 2%
translation - - (262,815) = = = (262,815)
Repurchase of shares R (538,069) - - - 527 (527)  (538,068)
Issuance of newsharesupon ~ WEHB AT
acquisitions of subsidiaries BTG 1268923 - - - - - 168,923
Dividends paid BfRE = = - - - (953816)  (953,816)
At 31 March 2017 i S 2
=R=1-H 7,805,136 = (468,179) 65,475 1,634 1,307,093 8,711,119
Profit and total comprehensive  EERFIR2ERALE
income for the year ® ° = ® = 2,241,319 2,241,319
Recognition of equity-settled ~ HEADHERAE
share-hased payments R BERNES - 844,320 - - - - 644,320
Exchange difference arising from  EER 7B =8
translation = = 219,266 = = = 219,266
Dividends paid BfiRE - - - - - (1391185 (1,391,185)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-Nf
=f=1-H 7,805,136 644,320 (248,913) 65,475 1,634 257,247 10,424,899

Note: The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the underlying net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired by the Company as a result
of the group reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares in 1995 and the nominal amount of
the Company’s share capital issued as consideration for

the acquisition.
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Financial Summary
BBRHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE-A=t+-ALEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
=N —T+F T NF TR —T-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FET FET THT

Results o
Revenue WA 52,831,958 31,993,323 29,496,869 31,666,111 26,007,997
Profit for the year AAREE NEL

attributable toowners  FEREF

of the Company 6,095,153 4,147,732 2,273,121 3,371,053 2,575,506

At 31 March
R=A=1+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

=t s 2+ T —ZT-hf —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FET FHET FAET FET

(restated)

(E7)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 82,058,007 60,221,785 53,532,891 50,624,436 45,264,629
Total liabilities BEE (£9,327,907)  (36,275,208)  (32,568,771)  (29,188,936) (27,107,617)

32,730,100 23,946,579 20,964,120 21,435,500 18,157,012

Equity attributable to FBALEEAA

owners of the Company 2 & 28,455,996 20,550,233 17,852,562 18,396,317 15,783,489
Non-controlling interests  3Ei2Rk#ERS 4,274,104 3,396,346 3,111,558 3,039,183 2,373,523

32,730,100 23,946,579 20,964,120 21,435,500 18,157,012




Location Type Group’s interest (%) Lease term
ih B Hhl AEBEzER(%) HE

Leasehold land and buildings
HEL 1 REF

In Hong Kong:
EBHE

16/F., Capital Centre Office premises 100  Long lease
No. 151 Gloucester Road YNEJES REAFA
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

e

LT

HEITE1515%

BARAFL618

In the People’s Republic of China:

R E A RAFE :

RYNTE A KB 502255 Commercial 100 Medium term lease

4 B BREEGHE - 812 - 101E101F » [SES FRHRTE A

1312 - 151E K% 1818

Bt A IS A LIE 4305 F Commercial 100 Medium term lease
EES AR EAF 4

IERMmERFIEL IR Office premises 100  Medium term lease
FEYNEL ) ES AR ERFR 49

Investment properties

REYFE

No. 28-30 Kai Tak Road Vacant land 100 Medium term lease

Kowloon City EETH FRHERTEAY

Kowloon

Hong Kong

G

B
JLBER

=38 28-305%
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